
1 August 23, 2021 
 

 BIRMINGHAM CITY COMMISSION AGENDA 
AUGUST 23, 2021 

MUNICIPAL BUILDING, 151 MARTIN 
7:30 P.M. 

 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Pierre Boutros, Mayor 
 

II. ROLL CALL 
Alexandria Bingham, City Clerk  
 

III. PROCLAMATIONS, CONGRATULATORY RESOLUTIONS, AWARDS, APPOINTMENTS, 
RESIGNATIONS AND CONFIRMATIONS, ADMINISTRATION OF OATHS, INTRODUCTION OF 
GUESTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS. 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 
• The highly transmissible COVID-19 Delta variant is spreading throughout the nation at 

an alarming rate.  As a result, the CDC is recommending that vaccinated and 
unvaccinated personnel wear a facemask indoors while in public if you live or work in a 
substantial or high transmission area.  Oakland County is currently classified as a 
substantial transmission area.  The City has reinstated mask requirements for all 
employees while indoors. The mask requirement also applies to all board and 
commission members as well as the public attending public meetings.   

• In The Park Summer Concerts are being held weekly in Shain Park on Wednesday 
evenings from 7 pm - 9 pm.  Upcoming groups include the following: 

o August 25th      Ben Sharkey 
o September 1st  Sun Messengers 
o September 8th  "The Byron Legacy Show" starring Bryon Cancelmo 

• Patriot Week Proclamation 
• Director of Professional Development Neal Rossow and his staff from the MACP 

Accreditation Program 
 
APPOINTMENTS 

A. Advisory Parking Committee 
1. Algirdas Vaitas 
2. James J. Arpin 
3. Sarsgar Nasserian 
4. Richard Astrein 

To appoint __ to the Advisory Parking Committee as a regular member who is a small retail 
owner to serve a three-year term to expire September 4, 2024.  

To appoint __ to the Advisory Parking Committee as a regular member who is a resident who 
does not qualify under the following categories: downtown commercial representative of large 
retail, small retail, a professional firm, a building owner, a restaurant owner, or a downtown 
employee to serve a three-year term to expire September 4, 2024.  



2 August 23, 2021 
 

To appoint __ to the Advisory Parking Committee as a regular member who is a BSD member to 
serve a three-year term to expire September 4, 2024.  

To appoint __ to the Advisory Parking Committee as a regular member who is a restaurant 
owner to serve the remainder of a three-year term to expire September 4, 2023. 
 

IV. OPEN TO THE PUBLIC FOR MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 

V. CONSENT AGENDA 
All items listed on the consent agenda are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one motion 
and approved by a roll call vote.  There will be no separate discussion of the items unless a 
commissioner or citizen so requests, in which event the item will be removed from the general order 
of business and considered under the last item of new business. 

A. Resolution to approve the City Commission meeting minutes of August 9, 2021. 
 
B. Resolution to approve the warrant list, including Automated Clearing House payments, dated 

August 11, 2021, in the amount of $9,141,601.76. 
 
C. Resolution to approve the warrant list, including Automated Clearing House payments, dated 

August 18, 2021, in the amount of $1,537,613.98. 
 
D. Resolution setting a public hearing for September 20, 2021 to consider the Special Land Use 

Permit amendment, Final Site Plan and Design Review application for 260 N. Old Woodward 
– The Morrie – to allow the addition of a new outdoor dining platform in the N. Old 
Woodward right-of-way. 

 
E. Resolution setting a public hearing for September 20, 2021 to consider the following 

amendments to Chapter 126, Zoning: 
1. Article 7, Section 7.01 (General) to add general public notice requirements; and 
2. Article 7, Section 7.29 (Site Plan Review: Hearing on Review; Notice) to remove and 

relocate public notice requirements. 
 
F. Resolution approving the Interlocal Agreement between the seven (7) control units of the 

48th District Court in order to receive the grant and local share funding from the State of 
Michigan as demanded by the MDIC and authorizing the City of Birmingham as the lead 
community to receive and administer all monies on behalf of the 48th District Court MDIC 
program, and authorizing the City Manager, Thomas M. Markus, to sign on behalf of the City.  

 
G. Resolution approving the Agreement for the Managed Assigned Counsel Coordinator (MACC) 

Under the Michigan Indigent Defense Commission (MDIC) between the City of Birmingham 
as the Lead Community for the District Control Units of the 48th District Court and Stephanie 
Ann Achenbach for the period of time from October 1, 2021 through September 30, 2022 
and, to authorize the City Manager to sign on behalf of the City.  

 
H. Resolution authorizing the IT department to purchase 126 block hours of GIS support from 

Geographic Information Services, Inc. 2100 Riverchase Center, Suite 105, Birmingham, AL 
35244, the total purchase not to exceed $19,936.98.  Funds are available in the IT Computer 



3 August 23, 2021 
 

Maintenance fund account # 636-228.000-993.0600.  This purchase is considered a sole 
source purchase pursuant to section 2-280(d) of the City Code. 

 
I. Resolution confirming the City Manager’s authorization for the emergency expenditure 

related to the sewer repair on W. Maple Road at Henrietta Street by Aaron’s Excavating, for a 
cost not to exceed $6,650.00 to be charged to the Sewer Fund, Other Contractual Services 
account #590-536.001-811.0000, pursuant to Sec. 2-286 of the City Code. 

 
J. Resolution confirming the City Manager’s authorization for the emergency expenditure 

related to the repair of the Quarton Dam auxiliary spillway gate lifting mechanism by Midwest 
Power Systems, for a cost not to exceed for $17,150.00 to be charged to the Quarton Lake 
Maintenance account #101-751.000-935.0300, pursuant to Sec. 2-286 of the City Code.  

 
K. Resolution confirming the City Manager’s authorization for the emergency expenditure 

related to the repair of the Chester Street structure elevator by KONE Elevator for a cost not 
to exceed $7,345.00 to be charged to the Automobile Parking System Fund, Chester Parking 
Structure Elevator Maintenance account #585-538.008-930.0200, pursuant to Sec. 2-286 of 
the City Code. 

 
L. Resolution to amend the contract with SP Plus Corporation for Parking Management Services 

for the five City owned parking structures.  Furthermore, to direct the Mayor and City Clerk 
to sign the agreement on behalf of the City. 

 
M. Resolution to approve the installation of a 4-way stop control at the intersection of Ferndale 

and Ravine and an installation of a stop sign on the southbound approach of Brookside at 
Ravine.  

 
N. Resolution approving a special event permit as requested by the Birmingham Shopping 

District to hold the 2021 Santa House beginning the weekend of November 27, 2021 through 
December 24, 2021 contingent upon compliance with all permit and insurance requirements 
and payment of all fees and, further, pursuant to any minor modifications that may be 
deemed necessary by administrative staff at the time of the event, or event cancellation that 
may be deemed necessary by administrative staff leading up to or at the time of the event 
due to public health and safety measures.   

 
O. Resolution approving a special event permit as requested by the Birmingham Shopping District 

to hold the 2021 Winter Markt Friday, December 3 – Sunday, December 5, 2021 contingent 
upon compliance with all permit and insurance requirements and payment of all fees and, 
further, pursuant to any minor modifications that may be deemed necessary by administrative 
staff at the time of the event due to public health and safety measures.  

 
 
P. Resolution approving the renewal of Brooklyn Pizza’s liquor license for 2021.  
 
Q. Resolution approving the suggested precinct change as required by the Election Commission 

and as recommended by the City Clerk. Precinct 6 presently located at City Hall will be 
permanently located at the Baldwin Public Library effective immediately. 

 



4 August 23, 2021 
 

 
   VI. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
VII. NEW BUSINESS 

 
A. Resolution awarding the Townsend and Peabody Street Paving Project #6-21(P), to DiPonio 

Contracting, Inc. contingent upon execution of the agreement and meeting all insurance 
and bonding requirements.  In the amount of $1,154,870.95, to be charged to the following 
accounts: 

 
Sewer Fund, Public Imp. 590-536.001-981.0100 $     405,754.24 
Water Fund, Public Imp. 591-537.004-981.0000 $     178,440.03 
Local Streets Fund 203-449.001-981.0100 $     353,210.22 
Major Streets Fund 202-449.001-981.0100 $     195,840.46 
General Fund 101-444.002-981.0100 $      21,626.00 
Total  $   1,154,870.95 

 
To authorize the Mayor to sign the contract on behalf of the City; and  

 
To approve the appropriation and amendment to the 2021/2022 budget as follows: 
General Fund: 
Revenues: 
Draw from Fund Balance    101-000.000-400.0000 $21,630 
 
Expenditures: 
Engineering and Public Services – Alleys  101-444.002-981.0100 $21,630 
 
Major Street Fund: 
Revenues: 
Draw from Fund Balance    202-000.000-400.0000 $195,840 
 
Expenditures: 
Construction of Roads and Bridges  202-449.001-981.0100 $195,840 
 
Local Street Fund: 
Revenues: 
Draw from Fund Balance    203-000.000-400.0000 $353,210 
 
Expenditures: 
Construction of Roads and Bridges  203-449.001-981.0100 $353,210 

 
Sewer Fund: 
Revenues: 
Draw from Fund Balance   590-000.000-400.0000 $405,760 
 
Expenditures: 
Sewer Improvements   590-536.001-981.0100 $405,760 
 



5 August 23, 2021 
 

Water Fund: 
Revenues: 
Draw from Fund Balance   591-000.000-400.0000 $178,440 
 
Expenditures: 
Water Main Improvements  591-537.004-981.0100 $178,440 

 

B. Resolution approving the City of Birmingham's participation in an Interlocal Agreement for 
Joint Senior Services, which together with three (3) neighboring communities, articulates their 
intention to contribute money so that NEXT and its Board of Directors may rely upon these 
monies in order to serve the seniors residing in the governmental units, and to authorize the 
City Manager to sign the Agreement on behalf of the City. 

 
C. Commission discussion on items from prior meeting.  

1. Glass Standards 
 
D. Commission Items for Future Discussion. A motion is required to bring up the item for future 

discussion at the next reasonable agenda, no discussion on the topic will happen tonight. 
 

VIII. REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA 
 

IX. COMMUNICATIONS 
 

X. REPORTS 
A. Commissioner Reports 
B. Commissioner Comments 
C. Advisory Boards, Committees, Commissions’ Reports and Agendas 
D. Legislation 
E. City Staff 

1. Greenwood Cemetery Advisory Board Annual Report 
2. Interim Report on Infrastructure Ratings 
3. Manager’s Report 

 
INFORMATION ONLY 
  

XI. ADJOURN 
 
Should you wish to participate in this meeting, you are invited to attend the meeting in person or 
virtually through ZOOM:   https://zoom.us/j/655079760       Meeting ID: 655 079 760  
You may also present your written statement to the City Commission, City of Birmingham, 151 Martin 
Street, P.O. Box 3001, Birmingham, Michigan 48012-3001 prior to the hearing.   
 
NOTICE:  Individuals requiring accommodations, such as mobility, visual, hearing, interpreter or other assistance, for 
effective participation in this meeting should contact the City Clerk's Office at (248) 530-1880 (voice), or (248) 644-
5115 (TDD) at least one day in advance to request mobility, visual, hearing or other assistance.  
Las personas que requieren alojamiento, tales como servicios de interpretación, la participación efectiva en esta reunión 
deben ponerse en contacto con la Oficina del Secretario Municipal al (248) 530-1880 por lo menos el día antes de la 
reunión pública. (Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964). 

https://zoom.us/j/655079760
tel:%28248%29%20530-1880


 

Proclamation 
Patriot Week September 11-17, 2021 

WHEREAS, Throughout our country’s history, the people of our great state and nation have 
worked together to ensure preservation of the American ideals of freedom and 
liberty we enjoy today; and 

 
WHEREAS, American patriotism has endured through times of turmoil and times of peace, 

carrying our nation through the darkest days of history and strengthening our 
commitment to the ideals upon which our country was founded; and  

 
WHEREAS, In great reverence to the victims of the September 11, 2001 attacks, and in 

recognition of the signing of the Constitution on September 17, 1787, Patriot Week 
is a time to celebrate the principles set forth by our founders as well as the countless 
historical figures, vital documents, speeches and symbols that helped make America 
the great nation it is today; and 

 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED: 
 that the City of Birmingham hereby recognizes September 11 – 17, 2021, as Patriot 

Week, and September 11, 2021, as Patriot Day, and encourages all residents to 
renew their appreciation and understanding of the history and first principles of the 
United States.  

 
On behalf of the City Commission and the residents of 
Birmingham this 23st day of August, 2021. 

    
 
 ________________________ 
  Pierre Boutros, Mayor 



3A



SUGGESTED ACTION: 

To appoint __ to the Advisory Parking Committee as a regular member who is a small 
retail owner to serve a three-year term to expire September 4, 2024. 

To appoint __ to the Advisory Parking Committee as a regular member who is a resident 
who does not qualify under the following categories: downtown commercial representative of 
large retail, small retail, a professional firm, a building owner, a restaurant owner, or a 
downtown employee to serve a three-year term to expire September 4, 2024. 

To appoint __ to the Advisory Parking Committee as a regular member who is a BSD 
member to serve a three-year term to expire September 4, 2024. 

To appoint __ to the Advisory Parking Committee as a regular member who is a restaurant 
owner to serve the remainder of a three-year term to expire September 4, 2023. 







N
a

m
e 

o
f 

B
o

ar
d

:
Y

ea
r:

2
0

1
9

M
e

m
b

er
s 

R
eq

u
ir

ed
 f

o
r 

Q
u

o
ru

m
:

4
M

E
M

B
E

R
 N

A
M

E
JA

N
FE

B
M

A
R

A
P

R
M

A
Y

JU
N

E
JU

LY
A

U
G

S
E

P
T

O
C

T
N

O
V

D
E

C
M

T
G

M
T

G
M

tg
s.

 
A

b
se

n
t

A
tt

en
d

ed
 

R
E

G
U

LA
R

 M
E

M
B

E
R

S
Ch

am
pa

gn
e,

 G
ay

le
P

P
CM

P
P

P
CM

CM
P

P
P

8
0

10
0%

H
on

ha
rt

, 
An

ne
P

P
CM

P
P

P
CM

CM
A

A
A

5
3

63
%

Ka
lc

zy
ns

ki
, 

St
ev

en
P

P
CM

P
A

P
CM

CM
P

P
A

6
2

75
%

Kr
ue

ge
r,

 L
is

a
P

A
CM

P
P

A
CM

CM
P

P
A

5
3

63
%

Pa
sk

ie
w

ic
z,

 J
ud

ith
P

P
CM

P
P

P
CM

CM
P

P
P

8
0

10
0%

Va
ita

s,
 A

l
P

P
CM

P
P

P
CM

CM
P

P
P

8
0

10
0%

H
or

ow
itz

, 
M

ic
ha

el
N

A
N

A
N

A
N

A
N

A
N

A
N

A
N

A
N

A
N

A
P

Si
lv

er
m

an
, 
Li

sa
N

A
N

A
N

A
N

A
N

A
N

A
N

A
N

A
N

A
N

A
P

VA
CA

N
T

A
LT

E
R

N
A

T
E

S
Ye

rt
, 
Je

nn
ife

r 
(8

/2
01

8)
A

P
CM

P
P

A
CM

CM
P

P
P

VA
CA

N
T

R
es

er
ve

d
0

0
#

D
IV

/0
!

R
es

er
ve

d
0

0
#

D
IV

/0
!

Pr
es

en
t 

or
 A

va
ila

bl
e

6
6

0
7

6
5

0
0

6
6

6
0

0
0

K
E

Y
:

A
 

=
 M

em
b

er
 a

b
se

n
t

P
 

=
 M

em
b

er
 p

re
se

n
t 

o
r 

av
a

il
ab

le
C

P
=

 M
em

b
e

r 
a

va
il

a
b

le
, 

b
u

t 
m

ee
ti

n
g

 c
a

n
ce

le
d

  f
o

r 
la

ck
 o

f 
q

u
o

ru
m

C
A

=
 M

em
b

e
r 

n
o

t 
av

a
il

ab
le

 a
n

d
 m

e
et

in
g

 w
as

 c
an

ce
le

d
 f

o
r 

la
ck

 o
f 

q
u

o
ru

m
N

A
=

 M
em

b
e

r 
n

o
t 

ap
p

o
in

te
d

 a
t 

th
a

t 
ti

m
e

N
M

 
=

 N
o

 m
ee

ti
n

g
 s

ch
ed

u
le

d
 t

h
a

t 
m

o
n

th
C

M
=

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 c

a
n

ce
le

d
 f

o
r 

la
ck

 o
f 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

 i
te

m
s

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

H
ea

d
 S

ig
n

at
u

re

C
IT

Y
 B

O
A

R
D

/C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 A
T

T
E

N
D

A
N

C
E

 R
EC

O
R

D

A
d

vi
so

ry
 P

ar
k

in
g

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e



N
a

m
e 

o
f 

B
o

ar
d

:
Y

ea
r:

2
0

2
0

M
e

m
b

er
s 

R
eq

u
ir

ed
 f

o
r 

Q
u

o
ru

m
:

4
M

E
M

B
E

R
 N

A
M

E
JA

N
FE

B
M

A
R

A
P

R
5

/6
5

/1
5

JU
N

JU
LY

A
U

G
S

E
P

O
C

T
N

O
V

D
E

C
M

T
G

M
tg

s.
 

A
b

se
n

t
A

tt
en

d
ed

 

R
E

G
U

LA
R

 M
E

M
B

E
R

S
Ch

am
pa

gn
e,

 G
ay

le
P

P
P

N
M

P
P

P
N

M
P

N
M

P
P

N
A

9
0

10
0%

H
on

ha
rt

, 
An

ne
A

A
P

N
M

A
A

A
N

M
A

N
M

A
A

A
1

9
10

%

Ka
lc

zy
ns

ki
, 

St
ev

en
P

P
P

N
M

A
P

P
N

M
P

N
M

P
P

P
9

1
90

%
Kr

ue
ge

r,
 L

is
a

P
P

A
N

M
A

P
A

N
M

A
N

M
P

A
P

5
5

50
%

Pa
sk

ie
w

ic
z,

 J
ud

ith
P

P
P

N
M

A
A

P
N

M
P

N
M

P
P

P
8

2
80

%

Va
ita

s,
 A

l
A

P
P

N
M

P
P

P
N

M
A

N
M

P
P

P
8

2
80

%
As

tr
ei

n,
 R

ic
ha

rd
P

P
P

N
M

P
P

P
N

M
P

N
M

P
P

P
10

0
10

0%

Si
lv

er
m

an
, 
Li

sa
P

A
P

N
M

P
P

P
N

M
P

N
M

A
P

A
7

3
70

%

A
LT

E
R

N
A

T
E

S
Ye

rt
, 
Je

nn
ife

r 
(8

/2
01

8)
P

P
A

N
M

P
A

P
N

M
P

N
M

P
P

P
H

or
ow

itz
, 
M

ic
ha

el
A

A
A

N
M

P
P

P
N

M
P

N
M

N
A

N
A

N
A

R
es

er
ve

d
0

0
#

D
IV

/0
!

R
es

er
ve

d
0

0
#

D
IV

/0
!

Pr
es

en
t 

or
 A

va
ila

bl
e

7
7

7
0

6
7

8
0

7
0

7
7

6
0

K
E

Y
:

A
 

=
 M

em
b

er
 a

b
se

n
t

P
 

=
 M

em
b

er
 p

re
se

n
t 

o
r 

av
a

il
ab

le
C

P
=

 M
em

b
e

r 
a

va
il

a
b

le
, 

b
u

t 
m

ee
ti

n
g

 c
a

n
ce

le
d

  f
o

r 
la

ck
 o

f 
q

u
o

ru
m

C
A

=
 M

em
b

e
r 

n
o

t 
av

a
il

ab
le

 a
n

d
 m

e
et

in
g

 w
as

 c
an

ce
le

d
 f

o
r 

la
ck

 o
f 

q
u

o
ru

m
N

A
=

 M
em

b
e

r 
n

o
t 

ap
p

o
in

te
d

 a
t 

th
a

t 
ti

m
e

N
M

 
=

 N
o

 m
ee

ti
n

g
 s

ch
ed

u
le

d
 t

h
a

t 
m

o
n

th
C

M
=

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 c

a
n

ce
le

d
 f

o
r 

la
ck

 o
f 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

 i
te

m
s

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

H
ea

d
 S

ig
n

at
u

re

C
IT

Y
 B

O
A

R
D

/C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 A
T

T
E

N
D

A
N

C
E

 R
EC

O
R

D

A
d

vi
so

ry
 P

ar
k

in
g

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e



N
a

m
e 

o
f 

B
o

ar
d

:
Y

ea
r:

2
0

2
1

M
e

m
b

er
s 

R
eq

u
ir

ed
 f

o
r 

Q
u

o
ru

m
:

4
M

E
M

B
E

R
 N

A
M

E
JA

N
FE

B
M

A
R

A
P

R
M

A
Y

6
/2

6
/1

6
JU

LY
A

U
G

S
E

P
T

O
C

T
N

O
V

D
E

C
M

T
G

M
tg

s.
 

A
b

se
n

t
A

tt
en

d
ed

 

R
E

G
U

LA
R

 M
E

M
B

E
R

S
As

tr
ei

n,
 R

ic
ha

rd
CM

CM
P

P
P

P
P

N
M

5
0

10
0%

H
on

ha
rt

, 
An

ne
CM

CM
A

A
A

A
A

N
M

0
5

0%

Ka
lc

zy
ns

ki
, 

St
ev

en
CM

CM
P

P
A

P
P

N
M

4
1

80
%

Kr
ue

ge
r,

 L
is

a
CM

CM
A

P
A

P
P

N
M

3
2

60
%

Pa
sk

ie
w

ic
z,

 J
ud

ith
CM

CM
A

A
P

A
P

N
M

2
3

40
%

Va
ita

s,
 A

l
CM

CM
P

P
P

P
P

N
M

5
0

10
0%

Bl
ac

k,
 A

ar
on

 
CM

CM
P

A
P

A
P

N
M

3
2

60
%

Si
lv

er
m

an
, 
Li

sa
CM

CM
P

P
P

P
A

N
M

4
1

80
%

VA
CA

N
T

A
LT

E
R

N
A

T
E

S
Ye

rt
, 
Je

nn
ife

r 
(8

/2
01

8)
CM

CM
P

A
P

A
P

N
M

Pe
tc

of
f,
 M

ar
y-

Cl
ai

re
CM

CM
P

P
P

P
P

N
M

R
es

er
ve

d
0

0
#

D
IV

/0
!

R
es

er
ve

d
0

0
#

D
IV

/0
!

Pr
es

en
t 

or
 A

va
ila

bl
e

0
0

7
6

7
6

8
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

K
E

Y
:

A
 

=
 M

em
b

er
 a

b
se

n
t

P
 

=
 M

em
b

er
 p

re
se

n
t 

o
r 

av
a

il
ab

le
C

P
=

 M
em

b
e

r 
a

va
il

a
b

le
, 

b
u

t 
m

ee
ti

n
g

 c
a

n
ce

le
d

  f
o

r 
la

ck
 o

f 
q

u
o

ru
m

C
A

=
 M

em
b

e
r 

n
o

t 
av

a
il

ab
le

 a
n

d
 m

e
et

in
g

 w
as

 c
an

ce
le

d
 f

o
r 

la
ck

 o
f 

q
u

o
ru

m
N

A
=

 M
em

b
e

r 
n

o
t 

ap
p

o
in

te
d

 a
t 

th
a

t 
ti

m
e

N
M

 
=

 N
o

 m
ee

ti
n

g
 s

ch
ed

u
le

d
 t

h
a

t 
m

o
n

th
C

M
=

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 c

a
n

ce
le

d
 f

o
r 

la
ck

 o
f 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

 i
te

m
s

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

H
ea

d
 S

ig
n

at
u

re

C
IT

Y
 B

O
A

R
D

/C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 A
T

T
E

N
D

A
N

C
E

 R
EC

O
R

D

A
d

vi
so

ry
 P

ar
k

in
g

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e











Birmingham City Commission Minutes 
August 9, 2021 

7:30 p.m. 
Municipal Building, 151 Martin 

Vimeo Link: https://vimeo.com/event/3470/videos/579682159/ 

I. CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Pierre Boutros, Mayor, opened the meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance. 

II. ROLL CALL
Alexandria Bingham, City Clerk, called the roll. 

Present: Mayor Boutros 
Mayor Pro Tem Longe   
Commissioner Baller   
Commissioner Hoff   
Commissioner Host   
Commissioner Nickita   
Commissioner Sherman 

Absent: None 

Administration: City Manager Markus, City Clerk Bingham, Police Chief Clemence, Assistant City 
Manager Ecker, City Attorney Kucharek, Consulting City Engineer Surhigh, Deputy Treasurer Todd 

III. PROCLAMATIONS, CONGRATULATORY RESOLUTIONS, AWARDS, APPOINTMENTS,
RESIGNATIONS AND CONFIRMATIONS, ADMINISTRATION OF OATHS, INTRODUCTION OF
GUESTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS.

ANNOUNCEMENTS 
The highly transmissible COVID-19 Delta variant is spreading throughout the nation at an alarming rate. 
As a result, the CDC is recommending that vaccinated and unvaccinated personnel wear a facemask indoors 
while in public if you live or work in a substantial or high transmission area.  Oakland County is currently 
classified as a substantial transmission area.  The City has reinstated mask requirements for all employees 
while indoors. The mask requirement also applies to all board and commission members as well as the 
public attending public meetings.   

In The Park Summer Concerts are being held weekly in Shain Park on Wednesday evenings from 7 p.m. - 
9 p.m.  Upcoming groups include the following: 

August 11th Alan Turner 
August 18th Jill Jack 
August 25th Ben Sharkey 
September 1st Sun Messengers 
September 8th "The Byron Legacy Show" starring Bryon Cancelmo 

5A

https://vimeo.com/event/3470/videos/579682159/


2  August 9, 2021 

The Police Department submitted a patrol vehicle to the Michigan Association of Chiefs of Police annual 
"Police Car of the Year'' competition for 2021. The Department's current patrol vehicle graphics and color 
scheme were designed by a committee of volunteer department officers and implemented by Chief 
Clemence in 2017. The Police Department's patrol vehicle won second place in the State of Michigan for 
"Police Car of the Year" for 2021.  
 
APPOINTMENTS 
 
08-206-21 Appointment of Thomas Guastello to the Corridor Improvement Authority 
 
The Commission interviewed Thomas Guastello for the appointment.  
 
MOTION: Nomination by Mayor Pro Tem Longe:  
To concur in the Mayor’s appointment of Thomas Guastello to the Corridor Improvement Authority as the 
regular member to serve the remainder of a four-year term to expire December 15, 2024. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, Mayor Pro-Tem Longe 
    Mayor Boutros 
    Commissioner Baller 

Commissioner Nickita 
Commissioner Hoff  
Commissioner Host  
Commissioner Sherman 

 
   Nays, None 
 
08-207-21 Appointment of Amanda Fishburn to the Multi-Modal Transportation Board 
 
The Commission interviewed Amanda Fishburn for the appointment.  
 
MOTION: Nomination by Commissioner Baller:  
To appoint Amanda Fishburn to the Multi-Modal Transportation Board as an alternate member to serve a 
three-year term to expire October 27, 2022. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, Commissioner Baller 

Commissioner Nickita  
Commissioner Hoff  
Commissioner Host  

    Commissioner Sherman 
Mayor Pro-Tem Longe 

    Mayor Boutros 
 
   Nays, None 
 
08-208-21 Appointment of Jay R. Shell to the Museum Board 
 
The Commission interviewed Jay R. Shell for the appointment.  
 
MOTION: Nomination by Commissioner Sherman:  



3  August 9, 2021 

To appoint Jay R. Shell to the Museum Board as a regular member to serve the remainder of a three-
year term to expire July 5, 2024. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, Commissioner Sherman 

Mayor Pro-Tem Longe 
    Mayor Boutros 
    Commissioner Baller 

Commissioner Nickita 
Commissioner Hoff  
Commissioner Host  

       
   Nays, None 
 
City Clerk Bingham swore in the appointees. 
 

IV. OPEN TO THE PUBLIC FOR MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
Andrew Haig recommended returning to virtual meetings again in light of the delta variant of Covid-19. He 
also asked that the City Manager’s report be moved to the beginning of the Commission meetings. 
 
Ingrid Tighe gave recommendations for addressing the City’s recurring flooding issues. She stated Catalpa 
and Bird are two streets that have been particularly impacted. 
 
CM Markus and Mayor Boutros notified Ms. Tighe that flooding in the City would be discussed at the end 
of the evening’s agenda. 
 

V. CONSENT AGENDA 
All items listed on the consent agenda are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one motion 
and approved by a roll call vote.  There will be no separate discussion of the items unless a 
commissioner or citizen so requests, in which event the item will be removed from the general order 
of business and considered under the last item of new business. 

08-209-21  Consent Agenda 
 
The following items were pulled from the Consent Agenda: 

Commissioner Hoff: Item F – Legends of Tomorrow 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Sherman, seconded by Commissioner Host: 
To approve the Consent Agenda with the exception of Item F. 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, Commissioner Sherman 
   Commissioner Host 
   Mayor Pro Tem Longe 
   Commissioner Hoff 
   Commissioner Baller 
   Commissioner Nickita 

Mayor Boutros 
    

 Nays, None  
 

A. Resolution to approve the City Commission meeting minutes of July 26, 2021. 



4  August 9, 2021 

 
B. Resolution to approve the warrant list, including Automated Clearing House payments, dated July 28, 

2021, in the amount of $8,073,706.41. 
 
C. Resolution to approve the warrant list, including Automated Clearing House payments, dated August 

4, 2021, in the amount of $615,077.21. 
 
D. Resolution to approve a request from the Birmingham Bloomfield Art Center to hold Art Birmingham 

in Shain Park and on surrounding streets on May 7-8, 2022 contingent upon compliance with all 
permit and insurance requirements, as well as payment of all fees and, further pursuant to any minor 
modifications or event cancellation that may be deemed necessary by administrative staff leading up 
to or at the time of the event due to public health and safety measures. 
 

E. Resolution to approve a special event permit as requested by Schools Offer Support to hold the 
Strides for SOS road race September 26, 2021, contingent upon compliance with all permit and 
insurance requirements and payment of all fees and, further, pursuant to any minor modifications 
that may be deemed necessary by administrative staff at the time of the event, or event cancellation 
that may be deemed necessary by administrative staff leading up to or at the time of the event due 
to public health and safety measures. 

 
G. Resolution to authorize the creation of the Indigent Defense Fund for the purpose of accepting grant 

and local share funding and charging all MIDC plan-related costs to this fund; to authorize the Finance 
Director to sign the grant agreement with MIDC on behalf of the City; and to approve the appropriation 
and amendment to the 2021-2022 budget as follows: 

 
Indigent Defense Fund 
Revenues: 

Intergovernmental Revenue  $532,550  
Total Revenues  $532,550 

 
Expenditures: 

Indigent Defense Fund  $532,550 
Total Expenditures  $532,550 

 
H. To authorize the Chief of Police to sign the MLCC Police Investigation Report (LC-1800) and to approve 

the liquor license request of Whistle Stop Diner, Inc. that requests a transfer of interest in a Class C 
License to be issued under MCL 436.1531(1) and new SDM License with Outdoor Service (1 Area) 
located at 501 S. Eton St, Birmingham, Oakland County, MI 48009.  
 
Furthermore, pursuant to Birmingham City Ordinance, to authorize the City Clerk to complete the Local 
Approval Notice at the request of Whistle Stop Diner, Inc. approving the liquor license transfer request 
of Whistle Stop Diner, Inc. that requested a Class C License be transferred under MCL 436.1531(1) & 
new SDM License with Outdoor Service (1 Area) located at 501 S. Eton St, Birmingham, Oakland 
County, MI 48009.  

I. Resolution to approve an extension of the 2021 Sidewalk Trip Elimination Program through the 
addendum of the Contact #6-18 (SW) for the 2021 sidewalk program repair area, at 2018 contract 
prices, to Precision Concrete, Inc., in the amount of $125,000.00, contingent upon submittal of the 
necessary bonds and insurance certificate. All costs shall be charged to account number 101-444.001-
981.0100. 



5  August 9, 2021 

 
And to have the Mayor sign the approved contract addendum authorizing this work. 

 
08-210-21 (Item F) Legends of Tomorrow 

 
Police Chief Clemence said this event would not conflict with the setup of the Common Ground Art Fair in 
Shain Park. 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Hoff, seconded by Commissioner Nickita: 
To approve a special event permit as requested by Child Safe Michigan to hold the Legends of Tomorrow 
gala at the Townsend Hotel September 17, 2021, contingent upon compliance with all permit and 
insurance requirements and payment of all fees and, further, pursuant to any minor modifications that 
may be deemed necessary by administrative staff at the time of the event, or event cancellation that may 
be deemed necessary by administrative staff leading up to or at the time of the event due to public health 
and safety measures. Additionally, to allow the use of a temporary liquor license for this event, contingent 
upon compliance with all permit and insurance requirements and payment of all fees, and, further, 
pursuant to any minor modifications that may be deemed necessary by administrative staff at the time of 
the event. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, Commissioner Hoff 
   Commissioner Nickita 

Mayor Boutros 
   Commissioner Host 
   Mayor Pro Tem Longe 
   Commissioner Sherman 
   Commissioner Baller 
      

 Nays, None  
 

VI. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

VII. NEW BUSINESS 
08-211-21 Public Hearing to Confirm S.A.D. for #895- Townsend Street 
Paving Project #6-21 (P), Water & Sewer Lateral Special Assessment 
 
The Mayor opened the public hearing at 7:57 p.m. 
 
DT Todd and CCE Surhigh presented the item. 
 

CCE Surhigh confirmed for Commissioner Hoff that only water and sewer laterals meeting the City’s criteria 
for replacement would be replaced as part of this project. 
 

The Mayor closed the public hearing at 8:01 p.m. 
 

MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Nickita, seconded by Commissioner Host: 
To confirm Special Assessment Roll No. 895 (complete motion in agenda packet). 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, Commissioner Nickita 
   Commissioner Host 



6  August 9, 2021 

   Mayor Pro Tem Longe 
   Commissioner Sherman 
   Commissioner Baller 
   Commissioner Hoff 

Mayor Boutros 
            

 Nays, None  
 

08-212-21 Public Hearing for 300 - 394 S. Old Woodward and a portion 
of 294 E. Brown and a portion of 294 E. Brown Street – New Mixed Use 4 
story Building, RH – Special Land Use Permit, Final Site Plan & Design 
Review 

 
The Mayor opened the public hearing at 8:02 p.m. 
 
ACM Ecker reviewed the item. 
 
Victor Saroki was present on behalf of the applicant team. 
 
Commissioner Nickita noted that if not for the liquor license aspect of this request the project would 
otherwise be considered fully approved given its prior review and approval by the Planning Board. 
 
Commissioner Hoff complemented Mr. Saroki on the renderings. 
 
ACM Ecker stated that parking reviews show that there is more than adequate parking available on street 
and in both the Pierce and Peabody parking structures for RH employees and customers. 
 
In reply to Commissioner Baller, Mr. Saroki confirmed: this RH would be substantially the same as other 
RH locations; and, the majority of the lights in the building would go out in the evenings after business 
hours. 
 
The Commission and Staff discussed whether to require the underground parking area be used either for 
public parking or valet services as part of the SLUP. 
 
While acknowledging that conditions two and six of the SLUP language could both be used to address 
potential future parking issues arising from the development, CM Markus stated that it is often easier for 
the City to set out its expectations explicitly in order to minimize any potential future confusion. 
Consequently, he was supportive of adding language to the SLUP to require that the underground area be 
used for parking. 
 
CA Kucharek stated she worked with Gayle MacGregor, attorney for the applicant, to compose an eighth 
condition for the SLUP: “That RESTORATION HARDWARE is required to utilize the underground parking of 
24 spaces for valet services or for the public to park at all times during operation of the business.” 
 
Commissioners accepted the recommended eighth condition. 
 
The City Attorney recommended not including the hours of operation in the SLUP since doing so could 
mean that minor changes, such as holiday hours, could entail a SLUP violation. 
 



7  August 9, 2021 

Discussion also noted that condition two would allow the Commission to address future concerns about 
hours of operation should they arise. 
Public Comment 
Alessandro Dinello, Michael Sbrocca, Brandon Gorge, Jeffrey Kaftan, Samy Eid, Andrea Rehm, David 
Schostak, Jeff Schoenberg, Ingrid Tighe, Cathy Remske, J.C. Cataldo, and Patricia Beatty spoke in support 
of the project. 
 
The Mayor closed the public hearing at 9:24 p.m. 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Sherman, seconded by Commissioner Nickita: 
To approve a resolution issuing a Special Land Use Permit and approving the Final Site Plan and Design 
Review application for 300 - 394 S. Old Woodward and a portion of 294 E. Brown to allow a new building 
for Restoration Hardware, including a restaurant operating with an Economic Development Liquor License 
with the addition of the recommended eighth condition specifying that the underground parking area 
must be used for public parking or valet services;  
 
AND 
 
To authorize the Chief of Police to sign the MLCC Police Investigation Report (LC-1800) and to approve 
the liquor license request of RH F&B Michigan, LLC that requests a transfer of interest in a Tavern License 
with new Outdoor Service (1 Area) to be issued under MCL 436.1501 located at 300-394 S Old Woodward, 
Birmingham, Oakland County, MI 48009;  
 
AND  
 
Furthermore, pursuant to Birmingham City Ordinance, to authorize the City Clerk to complete the Local 
Approval Notice at the request of RH F&B Michigan, LLC approving the liquor license transfer request of 
RH F&B Birmingham, LLC that requested a Tavern License with new Outdoor Service (1 Area) be 
transferred under MCL 436.1501 located at 300-394 S Old Woodard, Birmingham, Oakland County, MI 
48009.  
 
Commissioner Host thanked the City Attorney for her work on the SLUP language.  
 
Commissioner Nickita said he was not concerned about parking moving into the residential areas, even 
as a resident of the nearby neighborhood. He said RH would catalyze development in the area and was 
glad to hear resident support for the project.  
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, Commissioner Sherman 
   Commissioner Nickita 
   Commissioner Host 
   Mayor Pro Tem Longe 
   Commissioner Baller 
   Commissioner Hoff 

Mayor Boutros 
            

 Nays, None  
 

Mayor Boutros thanked everyone involved for their work on the project. 
 
Mr. Saroki thanked the City on behalf of the applicant team. 



8  August 9, 2021 

 
Commission discussion on items from prior meeting.  
 
Commission Items for Future Discussion. A motion is required to bring up the item for future discussion at 
the next reasonable agenda, no discussion on the topic will happen tonight. 
 
Commissioner Host recommended the City consider moving the City Manager’s report to the beginning of 
meetings, per Mr. Haig’s prior recommendation. 
 
There was no support for Commissioner Host’s recommendation since the report is available in writing on 
the City website. Mayor Pro Tem Longe noted that the report was already being made more prominent on 
the City website per prior Commission request. 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Nickita, seconded by Commissioner Hoff: 
To discuss how ordinances might address the use of shading devices by businesses in the City. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, Commissioner Nickita 
   Commissioner Hoff 

Mayor Boutros 
   Commissioner Host 
   Mayor Pro Tem Longe 
   Commissioner Sherman 
   Commissioner Baller 
         

 Nays, None  
 

VIII. REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA 
 

IX. COMMUNICATIONS 
 

X. REPORTS 
A. Commissioner Reports 

1. Notice to appoint to the Historic District Commission 
2. Notice to appoint to the Design Review Board 

B. Commissioner Comments 
 
In reply to Commissioner Baller, CM Markus stated he would direct the Police Department to study how 
other communities choose where to locate crosswalks and to return to the Commission with the 
information. 
 
Commissioner Host stated that Alexandria, Virginia does not charge veterans or retirees municipal property 
taxes and suggested Birmingham look into doing something similar. 
 
CM Markus stated that the City used to do exchanges with other municipalities, including Alexandria, VA, 
and that those exchanges were very beneficial for the participants. He recommended the City consider 
resuming those exchanges if and when Covid-19 is more under control.  
 

C. Advisory Boards, Committees, Commissions’ Reports and Agendas 
D. Legislation 



9  August 9, 2021 

E. City Staff 
 1. Update on Recent Rain Events 
 

CCE Surhigh presented the report. 
 
CM Markus stated: 

● The City would be looking into issues in particular areas that might be exacerbating the flooding; 
● The City would likely need to look at its ordinance requirements for pervious and impervious 

surfaces; 
● Residents should avoid doing anything that introduces substantial amounts of water into their sewer 

systems, such as laundry, during significant rain events in order to reduce the chance of flooding; 
and, 

● The City installed weather stations at both Fire Stations to in order to better track local weather 
and to use the data to make future recommendations. 

 
Given the area’s high water table, it was also noted that creating subgrade living spaces entails personal 
risk. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Longe noted that flooding is an issue throughout southeast Michigan. 
 
CCE Surhigh asked residents to report their flooding issues to the Engineering Department if they have not 
yet done so.  
 
Public Comment 
In reply to Stacy Chambers, CCE Surhigh said he could make the additional exhibits from his report available 
on the City website.  
 
In reply to Commissioner Baller, CCE Surhigh explained that flooding can sometimes occur on streets with 
updated sewers because sewers in the surrounding areas have not yet been updated.  
 
Ms. Chambers asked if some kind of citizen representation could be created for flooding discussions. 
 
Mayor Boutros reminded Ms. Chambers that all Commissioners are residents of the City.  
 
Commissioner Baller said the present discussion evidenced the City’s continuing investment in resolving 
the issue.  
 
Ms. Chambers said that having the conversation three hours into the present meeting likely made the 
discussion inaccessible to many households.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Longe and Commissioners Host and Nickita all spoke about their experiences with flooding 
and the frustration it brings.  
 
Commissioner Nickita noted that flooding has been a decades-long issue in the area and that the City was 
continuing its efforts to mitigate flooding’s effects.  
 

 2. Qualifications for Appointment as a Museum Board Member 
 
INFORMATION ONLY 



10  August 9, 2021 

XI. ADJOURN 
Mayor Boutros adjourned the meeting at 10:39 p.m. 



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

08/11/2021

08/23/2021

PAPER CHECK

600.0043RD DISTRICT COURT002551*280712

1,000.00A FORDABLE PLBG & MECH INCMISC280713

457.47AETNA BEHAVIORAL HEALTH LLC007266*280714

450.00ALL SEASON GUTTERS INC003233280715

2,313.00ALL SEASON GUTTERS INC003233*280715

100.00ALL SEASONS ROOFSMISC280716

100.00ANTHONY BRANHAMMISC280717

803.00JOBMATCH LLC DBA APPLICANTPRO008977*280718

11,815.85AUTOMATED BENEFIT SVCS INC004027*280721

127.68BALL EQUIPMENT008059280722

79.20BATTERIES PLUS BULBS003012280723

424.77BIDNET004931280724

499.98BILLINGS LAWN EQUIPMENT INC.002231280725

950.40BOLYARD LUMBER004244280727

71.00BOUND TREE MEDICAL, LLC003526280728

675,442.76C.E. GLEESON CONSTRUCTORS INC009281*280730

1,085.55CADILLAC ASPHALT, LLC003907280731

280.02CAPITAL TIRE, INC.007732*280733

113.97CINTAS CORPORATION000605280736

909.00CMP DISTRIBUTORS INC002234280737

570.00COCM004905*280738

1,548.00COFINITY004026*280739

171.80COMCAST008955*280740

2,318.80COMERICA BANK000979280742

305.34CONSUMERS ENERGY000627*280743

100.00DEEB SHALHOUB REVOC LIVING TRUSTMISC280746

156.00DELWOOD SUPPLY000177280747

162.00DENTEMAX, LLC006907*280748

543.47DINGES FIRE COMPANY008641280750

686.89DTE ENERGY000179*280751

95.45DTE ENERGY000179*280752

21.85DTE ENERGY000179*280753

97.59DTE ENERGY000179*280754

37.56DTE ENERGY000179*280755

155.63DTE ENERGY000179*280756

1,720.76DTE ENERGY000179*280757

189.07DTE ENERGY000179*280758

1,547.67DTE ENERGY000179*280759

60.90DTE ENERGY000179*280760

1,126.81DTE ENERGY000179*280761

154.27DTE ENERGY000179*280762

823.35DTE ENERGY000179*280763

5B



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

       AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

08/11/2021

08/23/2021

500.00 ENZO WATER SERVICE009100*280764

2,240.00 ETNA SUPPLY001495280767

3,196.00 FAIR-WAY TILE & CARPET, INC.004574*280768

43.42 FEDEX000936*280769

7,562.63 FIERA CAPITAL INC008161280770

200.00 FINISHED BASEMENTS PLUS LLCMISC280771

369.00 FLEETPRIDE INC006654280772

832.46 GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY SYSTEMS, INC.007335280774

125.93 GORDON FOOD004604*280775

1,204.16 GRAINGER008293280776

120.00 GUNNERS METER & PARTS INC001531280778

209.95 HASTINGS AIR-ENERGY CONTROL INC003132280779

1,043.58 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES001956*280780

100.00 HOME INSPECTION PLUS INCMISC280781

1,381.00 HYDROCORP000948280783

500.00 ITEC ENTERPRISES LLCMISC280785

179.67 J.B. DLCO & MULTISTATE001625280786

2,743.93 J.T. EXPRESS, LTD.000344280787

30.00 JACK D. PESHA009299*280788

1,128.25 JACK TODD- PETTY CASHMISC*280789

277.50 JERRY'S TIRE INC008564280790

100.00 JOHN C COOK009249*280791

2,038.25 JOHN R. GLASS007379280793

750.00 JOHN R. GLASS007379*280793

6,456.65 JULIA COONEYMISC*280794

500.00 KARP HOLDINGS INCMISC280795

100.00 KELLETT CONSTRUCTION COMPANYMISC280797

21,851.54 KIMBERLY TZOUMAKASMISC*280798

375.00 MIKE LABRIOLA002466*280800

155.50 LEXISNEXIS RISK DATA MANAGEMENT INC006817280801

124.02 JIM LOTRIDGE001171*280802

475.00 LYNDSAY AND JASON BALLMISC*280803

73.00 MERGE MOBILE, INC.008793280805

750.00 MOBILE DUELING PIANOS008509*280807

100.00 MOSHER DOLANMISC280808

694.88 MULTISTATE TRANSMISSIONS002010280810

359.80 NATIONAL TIME & SIGNAL CORP000668*280811

1,349.25 OAKLAND COUNTY000477*280813

4,594.41 OAKLAND SCHOOLS000675*280815

179.00 OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH CENTERS004370*280816

383.53 OFFICE DEPOT INC000481*280817

1,472.00 OLSON ROOFING AND SIDING, INC.MISC*280819

358.80 P.F. PETTIBONE & CO.006189280820



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

       AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

08/11/2021

08/23/2021

174.00 PODS ENTERPRISES, LLC008858*280821

602.52 QMI GROUP INC002852*280822

1,362.76 R & R FIRE TRUCK REPAIR INC004137280823

13,026.00 R & R FIRE TRUCK REPAIR INC004137*280823

100.00 Rapid RoofingMISC280824

100.00 ROBERTO PELINIMISC280825

18.24 ROCHESTER LAWN EQUIPMENT CENTER INC000495280826

104.20 SHERWIN-WILLIAMS COMPANY007142*280827

200.00 SINGH CONSTRUCTIONMISC280828

191.18 SPARTAN DISTRIBUTORS INC000260280830

350.00 STANLEY STEEMER INTERNATIONAL INC.MISC*280831

27,043.91 STATE OF MICHIGAN005351*280833

100.00 STEVEN JAMES OLSONMISC280834

100.00 STRAWBERRY SOLARMISC280835

100.00 Sun Medical Equipment Company, Inc.MISC280836

240.00 TECHRADIUM, INC007087280838

100.00 THREE C'S LANDSCAPINGMISC280839

3,600.00 TRI-COUNTY AQUATICS, INC.007587280840

170.00 TURNER SANITATION, INC004379*280841

15,375.25 UBS FIN SERVICES, INC005331*280842

985.08 VERIZON WIRELESS000158*280844

76.02 VERIZON WIRELESS000158*280845

152.54 VERIZON WIRELESS000158*280846

500.00 WALLSIDE INCMISC280849

300.00 WECHSLER CONSTRUCTION LLCMISC280850

137.53 WEINGARTZ SUPPLY000299*280851

5,960.48 WOODWARD BROWN ASSOCIATES, LLCMISC*280852

692.33 XEROX CORPORATION008391*280853

261.34 JORDAN ZALE008438*280854

SUBTOTAL PAPER CHECK $849,568.35

ACH TRANSACTION

142,119.51 ABS- AUTOMATED BENEFIT SVCS, INC008847*4082

380.00 ABEL ELECTRONICS INC0022844083

1,317.50 ABEL ELECTRONICS INC002284*4083

22.09 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091264084

774.87 BELL EQUIPMENT COMPANY000518*4087

0.53 BEVERLY HILLS ACE007345*4088

98.00 BIRMINGHAM LAWN MAINTENANCE0066834089

3,085,211.99 BIRMINGHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS-TAXES008840*4090

115.50 BLUE WATER INDUSTRIAL PRODUCTS INC000542*4091

75,049.20 CITY OF BIRMINGHAM #2450092974092

99.76 DORNBOS SIGN & SAFETY INC000565*4093

10,677.71 DUNCAN PARKING TECH INC001077*4095



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

       AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

08/11/2021

08/23/2021

125.00 EQUATURE000995*4096

163.85 FOUR SEASON RADIATOR SERVICE INC0002174097

468.35 FOUR SEASON RADIATOR SERVICE INC000217*4097

943.80 GRAINGER000243*4098

1,500.00 HART PAVEMENT STRIPING CORP003938*4099

4,946.33 INSIGHT INVESTMENT008851*4100

21,593.01 J.H. HART URBAN FORESTRY0002614101

2,325.00 J.H. HART URBAN FORESTRY000261*4101

462.49 JCR SUPPLY INC0092984102

484.67 JOE'S AUTO PARTS, INC.003458*4103

2,353.50 LEE & ASSOCIATES CO., INC.005550*4104

9,700.00 LOGICALIS INC008158*4106

2,815.80 MUNICIPAL EMERGENCY SERVICES001035*4110

4,814,303.16 OAKLAND COUNTY TREASURER- TAX PYMNT008843*4111

265.00 PAUL C SCOTT PLUMBING INC006853*4112

350.00 PREMIER SAFETY0082694113

949.80 QUALITY COACH COLLISION001062*4114

845.00 SIGNS-N-DESIGNS INC003785*4115

79,395.00 SOCRRA0002544116

83.25 VESCO OIL CORPORATION0002984117

1,578.00 VILLAGE OF BEVERLY HILLS0029744118

28,873.98 WESTWOOD TRUST007374*4119

1,641.76 WHITLOCK BUSINESS SYSTEMS, INC.007278*4120

SUBTOTAL ACH TRANSACTION $8,292,033.41

*-Indicates checks released in advance and prior to commission approval in order to avoid penalty
or to meet contractual agreement/obligation.

Mark Gerber
Finance Director/ Treasurer

All bills, invoices and other evidences of claim have been audited and approved for payment.

GRAND TOTAL $9,141,601.76



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

08/18/2021

08/23/2021

PAPER CHECK

984.38POSTMASTER000801*280855

2,304.0021ST CENTURY MEDIA- MICHIGAN005430280856

1,000.0048TH DISTRICT COURT000855*280857

194.857UP DETROIT006965*280858

6,650.00AARON'S EXCAVATING INC005358280859

100.00AERTS, GREGORY GMISC280860

603.33ALLSTAR PRO GOLF007622280861

11,025.30ANDERSON ECKSTEIN WESTRICK INC000167280863

10,060.93ANDRUS ARCHITECTURE INC009253280864

370.46AT&T006759*280865

436.58AT&T006759*280866

108.53AT&T006759*280867

1,800.00BIG BEAVER PLUMBING,HEATING INC.000522280869

100.00Birmingham Pub, LLCMISC280871

37.40JACQUELYN BRITO006953*280872

316.14DAVID BUTTIGIEG008334*280873

2,966.69CADILLAC ASPHALT, LLC003907280874

3,759.55CARDNO, INC.007933280876

393.08CDW GOVERNMENT INC000444*280877

3,606.92CHARLES C WANGE TRUSTMISC*280879

25.24CINTAS CORPORATION000605280880

40.25COFFEE BREAK SERVICE, INC.004188*280882

137.18COL'S FAMILY RESTAURANT009167280883

298.05COMCAST008955*280884

258.35COMCAST BUSINESS007774*280885

615.74CONSUMERS ENERGY000627*280886

1,024.75CONTRACTORS CONNECTION INC001367280887

125.00CRYDERMAN & ASSOCIATESMISC280888

152.00DANIELLE SUSSERMISC280889

3,636.50DAVEY RESOURCE GROUP006969280890

173.75DE LAGE LANDEN FINANCIAL SVCS INC008005280891

3,995.00DIRECT FITNESS SOLUTIONSMISC280892

9,425.00DIXON ENGINEERING INC001555280893

549.45DOG WASTE DEPOT009130280894

78.60DOWNRIVER REFRIGERATION000190280895

31.29DTE ENERGY000179*280896

68.49DTE ENERGY000179*280897

42,011.30DTE ENERGY000180*280898

305.00EAGLE LANDSCAPING & SUPPLY007505280899

720.00EGANIX, INC.007538*280900

2,697.00FAUM SOLUTIONS LLC009317280901

50.95FEDEX000936280902

5C



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

       AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

08/18/2021

08/23/2021

510.27 GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SERVICES, IN006384280903

1,767.88 GORDON FOOD004604*280904

100.00 GREAT OAKS LANDSCAPEMISC280905

100.00 HAROLD PRAMEKAMOLMISC280907

869.50 HIGHEST HONOR, INC007339280908

200.00 HM HOMES LLCMISC280909

527.06 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES001956*280910

200.00 I SIGNSMISC280911

100.00 INSTREAM PMMISC280912

7.65 JACK D. PESHA009299*280913

1,375.35 JACK TODD- PETTY CASHMISC*280914

225.00 JAY CURTISMISC*280915

4,591.40 JORDAN BOLTONMISC*280916

1,354.44 JORDAN PHYLICIA WOODLEYMISC*280917

531.54 KAREN C SCHOENMISC*280918

956.89 KAREN KADOURAMISC*280919

5,900.00 KELLY BUILDING & DEVELOPMENT CO LLCMISC280920

100.00 KEVIN LAURENCE HESSENMISC280921

365.00 KGM DISTRIBUTORS INC004088280922

1,899.88 KIMBERLY FENCE & SUPPLY009133280923

200.00 KIRCOS, DAVIDMISC280924

112.92 KLM BIKE & FITNESS INC005350280925

25.00 ADAM KNOWLES007511*280926

650.00 KRIL ENTERPRISES, INC.MISC280927

39.34 KROGER COMPANY000362*280928

200.00 LINK BUILDING & DEVELOPNING INMISC280929

370.00 MAJIK GRAPHICS INC001417280930

5,325.67 MARY ANN YAMAMOTOMISC*280931

500.00 MASTERWORKS CONTRACTING LLCMISC280932

594.00 MAX R006632280933

9,344.93 MEADOWBROOK INSURANCE GROUP001505*280934

566.87 METAL MART U.S.A.008207280936

5,880.52 MHM CONSTRUCTION LLC009247280937

1,467.00 MICHIGAN POLICE EQUIP.003099280938

100.00 MICHIGAN'S BEST DECK BUILDERSMISC280939

1,400.00 MILLCREEK CONSTRUCTION MGMT COMISC280940

59,976.00 MML WORKERS' COMP FUND000649*280941

100.00 MOCERI PLUMBING & HEATING INCMISC280942

28.00 MOHAMED F. CHAMMAA007744*280943

485,322.14 OAKLAND COUNTY000477*280944

196.00 OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH CENTERS004370*280945

1,819.72 OFFICE DEPOT INC000481*280946

500.00 PELLA WINDOWS & DOORS, INC.MISC280947



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

       AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

08/18/2021

08/23/2021

451.12 PEPSI COLA001753*280948

100.00 PINNACLE HOMES OF MICHIGAN LLCMISC280949

7,762.28 POCO SALES, INC009087280950

78.00 PTS COMMUNICATIONS006625280951

309.99 RED WING BUSINESS ADVANTAGE ACCT005379280953

100.00 Richard ScheckMISC280954

200.00 RICHARD WEINGARTNERMISC280955

100.00 ROY M SHELEF OR ELANA B SHELEFMISC280956

13.80 RUSSELL HARDWARE COMPANY000221280957

206.79 SAM'S CLUB/SYNCHRONY BANK002806*280958

200.00 SCHOENHERR HOMES LLCMISC280959

100.00 SHERRIFF-GOSLIN CO.MISC280960

35.56 SHERWIN WILLIAMS COMPANY007114280961

233.05 SHERWIN-WILLIAMS COMPANY007142280962

122.23 SHERWIN- WILLIAMS COMPANY008252280963

7,940.00 SIGNS BY CRANNIE, INC.007514*280964

526.47 SITEONE LANDSCAPE SUPPLY, INC008073*280965

1,120.30 STRYKER SALES CORPORATION004544280966

69,342.87 SUPERIOR SCAPE, INC006749*280967

200.00 TEMPLETON BUILDING COMPANYMISC280968

7,390.70 THOMAS PETER HILDITCHMISC*280969

780.00 THOMAS SEBOLD & ASSOCIATES, INMISC280970

266.47 TOP TECH AUTO REPAIRMISC280971

900.00 TREMONT CONSTRUCTION LLCMISC280972

10,000.00 TREMONT MANAGEMENTMISC280973

102.04 TRI-COUNTY INTL TRUCKS, INC.005481280974

150.00 TURNER SANITATION, INC004379280975

1,200.00 UPHILL PRODUCTIONS008768*280976

86.58 UPTOWN MARKET OF BIRMINGHAM008941280977

1,048.52 US SIGNAL COMPANY LLC009266280978

22.00 VALLEY CITY LINEN007226280979

308.16 VERIZON WIRELESS000158*280980

1,500.00 WALLSIDE INCMISC280981

41.29 PAUL WELLS000301*280982

2,500.00 WINDY CITY CONSTRUCTIONMISC280983

3,494.59 P&W GOLF SUPPLY LLC002416280984

SUBTOTAL PAPER CHECK $828,569.81

ACH TRANSACTION

24,146.32 ABS- AUTOMATED BENEFIT SVCS, INC008847*4122

449.99 ABEL ELECTRONICS INC002284*4123

1,571.60 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091264124

36,486.25 BEIER HOWLETT P.C.000517*4125

136.08 BEVERLY HILLS ACE007345*4126



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

       AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

08/18/2021

08/23/2021

392.00 BIRMINGHAM LAWN MAINTENANCE0066834127

4,378.83 CANFIELD EQUIPMENT SERVICE INC.0078754128

540.00 CLUB PROPHET008044*4129

325,711.73 DI PONIO CONTRACTING INC0060774130

144.51 FIRST CHOICE COFFEE SERV0061814131

3,284.50 FLEIS AND VANDENBRINK ENG. INC007314*4132

11,453.00 G2 CONSULTING GROUP LLC007807*4133

49,763.32 HUBBELL ROTH & CLARK INC0003314134

314.06 INNOVATIVE OFFICE TECHNOLOGY GROUP0070354135

92.00 J.C. EHRLICH CO. INC.007870*4136

72.97 JOE'S AUTO PARTS, INC.003458*4137

1,031.25 KELLER THOMA000891*4138

2,086.45 KONE INC004085*4139

3,174.00 LEE & ASSOCIATES CO., INC.0055504140

789.70 LEE & ASSOCIATES CO., INC.005550*4140

16,592.25 NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS0018644141

1,050.96 NYE UNIFORM COMPANY006359*4142

200.00 OSCAR W. LARSON CO.002767*4143

308.86 PENCHURA, LLC006027*4144

2,253.00 QUALITY COACH COLLISION001062*4145

74.00 ROSE PEST SOLUTIONS001181*4146

280.00 SIGNS-N-DESIGNS INC003785*4147

222,046.04 SOCWA001097*4148

220.50 VIGILANTE SECURITY INC000969*4149

SUBTOTAL ACH TRANSACTION $709,044.17

*-Indicates checks released in advance and prior to commission approval in order to avoid penalty
or to meet contractual agreement/obligation.

Mark Gerber
Finance Director/ Treasurer

All bills, invoices and other evidences of claim have been audited and approved for payment.

GRAND TOTAL $1,537,613.98



MEMORANDUM 

DATE:  

TO:  

FROM: 

APPROVED: 

SUBJECT: 

Planning Division 

August 23rd, 2021 

Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 

Nicholas Dupuis, City Planner 

Jana L. Ecker, Planning Director 

Set Public Hearing 260 N. Old Woodward – The Morrie – Special 
Land Use Permit Amendment, Final Site Plan & Design Review   

INTRODUCTION: 
The applicant has submitted an application for a Special Land Use Permit amendment, Final Site 
Plan and Design Review for a new outdoor dining platform at the existing Morrie restaurant in 
Downtown Birmingham. 

BACKGROUND: 
On August 11th, 2021, the Planning Board motioned to recommend approval to the City 
Commission the Special Land Use, Final Site Plan and Design Review application for 260 N. Old 
Woodward with the following conditions: 

1. The applicant must obtain an Outdoor Dining Permit and enter into a contract with the City
for the SLUP Amendment;

2. All outdoor activity must cease at the close of business;
3. The applicant will be required to reduce the length of the platform to be less than the

storefront width to retain two unobstructed on street parking spaces between the platform
and the corner to the south;

4. Obtain a favorable recommendation from the Advisory Parking Committee prior to City
Commission review; and

5. Comply with the requirements of all departments.

At this time, the Planning Division is working with the applicant to resolve all outstanding issues, 
including a review at the Advisory Parking Committee that is scheduled on September 1st, 2021. 

LEGAL REVIEW: 
The City Attorney has reviewed this application and has no objections as to form and content. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
There are no fiscal impacts for this agenda item. 

PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 

5D



As required for Special Land Use Permit and Final Site Plan Reviews, a legal ad was placed in a 
newspaper of local circulation to advertise the nature of the request in advance of the August 11th, 
2021 Planning Board meeting, and notices were sent out to all property owners and tenants within 
300’ of the property.  In addition, a second round of notices will be sent out to advertise the public 
hearing at the City Commission on September 20, 2021.  

SUMMARY: 
The Planning Division requests that the City Commission set a public hearing on September 20, 
2021 to consider the Special Land Use Permit amendment, Final Site Plan and Design Review 
application for 260 N. Old Woodward – The Morrie.  

ATTACHMENTS: 
Please find attached the following documents for your review: 

• Draft Special Land Use Permit Resolution
• Planning Division Report
• Site/Design Plans
• Application & Supporting Documents

SUGGESTED COMMISSION ACTION: 
To make a motion to adopt a resolution setting a public hearing for September 20, 2021 to 
consider the Special Land Use Permit amendment, Final Site Plan and Design Review 
application for 260 N. Old Woodward – The Morrie – to allow the addition of a new outdoor 
dining platform in the N. Old Woodward right-of-way. 



THE MORRIE 
260 N. OLD WOODWARD 

Special Land Use Permit Amendment 2021 

WHEREAS, THE MORRIE filed an application in 2018 pursuant to Article 7, section 7.34 
of Chapter 126, Zoning, of the City Code to operate a food and drink establishment serving 
alcoholic liquors in the B4 (Business-Residential) zoning district in accordance Article 2, Section 
2.37 (C)(2)(a) of Chapter 126, Zoning, of the City Code; 

WHEREAS, A Special Land Use Permit amendment application was filed in July 2021 for 
approval of a new outdoor dining platform located in the N. Old Woodward right-of-way 
adjacent to THE MORRIE at 260 N. Old Woodward; 

WHEREAS, the land for which the Special Land Use Permit amendment is sought is 
located on the east side of N. Old Woodward, north of Hamilton Row; 

WHEREAS, The land is zoned B4, which permits the operation of food and drink 
establishments serving alcoholic liquors for on premise consumption with a Special Land Use 
Permit; 

WHEREAS, Article 7, section 7.34 of Chapter 126, Zoning requires a Special Land Use 
Permit amendment to be considered and acted upon by the Birmingham City Commission, 
after receiving recommendations on the site plan and design from the Planning Board for the 
proposed Special Land Use; 

WHEREAS, The Planning Board on August 11, 2021 reviewed the application for a Special 
Land Use Permit amendment,  Final Site Plan and Design Review and recommended approval to 
the City Commission to allow the construction of a new outdoor dining platform in the N. Old 
Woodward right-of-way with the following conditions: 

1. The applicant must obtain an Outdoor Dining Permit and enter into a contract with
the City for the SLUP Amendment;

2. All outdoor activity must cease at the close of business;
3. The applicant will be required to reduce the length of the platform to be less than

the storefront width to retain two unobstructed on street parking spaces between
the platform and the corner to the south;

4. Obtain a favorable recommendation from the Advisory Parking Committee prior to
City Commission review; and

5. Comply with the requirements of all departments.

WHEREAS, The applicant has agreed to provide all requested information and to 
comply with the requests of all City departments; 

WHEREAS, The Birmingham City Commission has reviewed THE MORRIE’S Special Land 
Use Permit amendment application and the standards for such review as set forth in Article 7, 
section 7.36 of Chapter 126, Zoning, of the City Code; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, The Birmingham City Commission finds the 



standards imposed under the City Code have been met, subject to the conditions below, and that 
THE MORRIE’S application for a Special Land Use Permit amendment, Final Site Plan and Design 
Review at 260 N. Old Woodward is hereby approved; 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Commission determines that to assure 
continued compliance with Code standards and to protect public health, safety, and welfare, this 
Special Land Use Permit is granted subject to the following conditions: 

1. THE MORRIE will close outdoor dining areas at the end of business each
day of the week;

2. THE MORRIE shall abide by all provisions of the Birmingham City Code;
and

3. The Special Land Use Permit may be canceled by the City Commission
upon finding that the continued use is not in the public interest.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That failure to comply with any of the above conditions shall 
result in termination of the Special Land Use Permit. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, Except as herein specifically provided, THE MORRIE and its 
heirs, successors, and assigns shall be bound by all ordinances of the City of Birmingham in 
effect at the time of the issuance of this permit, and as they may be subsequently amended. 
Failure of THE MORRIE to comply with all the ordinances of the City may result in the Commission 
revoking this Special Land Use Permit. 

MAY IT BE FURTHER RESOLVED that THE MORRIE is recommended for the operation 
of a new outdoor dining platform at the existing food and drink establishment serving alcoholic 
beverages on premises, above all others, subject to final inspection. 

I, Alexandria Bingham, City Clerk of the City of Birmingham, Michigan, do hereby certify that 
the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the resolution adopted by the Birmingham City 
Commission at its regular meeting held on September 20, 2021. 

Alexandria Bingham 
City Clerk  



MEMORANDUM 
Planning Division 

DATE: August 11, 2021 

TO: Jana Ecker, Planning Director 

FROM: Nicholas Dupuis, City Planner 

SUBJECT: 260 N. Old Woodward – The Morrie – Special Land Use Permit 
Amendment, Final Site Plan & Design Review  

The subject site, 260 N. Old Woodward, is currently used as a restaurant within an existing five-
story commercial building fronting N. Old Woodward. The applicant has submitted a Special Land 
Use Permit Amendment and Final Site Plan/Design Review (SLUP) application requesting the 
addition of a dining platform in the N. Old Woodward right-of-way to their outdoor dining plan. 

In July 2020, The Morrie was approved for expanded outdoor dining pursuant to the Temporary 
Outdoor Dining expansion allowanced adopted by the City Commission on May 11th, 2020 and 
extended on March 8th, 2021. The expansion involved the addition of an 840 sq. ft. platform 
within the parking area in front of the property. The applicant has submitted the SLUP application 
seeking permanent approval of this area. 

The Birmingham Code of Ordinances states that a contract for transfer and a Special Land Use 
Permit are required for all licenses approved under Chapter 10 – Alcoholic Liquors. The licensee 
must comply with all provisions of the contract and Special Land Use Permit, and any amendments 
thereto as a condition of granting of a requested transfer. Accordingly, the applicant must obtain 
a recommendation from the Planning Board on the Special Land Use and Final Site Plan/Design 
Review application, which is then reviewed for final consideration by the City Commission.  

1.0 Land Use and Zoning 

1.1 Existing Land Use – Five-story multi-tenant commercial building. 

1.2 Zoning – B4 (Business-Residential) & D4 (Downtown Overlay) 

1.3 Summary of Adjacent Land Use and Zoning –  



North South East West 
Existing 
Land Use Commercial Commercial Parking Commercial 

Existing 
Zoning 
District 

B4 (Business 
Residential) 

B4 (Business 
Residential) 

PP (Public 
Property) 

B4 (Business 
Residential) 

Overlay 
Zoning 
District 

D4 D4 D4/P D4

2.0 Setback and Height Requirements 

Please see the attached zoning compliance summary sheet for details on setback and 
height requirements. There are currently no issues with bulk, height or placement with 
the Special Land Use Permit, Final Site Plan/Design Review application submitted. 

3.0 Screening and Landscaping 

3.1 Dumpster Screening – There are no changes proposed to the dumpster or 
screening on site. 

3.2 Parking Lot Screening – There are no changes proposed to the parking lot or 
associated screening. 

3.3 Mechanical Equipment Screening – There are no changes proposed to the 
mechanical equipment or screening on site. 

3.4 Landscaping – There are no changes proposed to the landscaping on site. 
However, the applicant is proposing to add planters at regular intervals in the 
platform railing system to enclose the new outdoor dining space. 

3.5 Streetscape – There are no changes proposed to the streetscape. 

4.0 Parking, Loading and Circulation 

4.1 Parking – There are no changes to the parking requirements on site. 

4.2 Loading – There are no changes proposed to the loading requirements. 

4.3 Vehicular Circulation and Access – There are no changes proposed to the 
vehicular circulation and access. 



4.4 Pedestrian Circulation and Access – There are no changes to pedestrian 
circulation and access on the site. 

 
5.0 Lighting 

There are no new light fixtures or changes in lighting proposed that will significantly 
alter the light intensity on the site at this time. 
 

6.0 Departmental Reports 
 

6.1 Engineering Division – The Engineering Division has the following comments: 
 Patio Length is limited to actual store width.  
 Note parking spaces either side of patio that are affected by the patio 

and can no longer be used due to the obstruction, will require payment 
for spaces. Additionally planters should be placed in these spaces to 
prevent vehicles from entering the spaces for safety purposes. 

 
6.2 Department of Public Services – DPS has no concerns. 

 
6.3 Fire Department – The Fire Department has provided the following comments: 

 
1. No storage of propane on the street side of the establishment.  This 

particular building has no place that meets code to store propane 
cylinders due to the layout.  They were fined in June for improper storage 
of LP gas.   

2. Do not block any fire hydrant or FDC.   
3. If allowed to use gas fired heaters, 5 feet of clearance shall be met for 

combustible awnings, umbrellas and egress pathways per code. 
4. Arrange platform so it does not impede traffic lane. 

 
6.4 Police Department – The Police Department has no concerns. 

 
6.5 Building Division – As requested, the Building Department has examined the 

plans for the proposed project referenced above. The plans were provided to the 
Planning Department for site plan review purposes only and present conceptual 
elevations and floor plans. Although the plans lack sufficient detail to perform a 
code review, the following comments are offered for Planning Design Review 
purposes and applicant consideration: 

 
1. Provide a section detail showing how the platform will be constructed.  
2. Access to the platform from the sidewalk must meet barrier free and 

ADA requirements. Provide details to demonstrate compliance.  
 
 
 



7.0 Design Review 
There are no changes proposed to the building at this time. However, the new dining 
platform is subject to several design requirements found in Article 4, Section 4.44 of the 
Zoning Ordinance.  In accordance with Article 4, Section 4.44 of the Zoning Ordinance, 
the following outdoor dining standards apply: 

A. Outdoor Dining: Outdoor dining is permitted immediately next to the principal 
use, subject to Site Plan Review, and the following conditions: 
1. Outdoor dining areas shall provide and service refuse containers within the 

outdoor dining area and maintain the area in good order. 
2. All outdoor activity must cease at the close of business or as noted in 

subsection 3 below. 
3. When an outdoor dining area is immediately adjacent to any single-family 

or multiple-family residential district, all outdoor activity must cease at the 
close of business or 10:00 p.m., whichever is earlier. 

4. Outdoor dining may be permitted on the sidewalk throughout the year with 
a valid Outdoor Dining License, provided that all outdoor dining fixtures 
and furnishings must be stored indoors each night between November 16 
and March 31 to allow for snow removal. 

5. All tables and chairs provided in the outdoor dining area shall be 
constructed primarily of metal, wood, or material of comparable quality. 

6. Table umbrellas shall be considered under Site Plan Review and shall not 
impede sight lines into a retail establishment, pedestrian flow in the 
outdoor dining area, or pedestrian or vehicular traffic flow outside the 
outdoor dining area. 

7. For outdoor dining located in the public right-of-way: 
a. All such uses shall be subject to a license from the city, upon forms 

provided by the Community Development Department, contingent on 
compliance with all city codes, including any conditions required by the 
Planning Board in conjunction with Site Plan approval. 

b. In order to safeguard the flow of pedestrians on the public sidewalk, 
such uses shall maintain an unobstructed sidewalk width as required 
by the Planning Board, but in no case less than 5 feet. 

c. Outdoor dining is permitted to extend in the right-of-way in front of 
neighboring properties, with the written permission of the property 
owner(s) and with Planning Board approval, if such property is vacant 
or the first floor storefront(s) is/are vacant. Outdoor dining areas may 
extend up to 50% of the width of the neighboring lot(s) storefront(s), 
or up to 50% of the lot(s) frontage, if such lot is vacant. 

d. City Commission approval is also required for outdoor dining extensions 
onto neighboring property if the establishment making such a request 
holds a bistro license. 

e. An elevated, ADA compliant, enclosed platform may be erected on 
the street in front of an eating establishment to create an outdoor 
dining area from April 1 through November 15 only if the Engineering 



Department determines there is sufficient space available for this 
purpose given parking and traffic conditions. 

f. No such facility shall erect or install permanent fixtures in the public 
right-of-way. 

8. Outdoor dining is permitted in a B1 District at a rate of 4 seats for every 
12 linear feet of store frontage, with no more than 12 seats total 
per building; no elevated enclosed platforms on the street are permitted in 
a B1 District. 

 
As noted above, the applicant is proposing to install a new 840 sq. ft. dining platform in 
the off street parking area in the public right-of-way in front of the existing restaurant. 
The platform as proposed contains 9 tables and 36 additional seats. The proposed deck 
would add to an existing outdoor dining plan approved in 2018 which contains 4 tables 
and 14 chairs on an elevated platform on the sidewalk. The proposed plans include a 
trash receptacle, sanitation station and supply cabinet within the outdoor dining area. 
 
In accordance with section 4.44, all outdoor activity must cease at the close of business.   
 
The applicant is proposing 36 Aviator Collection aluminum chairs in black for use on the 
outdoor dining platform, as well as 9 Luca Collection tables constructed of black steel, 
thus meeting the material requirements for outdoor dining furniture.  In addition, the 
applicant is proposing a Tuscany square ballast railing system in black.  The railings are 
proposed in 8’ lengths, with 32” grey planters proposed between each section.  The 
railing sections are 3’ in height, and each section incorporates 2 solar fixtures by 
Hampton Bay at each end.   
 
The applicant is also proposing 9 Frankford Catalina umbrellas 6’ in diameter in dark 
grey with white piping.  One umbrella is proposed for each of the tables on the new 
outdoor dining platform.  The proposed table umbrellas do not block pedestrian or 
vehicular traffic flow, nor do they block the view into the interior of the restaurant. 
 
As the proposed platform is located in the public right-of-way, the applicant will be 
required to obtain a license from the City, as well as an Outdoor Dining permit.  The 
proposed platform location does provide the required 5’ wide pedestrian walkway on the 
sidewalk between the sidewalk outdoor seating and the furnishing zone.  However, 
the outdoor dining platform proposed extends beyond the width of The 
Morrie’s storefront.  The applicant will be required to reduce the length of the 
platform to the storefront width, or obtain a variance from the Board of 
Zoning Appeals.  In addition, the Planning Board should consider requiring 
the applicant to reduce the platform by 3’ at the south end of the storefront 
to retain two unobstructed on street parking spaces between the platform 
and the corner. 
  



The platform proposed by the applicant is proposed to 5 on street parking spaces, and 
is to be constructed at curb height.  The platform may only be installed from April 1 
through November 15.  The applicant will be required to pay for the use of all parking 
spaces partially or fully obstructed by the dining platform.  The applicant will be 
required to comply with the comments of the Engineering Department and to 
receive a favorable recommendation from the Advisory Parking Committee 
prior to review by the City Commission. 

 
8.0 Required Attachments 

 Submitted Not Submitted Not Required 
Existing Conditions Plan ☐ ☐ ☒ 
Detailed and Scaled Site Plan ☒ ☐ ☐ 
Certified Land Survey ☐ ☐ ☒ 
Interior Floor Plans ☒ ☐ ☐ 
Landscape Plan ☐ ☐ ☒ 
Photometric Plan ☐ ☐ ☒ 
Colored Elevations ☐ ☐ ☒ 
Material Specification Sheets ☒ ☐ ☐ 
Material Samples ☒ ☐ ☐ 
Site & Aerial Photographs ☒ ☐ ☐ 

 
9.0 Approval Criteria 

 
In accordance with Article 7, section 7.27 of the Zoning Ordinance, the proposed plans 
for development must meet the following conditions: 

 
(1) The location, size and height of the building, walls and fences shall be such that 

there is adequate landscaped open space so as to provide light, air and access 
to the persons occupying the structure. 

(2) The location, size and height of the building, walls and fences shall be such that 
there will be no interference with adequate light, air and access to adjacent lands 
and buildings. 

(3) The location, size and height of the building, walls and fences shall be such that 
they will not hinder the reasonable development of adjoining property nor 
diminish the value thereof. 

(4) The site plan, and its relation to streets, driveways and sidewalks, shall be such 
as to not interfere with or be hazardous to vehicular and pedestrian traffic. 

(5) The proposed development will be compatible with other uses and buildings in 
the neighborhood and will not be contrary to the spirit and purpose of this 
chapter. 



(6) The location, shape and size of required landscaped open space is such as to 
provide adequate open space for the benefit of the inhabitants of the building 
and the surrounding neighborhood. 
 

In addition, Article 7, Section 7.26 requires applications for a Special Land Use Permit 
to meet the following criteria: 
 

(1) The use is consistent with and will promote the intent and purpose of this 
Zoning Ordinance. 

(2) The use will be compatible with adjacent uses of land, the natural 
environment, and the capabilities of public services and facilities affected by 
the land use. 

(3) The use is consistent with the public health, safety and welfare of the city. 
(4) The use is in compliance with all other requirements of this Zoning 

Ordinance. 
(5) The use will not be injurious to the surrounding neighborhood. 
(6) The use is in compliance with state and federal statutes. 

 
10.0 Recommendation 

 
Based on a review of the site plans submitted, the Planning Division recommends that 
the Planning Board recommend APPROVAL of the Special Land Use Permit Amendment 
and Final Site Plan and Design Review with the following conditions: 
 

1. The applicant must obtain an Outdoor Dining Permit and enter into a contract 
with the City for the SLUP Amendment; 

2. All outdoor activity must cease at the close of business; 
3. The applicant will be required to reduce the length of the platform to be less 

than the storefront width to retain two unobstructed on street parking spaces 
between the platform and the corner to the south; 

4. Obtain a favorable recommendation from the Advisory Parking Committee prior 
to City Commission review;  and 

5. Comply with the requirements of all departments. 
  

11.0 Sample Motion Language  
 

Based on a review of the site plans submitted, the Planning Board recommends 
APPROVAL of the Special Land Use Permit Amendment to the City Commission with 
the following conditions: 
 

1. The applicant must obtain an Outdoor Dining Permit and enter into a contract 
with the City for the SLUP Amendment; 



2. All outdoor activity must cease at the close of business;  and 
3. Comply with the requirements of all departments. 

 
AND 

 
Based on a review of the site plans submitted, the Planning Board recommends 
APPROVAL of the Final Site Plan and Design Review to the City Commission with the 
following conditions: 
 

1. The applicant will be required to reduce the length of the platform to be less 
than the storefront width to retain two unobstructed on street parking spaces 
between the platform and the corner to the south; 

2. Obtain a favorable recommendation from the Advisory Parking Committee prior 
to City Commission review;  and 

3. Comply with the requirements of all departments. 
 

OR 
 
Motion to POSTPONE the Special Land Use Permit Amendment and Final Site Plan & 
Design Review for 260 N. Old Woodward – The Morrie – pending receipt of the following: 
 

1. ________________________________________________________________ 
2. ________________________________________________________________ 

 
OR 

 
Motion to recommend DENIAL to the City Commission of the Special Land Use Permit 
Amendment and the Final Site Plan & Design Review for 260 N. Old Woodward – The 
Morrie – for the following reasons: 
 

1. ________________________________________________________________ 
2. ________________________________________________________________ 
3. ________________________________________________________________ 

 
 



Page 1 of 3 
 

Zoning Compliance Summary | 260 N. Old Woodward | 8/11/21 
 

Zoning Compliance Summary Sheet 
 SLUP & Final Site Plan Review 

260 N. Old Woodward – The Morrie 
 

 
Existing Site: 5-Story Palladium Building 

Zoning: B4 (Business Residential) & D4 (Downtown Overlay) 
Land Use: Commercial 

 
Existing Land Use and Zoning of Adjacent Properties: 
 

 North South East West 
Existing 
Land Use Commercial Commercial Commercial Commercial 

Existing 
Zoning 
District 

B4 (Business 
Residential) 

B4 (Business 
Residential) 

PP (Public 
Property) 

B4 (Business 
Residential) 

Overlay 
Zoning 
District 

D4 D4 D4 / P D4 

 
 

Land Area:   Existing: No changes proposed 
Proposed: No changes proposed 

Dwelling Units: Existing: No changes proposed 
Proposed: No changes proposed  

 
Minimum Lot Area/Unit: Required: N/A 

Proposed: N/A 

Min. Floor Area /Unit: Required: N/A 
Proposed: N/A 

Max. Total Floor Area: Required: 100% 
Proposed: No changes proposed 

Min. Open Space: Required: N/A 
Proposed: N/A 

Max. Lot Coverage: Required: N/A 
Proposed: N/A 



Page 2 of 3 
 

Zoning Compliance Summary | 260 N. Old Woodward | 8/11/21 
 

Front Setback: Required: 0 ft. 
Proposed: No changes proposed 

Side Setbacks Required: 0 ft. 
Proposed: No changes proposed 

Rear Setback: Required: 10 ft. 
Proposed: No changes proposed 

Min. Front+Rear Setback Required: N/A 
Proposed: N/A 

 
Max. Bldg. Height: Permitted: No changes proposed 

Proposed: No changes proposed 

Min. Eave Height: Required: 20 ft. 
Proposed: No changes proposed 

Floor-Ceiling Height: Required: N/A 
Proposed: N/A 

Front Entry: Required: On frontage line 
Proposed: No changes proposed 

Absence of Bldg. Façade: Required: 32 in. screenwall 
Proposed: N/A 

Opening Width: Required: 25 ft. 
Proposed: N/A 

Parking: Required: None (Parking Assessment District) 
Proposed: No changes proposed 

Min. Parking Space Size: Required: 180 sq. ft. 
Proposed: N/A 

Parking in Frontage: Required: Off-street parking contained in the first story shall not be 
permitted within 10 feet of any building facade on a 
frontage line or between the building facade and the 
frontage line. 

Proposed: No changes proposed  

Loading Area: Required: None 
Proposed: None 

Screening:   



Page 3 of 3 
 

Zoning Compliance Summary | 260 N. Old Woodward | 8/11/21 
 

  
Parking: Required: 32 in. masonry screen wall 

Proposed: N/A 

Loading: Required: Minimum 6 ft. screen wall 
Proposed: N/A 

Rooftop Mechanical: Required: Fully screened from public view 
Proposed: N/A 

 
Elect. Transformer: Required: Obscured from public view 

Proposed: N/A 

Dumpster: Required: 6 ft. masonry w/ wood gate 
Proposed: No changes proposed  

 



PA
R
KI
N
G

M
ET
ER

PA
R
KI
N
G

M
ET
ER

PA
R
KI
N
G

M
ET
ER

PA
R
KI
N
G

M
ET
ER

LI
G
H
T

PO
LE

LI
G
H
T

PO
LE

PL
AN

TE
R

PL
AN

TE
R

PL
AN

TE
R

Sheet no.

Project no.

Sheet title

Issued dr/ch

Project title

biddison
a r c h i t e c t u r e  +  d e s i g n

t:248.554.9500
Birmingham, MI   48009
320 Martin St.   Suite 10

Consultants

PROPOSED BUILDING RENOVATION FOR:

The Morrie
Birmingham

260 N. Old Woodward

Birmingham, Michigan

EXTERIOR PATIO PERMIT 08.05.21

PROPOSED PATIO
PLAN AND DETAILS

2010.18

SP.101

56'-0"
PATIO LENGTH

SU
PP

LI
ES

TR
A

SH
SA

N
IT

A
TI

O
N

ST
A

TI
O

N

36"x36" TABLE OF 4 W/
UMBRELLA (TYP. OF 9)

6'-0"
MIN. SPACING

15
'-0

"
PA

TI
O

 W
ID

TH

6'
-0

"
M

IN
. S

PA
C

IN
G

SCALE: 3/16"=1'-0"

OVERALL FLOOR PLANNORTH

SCALE: NTS

TYP. PATIO TABLE SETUP
SCALE: NTS

PROPOSED PATIO STREET VIEW
SP.101

101.01

3'
-0

"

8'-0"2'-0"

LINE OF WOOD PATIO PLATFORM LINE OF PATIO PLATFORM

2'-0"8'-0"
TYP.

BLACK ALUMN. POWERCOATED FENCE

2'-0"8'-0"
TYP.

2'-0"8'-0"
TYP.

2'-0"8'-0"
TYP.

PLANTERS -TYP.

GAS HEATERS (TYP. OF 4)

SCALE: NTS

GUARD RAIL PATIO ELEVATION

BLACK ALUMN. POWERCOATED
GUARD RAIL (SEE CUTSHEET
SUBMISSION)

SP.101

101.01
SP.101

101.01

EXISTING PARKING

EXISTING PARKING

EXISTING SIDEWALK

EXISTING CURB

EXISTING PLANTEREXISTING PLANTEREXISTING PLANTER

EXISTING PATIO

THE MORRIE

PLANTERS -TYP.

EXISTING STOREFRONT

12
'-1

1 2"

5'
-2

1 2"

2'-0"

WOOD DECK
TOP OF CURB

N OLD WOODWARD AVE

W
IL

LI
TS

 S
T





Issued For:

Do not scale prints. Use figured dimensions.
©2007 JPRA Architects

Subject:

Project:

Job No:

Package Series Sheet No.

1787

APRIL 04, 2014 

ARCHITECTURAL 
SITE PLAN

A.101
0’

SCALE: 1” = 20’-0”

20’ 40’ 80’
NORTH

ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLANARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN





Tuscany & Montego  
(Style C10, C101 and C20) 

Installation Instructions 

• It is the responsibility of the installer to meet all code and safety requirements, and to obtain all required building permits. The installer should 
determine and implement the installation techniques appropriate for each unique installation situation. Digger Specialties, Inc. and its 
distributors shall not be held liable for improper or unsafe installations. 

  For more information visit diggerspecialties.com 06/20/2019 

Post Post Rail 

¼”  ¼”

Pan Head Flat Head 

Note: Top rail is 1” longer on each end to accommodate Crossover Railing. 

 

1. Cut the rails to length by holding rails against posts. Position so there will 
be the same baluster spacing on each end of the rails if possible. Mark 
rails where they are to be cut. Make sure rail is cut ¼” shorter on each 
end to allow for mounts. Cut rails (Example 1). 

 
Crossover Railing- Cut bottom rail same as above. For top rail, make end 
spacing exactly 1” longer on all ends connecting to a line crossover 
(Example 2). 
 

If connecting to a corner crossover cut the top rail the same the same as 
the bottom rail. 

 
 
 
 

    
 
 

 

 

2. Attach bottom wall mount to post by positioning the bottom rail so there is 
no more than 2” clearance. Keeping mount centered on post, fasten 
mount to post with pan head self-tapping screws (provided). A 1-3/8” 
spacer may be placed on the welded 3/8” plate of the post to reach the 2” 
clearance. Use a 1-1/4” spacer for posts with ½” plate. 

3. Attach top wall mount to post by measuring up 32-5/8” (for 36” tall railing) 
or 38-5/8” (for 42” tall railing) from the top of the bottom mount to the top 
of the top mount. Keeping mount centered on post, fasten mount to post 
with self-tapping pan head screws (provided). 

 

4. Place bottom rail on clean flat surface.  Using a rubber mallet, tap 
balusters into routed holes making sure balusters are seated all the way 
into the rail. 

5. Hold top rail at an angle above the balusters. Starting at one end feed first 
baluster into rail and tap lightly with a rubber mallet. 

6. Feed remaining balusters into top rail, tapping lightly with a rubber mallet 
as you move to the other end.  Once all balusters are partially seated in 
rail tap with rubber mallet along full length of rail making sure all balusters 
are against the top rib of the rail. 

7. Fasten rail support to bottom side of bottom rail by inserting pan head 
self-tapping screw (provided) through center of threaded portion of 
support.  This applies to all sections over 6’ long. 

8. Place section into mounts.  Fasten top and bottom rails through side of 
mount with flat head screw provided. Crossover railing- Fasten top rail to 
crossover adaptor with pan head screws provided. 

9. Carefully align mount cover on mount base before applying even, 
downward pressure to snap cover into place.  (Mount Covers can be 
damaged if the above process is not followed). 

10. Attach 2 piece flairs to all posts.   

• Separate two piece flair. 

• Slide u-shaped flair around bottom of post. 

• Use rubber mallet to tap flair together. 
 

1. a. Position bottom swivel mount base so the bottom of the rail has no 
more than a 2” clearance. NOTE: A 1⅜” spacer may be placed on the 
welded ⅜” plate of the post to reach the 2” clearance. 1¼” spacer for ½” 
plate. 

b. Measure up 32 5/8” (for 36” tall railing) or 38 5/8” (for 42” tall railing) 
from top of bottom mount to top of top mount. 

2. Keep base of mount centered 
and pin hole turned down, 
fasten base to post with pan 
head self-tapping screws (provided).  

3. Angle the swivel mount after it is installed on post. Measure from back of 
cup at one end to back of cup at other end to determine rail length. Cut 
rails. 

4. Assemble sections as specified in Standard (Level) railing steps 4-10. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

¼”  

Post 

1”

Crossover 
Post 

Rail 

Standard (Level) Railing Cont’d 

Angle (Swivel) Mount 

Standard (Level) Railing 

Example 1 

Example 2 

   Rail 

support 

Spacer 

Crossover 

32-5/8”  
     or  

38-5/8” 

 Minimum 1-1/4” 



Tuscany & Montego  
(Style C10, C101 and C20) 

Installation Instructions 

• It is the responsibility of the installer to meet all code and safety requirements, and to obtain all required building permits. The installer should 
determine and implement the installation techniques appropriate for each unique installation situation. Digger Specialties, Inc. and its 
distributors shall not be held liable for improper or unsafe installations. 

  For more information visit diggerspecialties.com 06/20/2019 

Swivel Stair Mount 

Example 3 

Important: Rails have to be positioned in the correct direction prior to 
cutting. If rails are not in the correct position they may be cut incorrectly 
and balusters will not line up. Rails will have a small hole at one end that 
indicates the lower end of the stairs. 

1. Identify top and bottom stair rails. 

2. Cut balusters at angle of stairs on both ends. (Overall length of baluster 
will not change.) 

3. Lay bottom rail beside posts with approximately 1” 
clearance (use 1” spacer) between the rail and nose 
of step. Insert a baluster into the last hole on each 
end. Place top rail on these balusters. 

4. Position rails against posts and even the end spacing 
on each end, if possible, with balusters parallel to the 
post. Clamp rails to post (Example 3.)  Mark rails for 
cutting. Mark posts for each mount position (Example 
4).  Cut rails 3/16” shorter than mark on each end. 
Rails should be cut using a straight cut (Example 5). 

5. Crossover Railing: For crossover stairs set stair crossover kit next to 
rails that are fastened to post to determine what height to cut post. Mark 
post and cut. Set crossover connector in post and fasten at proper height 
with self-tapping pan head screws provided. Set correct angle for 
crossover connector to match railing and tighten nut. Cut bottom rails 
same as above in step 3 (Example 3). Mark top rails to cut making sure it 
fits snug into the crossover connector (Example 6). 

 

6. Attach mounts to post with pan head self-tapping screws (provided). 

7. Place bottom rail on clean flat surface. Insert balusters into bottom rail. 
Seat completely into bottom rail by tapping with rubber mallet. 

8. Hold top rail at an angle above balusters. Starting at one end feed first 
baluster into top rail and tap lightly. Feed remaining balusters into rail, 
tapping lightly as you move to the other end. Once all balusters are 
partially seated in top rail, go back and tap along full length of the top rail 
making sure all balusters are seated against top rib. 

 
9. Place section into mounts.  Fasten top and bottom rails through side of 

mount with flat head screw provided. Crossover railing- Fasten top rail to 
crossover adaptor with pan head screws provided. 

 
 

10. Carefully align mount cover on mount base before applying even, 
downward pressure to snap cover into place. (Mount Covers can be 
damaged if the above process is not followed). 

11. Attach 2-piece flairs to all posts. See step 10 of Standard (Level) Railing 
section. 

 

Identify top and bottom rails, top swivel mount and bottom swivel mount. 

1. Lay bottom rail (with approximately 1” clearance from the nose of the 
steps) beside the posts. Determine where the end holes will be on each 
end and place a baluster in those holes. Place top rail on these 
balusters. Holding rails against posts, determine end spacing making 
sure end spacing is even between post and balusters. Clamp rails to 
post (Example 1). Hold swivel stair mounts up against posts and beside 
the rail to determine where rails are to be cut to fit inside the swivel stair 
mounts. Mark posts for each stair swivel mount position (Example 7). 
NOTE: This will vary depending on angle of stairs. Cut rails. Cut top rail 
at same length as bottom rail unless using crossover application. 

2. Attach bottom swivel mount base so the bottom rail has approximately 1” 
clearance from the nose of the step. (NOTE: A 1” spacer may be placed 
on the nose of the step to reach the 1” clearance.) Fasten base to post 
with pan head self-tapping screws (provided). 

3. Attach top swivel mount base to post using pan head self-tapping screws 
(provided). 

4. Follow Stair Railing steps 7-11 for assembly of section. 

 

Example 4 Example 6 

     3/16”  

     3/16”  

Example 5 

Top Stair Swivel 

Mount 

Bottom Stair 

Swivel Mount Example 7 

Stair Railing Stair Railing Cont’d 



 



/

Aviator Collection Outdoor Aluminum
Chair in Black
East Coast Chair & Barstool

     (No reviews yet) Write a Review

SKU: W-AL202CH-BLK Shipping: LTL Freight Usage: Outdoor

Aluminum Frame
Stackable for Easy Storage
Nylon Floor Glides
1-Year Limited Warranty

$64.99 1

Have a questions? Call 1-800-986-5352
and our customer care team will be happy to help you.

Home  Outdoor Restaurant Furniture  Outdoor Dining Chairs  Aluminum Chairs  Aviator Collection Outdoor Aluminum Chair in Black

PRODUCT DESCRIPTION

Modernize your outdoor area with a sleek black look with the Aviator Collection Chair! With a durable 28mm X 1.5mm black
aluminum frame, it boasts of commercial-grade strength. Also comes with nylon floor glides. This chair is lightweight yet sturdy,
making it a great choice for flexibility in your design or for easy storage during the off season.

Made of aluminum
Sleek black design
Fully assembled
Stackable
Nylon floor glides
1-year limited warranty. Please view our full warranty page for more details.

SPECIFICATIONS

/ / / /

     

ADD TO CART

Product Description Specifications FAQs Reviews Related Products Customers Also Viewed

info@eastcoastchair.com Commercial Sales Only Sign In Register

About Us Contact Us Blog Service Department Warranties

For freight quotes & customer service:
1-800-986-5352 0CART

INDOOR RESTAURANT FURNITURE OUTDOOR RESTAURANT FURNITURE Get Inspired! Custom Booth Gallery ECCB Outdoor SHOP BY

Search

Chat now

https://tableschairsbarstools.com/east-coast-chair-barstool/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/outdoor-restaurant-furniture/outdoor-dining-chairs/aluminum-chairs/aviator-collection-outdoor-aluminum-chair-in-black/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/outdoor-restaurant-furniture/outdoor-dining-chairs/aluminum-chairs/aviator-collection-outdoor-aluminum-chair-in-black/?utm_source=quoteninja&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=quoteninja&utm_content=Quote%3A+%3A+-MB53ht-wiqOG8OPdxBX##
tel:1-800-986-5352
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/outdoor-restaurant-furniture/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/outdoor-restaurant-furniture/outdoor-dining-chairs/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/outdoor-restaurant-furniture/outdoor-dining-chairs/aluminum-chairs/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/outdoor-restaurant-furniture/outdoor-dining-chairs/aluminum-chairs/aviator-collection-outdoor-aluminum-chair-in-black/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/warranties/
file:///H:/Shared/CDD/Planning%20Board/Planning%20Board%20Agendas/2021/August%2011,%202021/Extra%20Docs/The%20Morrie/Updated/Spec%20Sheets/Aviator%20Collection%20Outdoor%20Aluminum%20Chair%20in%20Black_files/AL202CH-BLK__74480.1567000448.jpg
https://cdn11.bigcommerce.com/s-ie82y90qzq/images/stencil/500x659/products/518/1583/AL202CH-BLK_side__85863.1566913607.jpg?c=2
https://cdn11.bigcommerce.com/s-ie82y90qzq/images/stencil/500x659/products/518/1578/AL202CH-BLK_back__65804.1566913615.jpg?c=2
https://cdn11.bigcommerce.com/s-ie82y90qzq/images/stencil/500x659/products/518/1581/AL202CH-BLK_Closeup_Front__48086.1566913625.jpg?c=2
https://cdn11.bigcommerce.com/s-ie82y90qzq/images/stencil/500x659/products/518/1579/AL202CH_Closeup_Back__10834.1566913633.jpg?c=2
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/outdoor-restaurant-furniture/outdoor-dining-chairs/aluminum-chairs/aviator-collection-outdoor-aluminum-chair-in-black/?utm_source=quoteninja&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=quoteninja&utm_content=Quote%3A+%3A+-MB53ht-wiqOG8OPdxBX#
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/outdoor-restaurant-furniture/outdoor-dining-chairs/aluminum-chairs/aviator-collection-outdoor-aluminum-chair-in-black/?utm_source=quoteninja&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=quoteninja&utm_content=Quote%3A+%3A+-MB53ht-wiqOG8OPdxBX#
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/outdoor-restaurant-furniture/outdoor-dining-chairs/aluminum-chairs/aviator-collection-outdoor-aluminum-chair-in-black/?utm_source=quoteninja&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=quoteninja&utm_content=Quote%3A+%3A+-MB53ht-wiqOG8OPdxBX#
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/outdoor-restaurant-furniture/outdoor-dining-chairs/aluminum-chairs/aviator-collection-outdoor-aluminum-chair-in-black/?utm_source=quoteninja&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=quoteninja&utm_content=Quote%3A+%3A+-MB53ht-wiqOG8OPdxBX#
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/outdoor-restaurant-furniture/outdoor-dining-chairs/aluminum-chairs/aviator-collection-outdoor-aluminum-chair-in-black/?utm_source=quoteninja&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=quoteninja&utm_content=Quote%3A+%3A+-MB53ht-wiqOG8OPdxBX#
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/outdoor-restaurant-furniture/outdoor-dining-chairs/aluminum-chairs/aviator-collection-outdoor-aluminum-chair-in-black/?utm_source=quoteninja&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=quoteninja&utm_content=Quote%3A+%3A+-MB53ht-wiqOG8OPdxBX#product-Description__heading
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/outdoor-restaurant-furniture/outdoor-dining-chairs/aluminum-chairs/aviator-collection-outdoor-aluminum-chair-in-black/?utm_source=quoteninja&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=quoteninja&utm_content=Quote%3A+%3A+-MB53ht-wiqOG8OPdxBX#specifications
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/outdoor-restaurant-furniture/outdoor-dining-chairs/aluminum-chairs/aviator-collection-outdoor-aluminum-chair-in-black/?utm_source=quoteninja&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=quoteninja&utm_content=Quote%3A+%3A+-MB53ht-wiqOG8OPdxBX#tab-faqs
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/outdoor-restaurant-furniture/outdoor-dining-chairs/aluminum-chairs/aviator-collection-outdoor-aluminum-chair-in-black/?utm_source=quoteninja&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=quoteninja&utm_content=Quote%3A+%3A+-MB53ht-wiqOG8OPdxBX#tab-reviews
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/outdoor-restaurant-furniture/outdoor-dining-chairs/aluminum-chairs/aviator-collection-outdoor-aluminum-chair-in-black/?utm_source=quoteninja&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=quoteninja&utm_content=Quote%3A+%3A+-MB53ht-wiqOG8OPdxBX#tab-related
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/outdoor-restaurant-furniture/outdoor-dining-chairs/aluminum-chairs/aviator-collection-outdoor-aluminum-chair-in-black/?utm_source=quoteninja&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=quoteninja&utm_content=Quote%3A+%3A+-MB53ht-wiqOG8OPdxBX#tab-similar
mailto:%20info@eastcoastchair.com
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/account.php
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/login.php?action=create_account
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/about-us/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/contact-us/
https://blog.tableschairsbarstools.com/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/contact-our-east-coast-chair-barstool-service-department/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/warranties/
tel:1-800-986-5352
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/cart.php
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/outdoor-restaurant-furniture/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/inspiration-gallery/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/custom-booth-gallery/
https://www.eccboutdoor.com/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/shop-by/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/


/

Overall Height 28"
Overall Width 20.5"
Overall Depth 24"
Seat Height 17"
Seat Width 16.5"
Seat Depth 14"
Weight 5 pounds

FAQS

Ask a Question

Enter your question here...

Continue...  115 characters remaining

Most Popular Questions

What. Is the weight capacity? - 1 Answer

View all
 

Ask a Question

Enter your question here...

Continue...  115 characters remaining

Most Popular Questions

What. Is the weight capacity? - 1 Answer

View all
 

Ask a Question

Enter your question here...

Continue...  115 characters remaining

Most Popular Questions

What. Is the weight capacity? - 1 Answer

View all
 

REVIEWS

RELATED PRODUCTS

info@eastcoastchair.com Commercial Sales Only Sign In Register

About Us Contact Us Blog Service Department Warranties

For freight quotes & customer service:
1-800-986-5352 0CART

INDOOR RESTAURANT FURNITURE OUTDOOR RESTAURANT FURNITURE Get Inspired! Custom Booth Gallery ECCB Outdoor SHOP BY

Search

https://tableschairsbarstools.services.answerbase.com/fullwidget/ViewQuestion.aspx?qid=3583446
https://tableschairsbarstools.answerbase.com/Topic/Aviator-Collection-Outdoor-Aluminum-Chair-in-Black/2261527
https://tableschairsbarstools.services.answerbase.com/fullwidget/ViewQuestion.aspx?qid=3583446
https://tableschairsbarstools.answerbase.com/Topic/Aviator-Collection-Outdoor-Aluminum-Chair-in-Black/2261527
https://tableschairsbarstools.services.answerbase.com/fullwidget/ViewQuestion.aspx?qid=3583446
https://tableschairsbarstools.answerbase.com/Topic/Aviator-Collection-Outdoor-Aluminum-Chair-in-Black/2261527
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/outdoor-restaurant-furniture/outdoor-dining-chairs/aluminum-chairs/palmetto-collection-outdoor-chair/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/outdoor-restaurant-furniture/outdoor-dining-chairs/aluminum-chairs/palazzo-collection-outdoor-arm-chair/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/outdoor-restaurant-furniture/outdoor-dining-chairs/aluminum-chairs/palazzo-collection-outdoor-side-chair/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/outdoor-restaurant-furniture/outdoor-bar-stools/aluminum-bar-stools/aviator-collection-outdoor-aluminum-bar-stool-in-black/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/outdoor-restaurant-furniture/outdoor-dining-chairs/aluminum-chairs/aviator-collection-outdoor-aluminum-side-chair-in-black/
mailto:%20info@eastcoastchair.com
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/account.php
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/login.php?action=create_account
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/about-us/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/contact-us/
https://blog.tableschairsbarstools.com/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/contact-our-east-coast-chair-barstool-service-department/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/warranties/
tel:1-800-986-5352
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/cart.php
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/outdoor-restaurant-furniture/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/inspiration-gallery/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/custom-booth-gallery/
https://www.eccboutdoor.com/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/shop-by/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/


/

CUSTOMERS ALSO VIEWED

Palmetto Collection
Outdoor Chair

$140.99
$103.99

Palazzo Collection
Outdoor Arm Chair

$158.99
$108.99

Palazzo Collection
Outdoor Side Chair

$152.99
$102.99

Aviator Collection
Outdoor Aluminum
Bar Stool in Black

$88.99
$83.99

Aviator Collection
Outdoor Aluminum
Side Chair in Black

$59.99

Aviator Collection
Outdoor Aluminum
Side Chair in Black

$59.99

Palazzo Collection
Outdoor Side Chair

$152.99
$102.99

Palazzo Collection
Outdoor Arm Chair

$158.99
$108.99

Sydney Collection
Synthetic Textilene
Weave Side Chair

$123.99
$99.99

Sydney Collection
Textilene Weave

Arm Chair
$129.99

$114.99

Palmetto Collection
Outdoor Chair

$140.99
$103.99

NAVIGATE

About Us

Contact Us

Service Department

Warranties

Shipping & Return Policy

Privacy Policy and Terms

of Sale

Terms and Conditions

Helpful Links

My Orders

BRANDS

East Coast Chair &

Barstool

Regal Seating

ECCB Outdoor

BFM Seating

Florida Seating

Grosfillex

Leisure Craft

Plantation Prestige

Oak Street

View All

INFO

East Coast Chair &

Barstool

966 Perry Highway

Mercer, PA 16137

Call us at (800) 986-

5352

CONNECT WITH US

   

SUBSCRIBE TO OUR NEWSLETTER

Get the latest updates on new products and upcoming
sales.

Your Email Address

   

SUBSCRIBE

info@eastcoastchair.com Commercial Sales Only Sign In Register

About Us Contact Us Blog Service Department Warranties

For freight quotes & customer service:
1-800-986-5352 0CART

INDOOR RESTAURANT FURNITURE OUTDOOR RESTAURANT FURNITURE Get Inspired! Custom Booth Gallery ECCB Outdoor SHOP BY

Search

https://tableschairsbarstools.com/outdoor-restaurant-furniture/outdoor-dining-chairs/aluminum-chairs/palmetto-collection-outdoor-chair/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/outdoor-restaurant-furniture/outdoor-dining-chairs/aluminum-chairs/palazzo-collection-outdoor-arm-chair/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/outdoor-restaurant-furniture/outdoor-dining-chairs/aluminum-chairs/palazzo-collection-outdoor-side-chair/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/outdoor-restaurant-furniture/outdoor-bar-stools/aluminum-bar-stools/aviator-collection-outdoor-aluminum-bar-stool-in-black/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/outdoor-restaurant-furniture/outdoor-dining-chairs/aluminum-chairs/aviator-collection-outdoor-aluminum-side-chair-in-black/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/outdoor-restaurant-furniture/outdoor-dining-chairs/aluminum-chairs/palmetto-collection-outdoor-chair/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/outdoor-restaurant-furniture/outdoor-dining-chairs/aluminum-chairs/palazzo-collection-outdoor-arm-chair/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/outdoor-restaurant-furniture/outdoor-dining-chairs/aluminum-chairs/palazzo-collection-outdoor-side-chair/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/outdoor-restaurant-furniture/outdoor-bar-stools/aluminum-bar-stools/aviator-collection-outdoor-aluminum-bar-stool-in-black/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/outdoor-restaurant-furniture/outdoor-dining-chairs/aluminum-chairs/aviator-collection-outdoor-aluminum-side-chair-in-black/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/outdoor-restaurant-furniture/outdoor-dining-chairs/aluminum-chairs/aviator-collection-outdoor-aluminum-side-chair-in-black/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/outdoor-restaurant-furniture/outdoor-dining-chairs/aluminum-chairs/palazzo-collection-outdoor-side-chair/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/outdoor-restaurant-furniture/outdoor-dining-chairs/aluminum-chairs/palazzo-collection-outdoor-arm-chair/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/outdoor-restaurant-furniture/outdoor-dining-chairs/aluminum-chairs/sydney-collection-synthetic-textilene-weave-side-chair/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/outdoor-restaurant-furniture/outdoor-dining-chairs/aluminum-chairs/sydney-collection-textilene-weave-arm-chair/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/outdoor-restaurant-furniture/outdoor-dining-chairs/aluminum-chairs/palmetto-collection-outdoor-chair/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/outdoor-restaurant-furniture/outdoor-dining-chairs/aluminum-chairs/aviator-collection-outdoor-aluminum-side-chair-in-black/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/outdoor-restaurant-furniture/outdoor-dining-chairs/aluminum-chairs/palazzo-collection-outdoor-side-chair/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/outdoor-restaurant-furniture/outdoor-dining-chairs/aluminum-chairs/palazzo-collection-outdoor-arm-chair/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/outdoor-restaurant-furniture/outdoor-dining-chairs/aluminum-chairs/sydney-collection-synthetic-textilene-weave-side-chair/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/outdoor-restaurant-furniture/outdoor-dining-chairs/aluminum-chairs/sydney-collection-textilene-weave-arm-chair/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/outdoor-restaurant-furniture/outdoor-dining-chairs/aluminum-chairs/palmetto-collection-outdoor-chair/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/about-us/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/contact-us/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/contact-our-east-coast-chair-barstool-service-department/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/warranties/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/shipping-return-policy/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/privacy-policy-and-terms-of-sale/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/terms-and-conditions/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/helpful-links/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/account.php?action=order_status
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/east-coast-chair-barstool/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/regal-seating/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/eccb-outdoor/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/bfm-seating-1/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/florida-seating-1/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/grosfillex/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/leisure-craft/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/plantation-prestige-1/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/oak-street/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/brands/
tel:Call us at (800) 986-5352
https://www.facebook.com/eastcoastchairandbarstool/
https://www.pinterest.com/tableschairsbar/
https://www.linkedin.com/company/2619699/admin/
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCcPe1NAZySW7WPNe2z6eJ1A
mailto:%20info@eastcoastchair.com
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/account.php
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/login.php?action=create_account
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/about-us/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/contact-us/
https://blog.tableschairsbarstools.com/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/contact-our-east-coast-chair-barstool-service-department/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/warranties/
tel:1-800-986-5352
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/cart.php
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/outdoor-restaurant-furniture/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/inspiration-gallery/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/custom-booth-gallery/
https://www.eccboutdoor.com/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/shop-by/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/


/

All prices are in USD. © 2021 East Coast Chair and Barstool Sitemap Design & Development by IntuitSolutions

info@eastcoastchair.com Commercial Sales Only Sign In Register

About Us Contact Us Blog Service Department Warranties

For freight quotes & customer service:
1-800-986-5352 0CART

INDOOR RESTAURANT FURNITURE OUTDOOR RESTAURANT FURNITURE Get Inspired! Custom Booth Gallery ECCB Outdoor SHOP BY

Search

http://east-coast-chair-and-barstool.mybigcommerce.com/sitemap
mailto:%20info@eastcoastchair.com
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/account.php
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/login.php?action=create_account
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/about-us/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/contact-us/
https://blog.tableschairsbarstools.com/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/contact-our-east-coast-chair-barstool-service-department/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/warranties/
tel:1-800-986-5352
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/cart.php
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/outdoor-restaurant-furniture/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/inspiration-gallery/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/custom-booth-gallery/
https://www.eccboutdoor.com/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/shop-by/
https://tableschairsbarstools.com/


CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 
Community Development – Building Department 

151 Martin Street, Birmingham, MI 48009 
 
 
 

SLUP Review Comments  
 

August 6, 2021 
 
RE:  Special Land Use Permit Review Comments 

260 N. Old Woodward, Morrie Dining Platform                      
 

As requested, the Building Department has examined the plans for the proposed project 
referenced above. The plans were provided to the Planning Department for site plan review 
purposes only and present conceptual elevations and floor plans. Although the plans lack 
sufficient detail to perform a code review, the following comments are offered for Planning Design 
Review purposes and applicant consideration: 
 
Applicable Building Codes: 
 
 2015 Michigan Building Code. Applies to all buildings other than those regulated by 

the Michigan Residential Code. 
 
 2015 Michigan Mechanical Code. (Residential requirements for mechanical 

construction in all detached one and two-family dwellings and multiple single-family 
dwellings (townhouses) not more than three stories in height with a separate means of 
egress and their accessory structures are contained in the Michigan Residential Code) 

 
 2015 Michigan Plumbing Code. (Residential requirements for plumbing construction 

in all detached one and two-family dwellings and multiple single-family dwellings 
(townhouses) not more than three stories in height with a separate means of egress and 
their accessory structures are contained in the Michigan Residential Code) 

 
 2017 National Electrical Code along w ith the Michigan Part 8 Rules. (Residential 

requirements for electrical construction in all detached one and two-family dwellings and 
multiple single-family dwellings (townhouses) not more than three stories in height with 
a separate means of egress and their accessory structures are contained in the Michigan 
Residential Code) 

 
Review Comments: 
 

1. The plans provided lack sufficient construction details to review for code compliance. The 
plans need to be drawn to scale with dimensions showing the layout of the platform and 
a section showing how it will be constructed.   

 
2. Access to the platform from the sidewalk must meet barrier free and ADA requirements. 

Provide details to demonstrate compliance.  
 

 



Nicholas Dupuis <ndupuis@bhamgov.org>

260 N. Old Woodward - The Morrie 

Jack Pesha <jpesha@bhamgov.org> Wed, Aug 4, 2021 at 3:30 PM
To: Nicholas Dupuis <ndupuis@bhamgov.org>

Nick, here are comments for BFD.

1. No storage of propane on the streetside of the establishment.  This particular building has no place that meets code to
store propane cylinders due to the layout.  They were fined in June for improper storage of LP gas.  
2. Do not block any fire hydrant or FDC.  
3. If allowed to use gas fired heaters, 5 feet of clearance shall be met for combustible awnings, umbrellas and egress
pathways per code.
4. Arrange platform so it does not impede traffic lane.

This establishment placed a propane cage next to the previous platform on the street without approval from any
department (not protected from a vehicle strike and without approval).  We can't allow for that moving forward.

Jack
[Quoted text hidden]
--  
Jack D. Pesha
Fire Marshal
Birmingham Fire Department
248-530-1903

*Important Note to Residents*
Let's connect! Join the Citywide Email System to recieve important City updates and critical information specific
to your neighborhood at www.bhamgov.org/citywideemail.

http://www.bhamgov.org/citywideemail


Nicholas Dupuis <ndupuis@bhamgov.org>

260 N. Old Woodward - The Morrie 

Mark Clemence <Mclemence@bhamgov.org> Thu, Aug 5, 2021 at 8:33 AM
To: Nicholas Dupuis <ndupuis@bhamgov.org>

Nick,
I want to see a better drawing to determine how many parking spots are going to be taken up.  Also, as has been an
issue in the past with the Morie, is that their deck was designed in such a way as the two parking spots on either end of
the deck were not usable based on the design.  You can see that from your attached photos.  I want to know
exactly how many parking spaces are going to be utilized and I want assurances that the parking spaces at either end of
the deck are open and usable. 
  
Mark H. Clemence
Chief of Police
Birmingham Police Department 
151 Martin St.
Birmingham, MI. 48009
248-530-1875

On Wed, Aug 4, 2021 at 12:43 PM Nicholas Dupuis <ndupuis@bhamgov.org> wrote: 
[Quoted text hidden]

https://maps.google.com/?q=151+Martin+St.Birmingham,+MI.+48009+(248&entry=gmail&source=g
https://maps.google.com/?q=151+Martin+St.Birmingham,+MI.+48009+(248&entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:ndupuis@bhamgov.org


PA
R
KI
N
G

M
ET
ER

PA
R
KI
N
G

M
ET
ER

PA
R
KI
N
G

M
ET
ER

PA
R
KI
N
G

M
ET
ER

LI
G
H
T

PO
LE

LI
G
H
T

PO
LE

PL
AN

TE
R

PL
AN

TE
R

PL
AN

TE
R

Sheet no.

Project no.

Sheet title

Issued dr/ch

Project title

biddison
a r c h i t e c t u r e  +  d e s i g n

t:248.554.9500
Birmingham, MI   48009
320 Martin St.   Suite 10

Consultants

PROPOSED BUILDING RENOVATION FOR:

The Morrie
Birmingham

260 N. Old Woodward

Birmingham, Michigan

EXTERIOR PATIO PERMIT 08.05.21

PROPOSED PATIO
PLAN AND DETAILS

2010.18

SP.101

56'-0"
PATIO LENGTH

SU
PP

LI
ES

TR
A

SH
SA

N
IT

A
TI

O
N

ST
A

TI
O

N

36"x36" TABLE OF 4 W/
UMBRELLA (TYP. OF 9)

6'-0"
MIN. SPACING

15
'-0

"
PA

TI
O

 W
ID

TH

6'
-0

"
M

IN
. S

PA
C

IN
G

SCALE: 3/16"=1'-0"

OVERALL FLOOR PLANNORTH

SCALE: NTS

TYP. PATIO TABLE SETUP
SCALE: NTS

PROPOSED PATIO STREET VIEW
SP.101

101.01

3'
-0

"

8'-0"2'-0"

LINE OF WOOD PATIO PLATFORM LINE OF PATIO PLATFORM

2'-0"8'-0"
TYP.

BLACK ALUMN. POWERCOATED FENCE

2'-0"8'-0"
TYP.

2'-0"8'-0"
TYP.

2'-0"8'-0"
TYP.

PLANTERS -TYP.

GAS HEATERS (TYP. OF 4)

SCALE: NTS

GUARD RAIL PATIO ELEVATION

BLACK ALUMN. POWERCOATED
GUARD RAIL (SEE CUTSHEET
SUBMISSION)

SP.101

101.01
SP.101

101.01

EXISTING PARKING

EXISTING PARKING

EXISTING SIDEWALK

EXISTING CURB

EXISTING PLANTEREXISTING PLANTEREXISTING PLANTER

EXISTING PATIO

THE MORRIE

PLANTERS -TYP.

EXISTING STOREFRONT

12
'-1

1 2"

5'
-2

1 2"

2'-0"

WOOD DECK
TOP OF CURB

N OLD WOODWARD AVE

W
IL

LI
TS

 S
T

szielinski
Dimension

szielinski
Line

szielinski
Line

szielinski
Line

szielinski
Line

szielinski
Line

szielinski
Line

szielinski
Text Box
Patio Length is limited to actual store width. Note parking spaces either side of patio that are affected by the patio and can no longer be used due to the obstruction will require payment for spaces. Additionally planters should be placed in these spaces to prevent vehicles from entering the spaces for safety purposes. 















a r c h i t e c t u r e  +  d e s i g n
biddison

t:248.554.9500
Birmingham, Michigan   48009

320 Martin Street   Suite 10

Contact Person: Kevin Biddison
e.mail: kb@biddison-ad.com

T.101

2010.17

TYPE OF CONSTRUCTION:

NFPA 220:

2012 MBC: TYPE IIA (PROTECTED)

TYPE II-000

260 N OLD WOODWARD AVE,

BIRMINGHAM, MI 48009

SHEET INDEX:

PROJECT LOCATION:

SPECIAL LAND USE 

TITLE SHEET

FLOOR PLAN

FLOOR PLAN - DANCE FLOOR

EXTERIOR ELEVATION

INTERIOR PERSPECTIVE IMAGES

INTERIOR PERSPECTIVE IMAGES

INTERIOR PERSPECTIVE IMAGES

T.101

A.101a

A.101b

A.201

A.301

A.302

A.303

THE MORRIE

TOWER CONSTRUCTION
3883 TELEGRAPH RD., SUITE 200 .
BLOOMFIELD TWP., MI  48302

P. 248.287.8200
F. 248.287.8203

BUILDING USE: A-2 RESTAURANT

AFB HOSPITALITY GROUP LLC

27387 WOODWARD AVE.

BERKLEY  MI 48072

T. 248.629.9221X201.

E. AFB@AFBHOSPITALITYGROUP.COM

APPLICANT INFORMATION

PERMITS 02.01.18

FIRE SUPPRESSION NOTE:

THE BUILDING IS PROVIDED WITH A FULLY AUTOMATIC FIRE PROTECTION

SPRINKLER SYSTEM INSTALLED (FIRE SUPPRESSION SYSTEM) - WORK WILL BE

DESIGNED TO MEET M.B.C. REQUIREMENTS AND CITY OF BIRMINGHAM

INSPECTION & PERMIT APPROVAL. FACTORY MUTUAL STANDARDS AND

SPECIFICATIONS SHALL ALSO BE USED WHERE NOT OTHERWISE IN CONFLICT

WITH LOCAL STANDARDS.  SPRINKLER CONTRACTOR SHALL BE  FULLY

LICENSED AND BE RESPONSIBLE FOR PREPARATION OF ENGINEERED

DRAWINGS, SUBMISSION OF DRAWINGS TO ALL LOCAL AND STATE AGENCIES

FOR APPROVAL AND FOR COORDINATION OF REQUIREMENTS WITH OWNERS

AND TENANTS INSURANCE CARRIER.

ZONED:  D-4 OVERLAY

GENERAL CONTRACTOR:

SCALE: NOT TO SCALE 

LOCATION MAP

NORTH

PROJECT LOCATION:

260 N OLD WOODWARD AVE

GOVERNING CODES: 2015 MICHIGAN BUILDING CODE
2015 MICHIGAN PLUMBING CODE
2015 MICHIGAN MECHANICAL CODE
2015 MICHIGAN REHABILITATION CODE
2015 INTERNATIONAL FUEL GAS CODE
MICHIGAN ELECTRICAL CODE, 2014 N.E.C.
W/ PART 8 STATE AMENDMENTS
ICC/ANSI A117.1-2015 AND MICHIGAN
BARRIER FREE DESIGN LAW OF PUBLIC
ACT 1 OF 1966 AS AMENDED.
MICHIGAN UNIFORM ENERGY CODE RULES
PART 10 WITH ANSI/ASHRAE/IESNA
STANDARD 90.1-2015
2015 INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE
NFPA 13 - 2010
NFPA 72 - 2010

7,952 SQFTTENANT AREA:

SLUP AMENDMENT 05.16.18



biddison
a r c h i t e c t u r e  +  d e s i g n

t:248.554.9500
Birmingham, MI   48009
320 Martin St.   Suite 10

PROPOSED BUILDING RENOVATION FOR:

THE MORRIE

260 N OLD WOODWARD AVE,

BIRMINGHAM, MI 48009

SPECIAL LAND USE 
PERMIT 02.01.18
SLUP AMENDMENT 05.16.18

FLOOR PLAN

2010.17

A.101a

SCALE: 3/16"=1'-0"

FLOOR PLAN

NORTH

6'-3" PATIO

VIF

3
3

'
-
0

"
 
P

A
T

I
O

3
'
-
0

"

S
T

A
I
R

1
5

'
-
0

"
 
R

A
I
L

I
N

G
1

5
'
-
0

"
 
R

A
I
L

I
N

G

12x20

STORAGE

STAGE

LIFT

HOST

RAISED BOOTHS

HIGHTOPS

K
I
T

C
H

E
N

 
A

N
D

 
T

O
I
L

E
T

 
C

I
R

C
U

L
A

T
I
O

N

EXISTING KITCHEN

TO REMAIN

DINING AREA

BAR

EXISTING GLASS

AND ENTRY DOOR

TO REMAIN

RAISED PATIO WITH

TREX WOOD LOOK

COMPOSITE

DECKING SYSTEM

42" HIGH ALUMINUM

RAILING

DINING AREA

CITY

PLANTER

CITY

PARKING

METER

 CITY LIGHT

POLE

5'-0"

HOLD

EXISTING TOILET

ROOMS TO

REMAIN

EXISTING NANA WALL

GLASS WALL SYSTEM

OPENS TO DECK SEATING

CITY SIDEWALK

0 5 10 20

GRAPHIC SCALE

CITY

PLANTER

 CITY LIGHT

POLE

CITY

PARKING

METER

CITY

PARKING

METER

CITY

PARKING

METER

CITY

PARKING

METER

 CITY LIGHT

POLE

EXISTING RAMP

TO REMAIN

EXISTING GLASS

AND ENTRY DOOR

TO REMAIN

EXISTING STAIR

AND RAILINGS TO

REMAIN

REMOVE EXISTING

DOOR AND SIDELIGHT



biddison
a r c h i t e c t u r e  +  d e s i g n

t:248.554.9500
Birmingham, MI   48009
320 Martin St.   Suite 10

PROPOSED BUILDING RENOVATION FOR:

THE MORRIE

260 N OLD WOODWARD AVE,

BIRMINGHAM, MI 48009

SLUP AMENDMENT 05.16.18

FLOOR PLAN
- DANCE FLOOR 

2010.17

A.101b

SCALE: 3/16"=1'-0"

FLOOR PLAN

NORTH

6'-3" PATIO

VIF

3
3

'
-
0

"
 
P

A
T

I
O

3
'
-
0

"

S
T

A
I
R

1
5

'
-
0

"
 
R

A
I
L

I
N

G
1

5
'
-
0

"
 
R

A
I
L

I
N

G

12x20

STORAGE

STAGE

LIFT

HOST

RAISED BOOTHS

HIGHTOPS

K
I
T

C
H

E
N

 
A

N
D

 
T

O
I
L

E
T

 
C

I
R

C
U

L
A

T
I
O

N

EXISTING KITCHEN

TO REMAIN

DINING AREA

BAR

EXISTING GLASS

AND ENTRY DOOR

TO REMAIN

RAISED PATIO WITH

TREX WOOD LOOK

COMPOSITE

DECKING SYSTEM

42" HIGH ALUMINUM

RAILING

DINING AREA

CITY

PLANTER

CITY

PARKING

METER

 CITY LIGHT

POLE

5'-0"

HOLD

EXISTING TOILET

ROOMS TO

REMAIN

EXISTING NANA WALL

GLASS WALL SYSTEM

OPENS TO DECK SEATING

CITY SIDEWALK

0 5 10 20

GRAPHIC SCALE

CITY

PLANTER

 CITY LIGHT

POLE

CITY

PARKING

METER

CITY

PARKING

METER

CITY

PARKING

METER

CITY

PARKING

METER

 CITY LIGHT

POLE

EXISTING RAMP

TO REMAIN

EXISTING GLASS

AND ENTRY DOOR

TO REMAIN

EXISTING STAIR

AND RAILINGS TO

REMAIN

REMOVE EXISTING

DOOR AND SIDELIGHT

PROPOSED 380 SQFT

DANCE FLOOR AREA

38'-0"

1
0

'
-
0

"



biddison
a r c h i t e c t u r e  +  d e s i g n

t:248.554.9500
Birmingham, MI   48009
320 Martin St.   Suite 10

PROPOSED BUILDING RENOVATION FOR:

THE MORRIE

260 N OLD WOODWARD AVE,

BIRMINGHAM, MI 48009

SPECIAL LAND USE 
PERMIT 02.01.18
CITY COUNCIL APPROVAL 05.03.18
SLUP AMENDMENT 05.16.18

EXTERIOR 
ELEVATION 

2010.17

A.201
FOR REFERENCE NOT TO SCALE

EXTERIOR ELEVATION 

FOR REFERENCE NOT TO SCALE

EXTERIOR PATIO PERSPECTIVE 

PAINTED ALUMINUM

AWNING AT ENTRY

FREE STANDING METAL

LETTERS MOUNTED TO

METAL FASCIA

NEW METAL FASCIA MOUNTED TO

EXISTING STONE FACADE TO

REPLACE EXISTING SIGN BAND

EXISTING NANA WALL GLASS

WALL SYSTEM OPENS TO DECK

SEATING

RAISED PATIO WITH TREX WOOD

LOOK COMPOSITE DECKING

SYSTEM

EXISTING GLASS AND ENTRY

DOOR TO BE REMOVED, TYP

42" HIGH ALUMINUM RAILING

1
0

"

10'-0"

1
'
-
6

"
1

'
-
1

1
"

9
'
-
1

0
"

EXISTING STONE TO

REMAIN



biddison
a r c h i t e c t u r e  +  d e s i g n

t:248.554.9500
Birmingham, MI   48009
320 Martin St.   Suite 10

PROPOSED BUILDING RENOVATION FOR:

THE MORRIE

260 N OLD WOODWARD AVE,

BIRMINGHAM, MI 48009

SLUP AMENDMENT 05.16.18

INTERIOR
PERSPECTIVE 
IMAGE

2010.17

A.301

FOR REFERENCE NOT TO SCALE

INTERIOR PERSPECTIVE 

FOR REFERENCE NOT TO SCALE

INTERIOR PERSPECTIVE 

FOR REFERENCE NOT TO SCALE

INTERIOR PERSPECTIVE 

FOR REFERENCE NOT TO SCALE

INTERIOR PERSPECTIVE 



biddison
a r c h i t e c t u r e  +  d e s i g n

t:248.554.9500
Birmingham, MI   48009
320 Martin St.   Suite 10

PROPOSED BUILDING RENOVATION FOR:

THE MORRIE

260 N OLD WOODWARD AVE,

BIRMINGHAM, MI 48009

SPECIAL LAND USE 
PERMIT 02.01.18
SLUP AMENDMENT 05.16.18

INTERIOR 
PERSPECTIVE 
IMAGES

2010.17

A.302

FOR REFERENCE NOT TO SCALE

INTERIOR PERSPECTIVE 

FOR REFERENCE NOT TO SCALE

INTERIOR PERSPECTIVE 

FOR REFERENCE NOT TO SCALE

INTERIOR PERSPECTIVE 

FOR REFERENCE NOT TO SCALE

INTERIOR PERSPECTIVE 



biddison
a r c h i t e c t u r e  +  d e s i g n

t:248.554.9500
Birmingham, MI   48009
320 Martin St.   Suite 10

PROPOSED BUILDING RENOVATION FOR:

THE MORRIE

260 N OLD WOODWARD AVE,

BIRMINGHAM, MI 48009

SLUP AMENDMENT 05.16.18

INTERIOR
PERSPECTIVE 
IMAGE

2010.17

A.303







Issued For:

Do not scale prints. Use figured dimensions.
©2007 JPRA Architects

Subject:

Project:

Job No:

Package Series Sheet No.

1787

APRIL 04, 2014 

ARCHITECTURAL 
SITE PLAN

A.101
0’

SCALE: 1” = 20’-0”

20’ 40’ 80’
NORTH

ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLANARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN



Issued For:

Do not scale prints. Use figured dimensions.
©2007 JPRA Architects

Subject:

Project:

Job No:

Package Series Sheet No.

1787

APRIL 04, 2014 

A.102

LOWER LEVEL
FLOOR PLAN

MAY 05, 2014 - REV

NORTH

0' 4' 8' 16' 32'

SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

LOWER LEVEL FLOOR PLANLOWER LEVEL FLOOR PLAN



Issued For:

Do not scale prints. Use figured dimensions.
©2007 JPRA Architects

Subject:

Project:

Job No:

Package Series Sheet No.

1787

APRIL 04, 2014 

A.103

STREET LEVEL
FLOOR PLAN

MAY 05, 2014 - REV

NORTH

0' 4' 8' 16' 32'

SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

STREET LEVEL FLOOR PLANSTREET LEVEL FLOOR PLAN



Issued For:

Do not scale prints. Use figured dimensions.
©2007 JPRA Architects

Subject:

Project:

Job No:

Package Series Sheet No.

1787

APRIL 04, 2014 

A.104

SECOND LEVEL
FLOOR PLAN

NORTH

0' 4' 8' 16' 32'

SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

SECOND LEVEL FLOOR PLANSECOND LEVEL FLOOR PLAN



Issued For:

Do not scale prints. Use figured dimensions.
©2007 JPRA Architects

Subject:

Project:

Job No:

Package Series Sheet No.

1787

APRIL 04, 2014 

A.105

THIRD LEVEL
FLOOR PLAN

NORTH

0' 4' 8' 16' 32'

SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

THIRD LEVEL FLOOR PLANTHIRD LEVEL FLOOR PLAN



Issued For:

Do not scale prints. Use figured dimensions.
©2007 JPRA Architects

Subject:

Project:

Job No:

Package Series Sheet No.

1787

APRIL 04, 2014 

A.106

FOURTH LEVEL
FLOOR PLAN

NORTH

0' 4' 8' 16' 32'

SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

FOURTH LEVEL FLOOR PLANFOURTH LEVEL FLOOR PLAN



Issued For:

Do not scale prints. Use figured dimensions.
©2007 JPRA Architects

Subject:

Project:

Job No:

Package Series Sheet No.

1787

APRIL 04, 2014 

A.107

FIFTH LEVEL
FLOOR PLAN

NORTH

0' 4' 8' 16' 32'

SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

FIFTH LEVEL FLOOR PLANFIFTH LEVEL FLOOR PLAN



Issued For:

Do not scale prints. Use figured dimensions.
©2007 JPRA Architects

Subject:

Project:

Job No:

Package Series Sheet No.

1787

APRIL 04, 2014 

A.108

ELEVATIONS

WEST ELEVATIONWEST ELEVATION

SOUTH ELEVATIONSOUTH ELEVATION

EXISTING CONDITIONS PHOTOSEXISTING CONDITIONS PHOTOS

TOTAL SQ FT OF FACADE  SQ FT OF GLAZING  TOTAL %TOTAL SQ FT OF FACADE  SQ FT OF GLAZING  TOTAL %
7,838.62      1,948.59     0.249= 24.9%7,838.62      1,948.59     0.249= 24.9%

TOTAL SQ FT OF FACADE  SQ FT OF GLAZING  TOTAL %TOTAL SQ FT OF FACADE  SQ FT OF GLAZING  TOTAL %
10,587.29     3,326.09     0.314= 31.4%10,587.29     3,326.09     0.314= 31.4%

NEW WINDOWSNEW WINDOWS

EXISTING WINDOWSEXISTING WINDOWS

NEW WINDOWSNEW WINDOWS

EXISTING WINDOWSEXISTING WINDOWS

0' 4' 8' 16' 32'

SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

0' 4' 8' 16' 32'

SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"



Issued For:

Do not scale prints. Use figured dimensions.
©2007 JPRA Architects

Subject:

Project:

Job No:

Package Series Sheet No.

1787

APRIL 04, 2014 

A.109

ELEVATIONS

1

EAST ELEVATIONEAST ELEVATION

EXISTING CONDITIONS PHOTOSEXISTING CONDITIONS PHOTOS

CONCEPT PERSPECTIVESCONCEPT PERSPECTIVES

Downtown Birmingham Overlay District:Downtown Birmingham Overlay District:
Article 03Article 03

A-3. D4 Zone (four or fi ve stories)A-3. D4 Zone (four or fi ve stories)

E-1. Architectural Standards.  At least 90% of the exterior fi nish material on E-1. Architectural Standards.  At least 90% of the exterior fi nish material on 
all facades that face a street  - limited to glass, brick, cut stone, coarsly all facades that face a street  - limited to glass, brick, cut stone, coarsly 
textured stucco, or wood.textured stucco, or wood.

E-6. The Glazed area of a facade above the fi rst fl oor shall not exceed E-6. The Glazed area of a facade above the fi rst fl oor shall not exceed 
35% of the total area.35% of the total area.

TOTAL SQ FT OF FACADE  SQ FT OF GLAZING  TOTAL %TOTAL SQ FT OF FACADE  SQ FT OF GLAZING  TOTAL %
10,571.63     2,513.68     0.238 = 23.8%10,571.63     2,513.68     0.238 = 23.8% NEW WINDOWSNEW WINDOWS

EXISTING WINDOWSEXISTING WINDOWS

BALCONY DETAILBALCONY DETAIL 0' 2' 4' 8'

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

0' 4' 8' 16' 32'

SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"







MEMORANDUM 
Planning Division 

DATE:  August 23rd, 2021 

TO:  Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 

FROM: Nicholas Dupuis, City Planner 

APPROVED: Jana Ecker, Planning Director 

SUBJECT: Set a Public Hearing for Amendments to Article 7, Sections 7.01 and 7.29 
of Chapter 126, Zoning – Public Notice 

INTRODUCTION: 
Recently, several development projects have encountered issues with the placement of notice 
signs within the required 15-day public noticing period, which has prompted a request to review 
the City’s current ordinances to gauge the potential for improvement in certain areas if deemed 
necessary. 

BACKGROUND: 
On July 14th, 2021, the Planning Board set a public hearing for August 11th, 2021 to review the 
proposed ordinance amendments to Article 7, Sections 7.01 and 7.29 of the Zoning Ordinance. 
During the review, the Planning Board discussed two minor changes to the ordinance regarding 
historic reviews and notice sign placement. Although not regulated by the ordinance, the Planning 
Board also discussed the design of the public notice signs. 

On August 11th, 2021, the Planning Board recommended approval to the City Commission the 
ordinance amendments to Article 7, Sections 7.01 and 7.29 of the Zoning Ordinance to include 
more consistent notice sign requirements in all applicable sections. 

LEGAL REVIEW:  
The City Attorney has reviewed the documentation as to form and substance and has no 
objections. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  
The proposed amendments do not have any direct fiscal impacts to the City. 

PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 
As required for proposed Zoning Ordinance amendments, a legal ad was placed in a newspaper 
of local circulation to advertise the proposed amendments to the Zoning Ordinance in advance of 
the August 11th, 2021 Planning Board meeting.  In addition, a survey of the public was conducted 
on Engage Birmingham to determine design/content preferences for public notice signs. 
A second legal ad will be placed in a newspaper of local circulation to advertise the public hearing 
at the City Commission meeting on September 20, 2021. 

5E



SUMMARY: 
The Planning Division requests that the City Commission set a public hearing on September 20, 
2021 to consider ordinance amendments to Article 7, Sections 7.01 and 7.29 of Chapter 126, 
Zoning to include more consistent notice sign information in all applicable sections. Additionally, 
the Planning Division will continue to work with the Planning Board to redesign the public notice 
signs to best fit the need. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
• Draft Ordinance language
• Planning Board Staff Reports
• Relevant Minutes

SUGGESTED COMMISSION ACTION: 
To make a motion to adopt a resolution setting a public hearing for September 20, 
2021 to consider the following amendments to Chapter 126, Zoning: 

1. Article 7, Section 7.01 (General) to add general public notice requirements; and
2. Article 7, Section 7.29 (Site Plan Review: Hearing on Review; Notice) to remove and

relocate public notice requirements.



CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 
 

ORDINANCE NO. _________ 
 

THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM ORDAINS: 
 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM: 
 
TO AMEND ARTICLE 7, SECTION 7.01, GENERAL, TO ADD GENERAL PUBLIC NOTICE 
REQUIREMENTS 
 
 
7.01 General 
 

A. Property Owners: Persons qualified to sign a petition on behalf of a business shall be those 
persons listed on the initial merchant’s license issued by the City to the business or those 
persons who have paid or who are obligated to pay personal property taxes on behalf of 
the business, as set forth on the current assessment and tax rolls of the City Assessor. 
Where more than one person is thus identified as the owner of real property or doing 
business, all persons so identified shall be qualified to sign the petition. When one qualified 
person signs a petition on behalf of a business, the business shall be deemed to have 
approved the regulated use. When one qualified person signs a petition as owner of a 
parcel of real property, the parcel of real property shall be deemed to have approved the 
regulated use. In computing the required percentage of approvals, an owner of both a 
business and a parcel of real property shall be counted as 2 owners. 
 

B. Public Notice 
1. The Planning Board, Design Review Board, or Historic District 

Commission shall give notice of the date of hearing of any land 
development application (Rezoning Amendments, Site Plan Review, 
Community Impact Study, Design Review, Special Land Use Permits, Lot 
Combinations and Divisions) to all persons to whom any real property 
adjacent to, abutting and directly across a street or alley from the 
premises described in the application shall be assessed on the tax rolls 
of the city. Such notice shall be delivered personally or by mail, a 
minimum of fifteen days prior to the hearing date and addressed to such 
persons at the address given in the last assessment roll. A notice sign 
shall also be posted in full view from a public right-of-way on the subject 
property. Notice signs will be provided by the City of Birmingham. It is 
the responsibility of the applicant to post the notice sign as required, to 
ensure that the notice sign remains posted during the entire notice 
period and to remove the notice sign the day after final the public 
hearing the notice sign was advertising. At the hearing, any persons may 
appear in person, by agent or by attorney. All such hearings shall be open 
to the public. 



 
ORDAINED this _________ day of _______________, 2021 to become effective upon publication. 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Pierre Boutros, Mayor 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Alexandria Bingham, City Clerk 
 



CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 
 

ORDINANCE NO. _________ 
 

THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM ORDAINS: 
 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM: 
 
TO AMEND ARTICLE 7, SECTION 7.29, SITE PLAN REVIEW: HEARING ON REVIEW; NOTICE, TO 
REMOVE PUBLIC NOTICE REQUIREMENTS 
 
 
7.29 Site Plan Review: Hearing on Review; Notice 
 

A. The Planning Board, Design Review Board, or Historic District Commission shall give notice 
of the date of hearing of any application for final Site Plan Review to all persons to whom 
any real property adjacent to, abutting and directly across a street or alley from the 
premises described in the application shall be assessed on the tax rolls of the city. Such 
notice shall be delivered personally or by mail, a minimum of fifteen days prior to the 
hearing date and addressed to such persons at the address given in the last assessment 
roll. A notice sign shall also be posted in a conspicuous place on the subject property. 
Notice signs will be provided by the City of Birmingham. It is the responsibility of the 
applicant to post the notice sign as required, to ensure that the notice sign remains posted 
during the entire notice period and to remove the notice sign the day after the public 
hearing the notice sign was advertising. At the hearing, any persons may appear in person, 
by agent or by attorney. All such hearings shall be open to the public. 
 

B. A . Any applicant for Site Plan or Design Review approval or adjacent property owner 
aggrieved by a decision of the Planning Board and, Design Review Board or Historic 
District Commission (non-historic reviews only) shall have the right to appeal the 
decision to the Board of Zoning Appeals in the same manner and subject to the same 
conditions as set forth for appeals in the Zoning Ordinance. 

 
 
 
ORDAINED this _________ day of _______________, 2021 to become effective upon publication. 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Pierre Boutros, Mayor 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Alexandria Bingham, City Clerk 
 



MEMORANDUM 
 

Planning Division 
 
DATE:   August 11th, 2021 
 
TO:   Planning Board 
 
FROM:  Nicholas Dupuis, City Planner 
 
SUBJECT: Public Notice Signs – Public Hearing  
 
 
In 2018, City Staff was directed to redesign the City’s public notice signs to include more 
information for the property it is representing. Several designs were created to encompass a 
varied range of information and sent to printing companies for quotes. Ultimately, a design 
involving a durable label was chosen to make the notice signs easily customizable to more clearly 
inform the public of the nature of the hearing. Formerly, public notice signs contained general 
information declaring that the property was subject to a land development hearing, and observers 
were directed to either call or follow a QR code for further information:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Recently, several development projects have encountered issues with the placement of notice 
signs within the required public noticing window, which has prompted a request to review the 
City’s current ordinances to gauge the potential for improvement in certain areas if deemed 
necessary.  
 

Current Former 



At present, the only mention of public notice sign requirements within the Zoning Ordinance is in 
Article 7, Section 7.29 (Site Plan Review: Hearing on Review; Notice) which states that: 
 

“The Planning Board, Design Review Board, or Historic District Commission shall give 
notice of the date of hearing of any application for final Site Plan Review to all persons to 
whom any real property adjacent to, abutting and directly across a street or alley from 
the premises described in the application shall be assessed on the tax rolls of the city. 
Such notice shall be delivered personally or by mail, a minimum of fifteen days prior to 
the hearing date and addressed to such persons at the address given in the last 
assessment roll. A notice sign shall also be posted in a conspicuous place on the subject 
property. Notice signs will be provided by the City of Birmingham. It is the responsibility 
of the applicant to post the notice sign as required, to ensure that the notice sign remains 
posted during the entire notice period and to remove the notice sign the day after the 
public hearing the notice sign was advertising.” 
 

Notably, the above language seems to suggest that the noticing rules may only apply to Final Site 
Plan reviews, which is not the case. Furthermore, this language is not provided in any other 
sections in Article 7 such as Design Review, Special Land Uses, or Rezoning  
Amendments, which all require public notice signage. Language can be found, however, on the 
Notice Sign Rental form that comes with each Planning Division application that is subject to a 
board/commission review. 
 
On July 14th, 2021, the Planning Board set a public hearing for August 11th, 2021 to review the 
proposed ordinance amendments to Article 7, Sections 7.01 and 7.29 of the Zoning Ordinance. 
During the review, the Planning Board discussed two minor changes to the ordinance regarding 
historic reviews and notice sign placement. Although not regulated by the ordinance, the Planning 
Board also discussed the design of the public notice signs and indicated that they would like to 
understand what the public might prefer in terms of content and detail. An Engage Birmingham 
survey was created, the results of which are attached to this report. In summary, residents appear 
to prefer more detail on public notice signs. 
 
At this time, the Planning Division suggests ordinance amendments to Article 7, Sections 7.01 
and 7.29 of the Zoning Ordinance to include more consistent notice sign information in all 
applicable sections. Please see the attached zoning ordinance amendment proposals in regards 
to public notice signs. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Project Report
03 July 2021 - 01 August 2021

Engage Birmingham
Public Notice Sign Update

Highlights

TOTAL
VISITS

91  

MAX VISITORS PER
DAY

48
NEW
REGISTRATI
ONS

0

ENGAGED
VISITORS

55  

INFORMED
VISITORS

71  

AWARE
VISITORS

88

Aware Participants 88

Aware Actions Performed Participants

Visited a Project or Tool Page 88

Informed Participants 71

Informed Actions Performed Participants

Viewed a video 0

Viewed a photo 0

Downloaded a document 0

Visited the Key Dates page 1

Visited an FAQ list Page 0

Visited Instagram Page 0

Visited Multiple Project Pages 16

Contributed to a tool (engaged) 55

Engaged Participants 55

Engaged Actions Performed
Registered Unverified Anonymous

Contributed on Forums 0 0 0

Participated in Surveys 55 0 0

Contributed to Newsfeeds 0 0 0

Participated in Quick Polls 0 0 0

Posted on Guestbooks 0 0 0

Contributed to Stories 0 0 0

Asked Questions 0 0 0

Placed Pins on Places 0 0 0

Contributed to Ideas 0 0 0

Visitors Summary

Pageviews Visitors

26 Jul '21

100

200

 



Tool Type
Engagement Tool Name Tool Status Visitors

Registered Unverified Anonymous

Contributors

Survey Tool
Public Notice Signs Published 71 55 0 0

Engage Birmingham : Summary Report for 03 July 2021 to 01 August 2021

ENGAGEMENT TOOLS SUMMARY

0
FORUM TOPICS  

1
SURVEYS  

0
NEWS FEEDS  

0
QUICK POLLS  

0
GUEST BOOKS

0
STORIES  

0
Q&A S  

0
PLACES

Page 2 of 8



Widget Type
Engagement Tool Name Visitors Views/Downloads

Key Dates
Key Date 1 1

Engage Birmingham : Summary Report for 03 July 2021 to 01 August 2021

INFORMATION WIDGET SUMMARY

0
DOCUMENTS  

0
PHOTOS  

0
VIDEOS  

0
FAQS  

0
KEY DATES

Page 3 of 8



Visitors 71 Contributors 55 CONTRIBUTIONS 55

Engage Birmingham : Summary Report for 03 July 2021 to 01 August 2021

ENGAGEMENT TOOL: SURVEY TOOL

Public Notice Signs

Have you used one of our public notice signs to find out more information about a
project?

34 (61.8%)

34 (61.8%)

21 (38.2%)

21 (38.2%)

Yes No

Question options

Page 4 of 8

Optional question (55 response(s), 0 skipped)

Question type: Radio Button Question



Engage Birmingham : Summary Report for 03 July 2021 to 01 August 2021

Which of the following statements best fits your opinion of what a public notice sign
should be?

7 (13.2%)

7 (13.2%)

10 (18.9%)

10 (18.9%)

34 (64.2%)

34 (64.2%)

2 (3.8%)

2 (3.8%)

Notice signs should be simple and general with contact information available for further details on the project.

Notice signs should be detailed so that I do not have to call or email and find out what is going on at a site.

Notice signs should have just enough detail for me to understand what is proposed, but not too much that I cannot read it.

Other (please describe)

Question options

Page 5 of 8

Optional question (53 response(s), 2 skipped)

Question type: Radio Button Question



Engage Birmingham : Summary Report for 03 July 2021 to 01 August 2021

What information do you look for on a public notice sign? (Select all that apply)

22 (40.0%)

22 (40.0%)

15 (27.3%)

15 (27.3%)

29 (52.7%)

29 (52.7%)

39 (70.9%)

39 (70.9%)

17 (30.9%)

17 (30.9%)

22 (40.0%)

22 (40.0%)

14 (25.5%)

14 (25.5%)

4 (7.3%)

4 (7.3%)

Contact Phone Number Contact Email Website Project Information Meeting Information

Type of Application All of the Above Other (please describe)

Question options

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

Page 6 of 8

Optional question (55 response(s), 0 skipped)

Question type: Checkbox Question



Engage Birmingham : Summary Report for 03 July 2021 to 01 August 2021

Which of the following tools would you find helpful on a public notice sign?

35 (66.0%)

35 (66.0%)

33 (62.3%)

33 (62.3%)

2 (3.8%)

2 (3.8%)

Website URL QR Code Other (please describe)

Question options

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

Page 7 of 8

Optional question (53 response(s), 2 skipped)

Question type: Checkbox Question



Engage Birmingham : Summary Report for 03 July 2021 to 01 August 2021

Which of the following signs do you think is the most appropriate?

2 (3.7%)

2 (3.7%)

3 (5.6%)

3 (5.6%)

12 (22.2%)

12 (22.2%)

35 (64.8%)

35 (64.8%)

2 (3.7%)

2 (3.7%)

Very general sign concept Fairly general sign concept Detailed sign concept Highly Detailed sign concept

None of the Above (please describe why)

Question options

Page 8 of 8

Optional question (54 response(s), 1 skipped)

Question type: Radio Button Question



 
Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings  
July 14, 2021 

 

5 
 

Seconded by Mr. Jeffares to approve the Design Review application for 135 Pierce – 
Planthropie – with the following conditions: 1. The Planning Board approves the 
polypropylene dining chairs as a material of comparable quality; and 2. The applicant 
receives a favorable recommendation from the Advisory Parking Committee in 
regards to the parking and traffic conditions surrounding the subject site. 
 
Mr. Jeffares said it would be positive to have this establishment activating the street 
from midday to early evening every day since many bistros only activate the street 
during the evenings five days a week. 
 
Mr. Koseck said Mr. Jeffares’ comments changed his vote. 
 
Motion failed passed, 6-1. 
 
VOICE VOTE 
Yeas: Boyle, Ramin, Koseck, Jeffares, Williams, Emerine 
Nays: Clein 
 

07-095-21 
 
F. Study Session  

1. Public Notice Signs  
 

CP Dupuis reviewed the topic. 
 
The Board discussed the item. 
 
PD Ecker stated that the previously used general public notice signs worked well and did not 
generate a surplus of calls to the Planning Department.  
 
Mr. Jeffares advocated for more detailed public notice signs on which information could be 
written. He said more general signs make it easier for developers than it does for residents, and 
said the priority should be maintaining transparency for residents.  
 
Chair Clein noted that Mr. Jeffares’ recommendation does not resolve the issue of the wrong 
public notice signs being inadvertently posted by the developer, which is how this issue came to 
the Board. He recommended that the ordinance language be advanced since it does not prescribe 
the sign’s design, and that Staff, the City Manager, and the Commission consider the various 
factors relevant to designing the signs. He said Mr. Jeffares’ concerns were valid. 
 
Mr. Jeffares also advocated for the noticing requirements to be reduced from 15 days to 13 days 
since Planning Board meetings are 14 days apart. He suggested that would alleviate a number of 
the noticing issues the City runs into.  
 
Mr. Williams said he was in favor of more general public notice signs. Mr. Boyle concurred, and 
said that the City website and phone number should be sufficient for members of the public 
seeking information.  

ndupuis
Highlight

ndupuis
Highlight



 
Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings  
July 14, 2021 

 

6 
 

 
It was discussed that the ordinance should require the signs to be “visible from a public right-of-
way” to clarify where the signs should be located.  
 
Mr. Koseck recommended getting rid of the tree and boulevard graphics on the signs.  
 
Staff said they would update the recommended language for Article 7, Section 7.29 to clarify that 
this ordinance only applies to Historic District Commission reviews of non-historic buildings in 
historic districts.  
 
Motion by Mr. Williams 
Seconded by Mr. Boyle to schedule a public hearing for the amendment of Article 7, 
Section 7.29 and Article 7, Section 7.01(b), to August 11, 2021 with changes as noted. 
 
Mr. Jeffares said that while he respected his colleagues’ perspectives he would be 
voting no on principle. 
 
Motion carried, 6-1. 
 
VOICE VOTE 
Yeas: Boyle, Ramin, Koseck, Clein, Williams, Emerine 
Nays: Jeffares 
 
CP Dupuis said this would be an excellent Engage Birmingham topic to explore how much detail 
residents wants to see on the signs. 

 
2. Outdoor Dining 

 
CP Dupuis presented the item.  
 
Mr. Boyle noted that many examples of the outdoor dining he was seeing occur on private 
property, and that Birmingham is considering how to deal with outdoor dining on public property. 
He noted there are key differences in those considerations. He stated that when outdoor dining 
occurs on public property in Europe it often is on very wide sidewalks or in squares adjacent to 
the cafes. 
 
Mr. Jeffares noted that Birmingham’s sidewalks keep getting wider. He said outdoor dining in 
Europe would not be a perfect match to Birmingham but that there would still be things to learn 
from those examples.  
 
Chair Clein told CP Dupuis that he appreciated the high level start to the discussion. 
 
Board members listed aspects of outdoor dining that would need discussion and/or further 
research in order to make ordinance recommendations. Those aspects included whether there 
should be a year-round set of standards, or two sets of standards for the warmer and colder 
months; how pop-ups and social districts might be related; what national downtown associations 
are discussing and recommending for outdoor dining; how winter resort towns like Aspen or Vail 



5F

















5G

























1 

MEMORANDUM 
IT Department 

DATE: 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

08/23/2021 

Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 

Eric Brunk, IT Manager 

GIS Inc. Support Block purchase 

Introduction: 
In the past the City of Birmingham has contracted with Geographic Information 
Services, Inc. (GIS Inc.) for support of our GIS software and systems.  Last year the IT 
department purchased a block of support hours and shared that block across all 
departments that needed GIS support.  The larger the support block purchased the less 
cost per hour of support.   Support blocks expire one year after purchase or when all of 
the hours have been used and it is now time to renew that support block. 

Background: 
The support block hours purchased has varied from year to year based on upcoming 
projects anticipated and the amount of use from past years support we have extended 
the support on occasion when we have used all of the contracted hours. During the past 
year we were able to use the entire amount purchased before the support hours expired 
and are looking this year to expand the amount of support from 95 to 126 hours due to 
an upcoming server / system upgrade project and the expansion of the Cartegraph 
implementation on our GIS server.  

Legal Review: 
We are purchasing a block of hours for professional GIS support – I have no changes in 
the current contract with GIS Inc. to be reviewed other than the number of support 
hours purchased. 

Fiscal impact: 
The IT department feels that increasing the amount from the previous year’s support 
block will adequately cover the amount of support needed for the City for the next year. 
There has been funding for this support block set aside in the Computer Maintenance 
fund account. 

Summary: 
The IT department would like to purchase 126 hours of support from GIS Inc. to run 
from September 2021 to September 2022 with a base cost of $158.25 per hour for a 
total of $19,936.98  THis purchase is considered a sole source purchase pursuant to 
section 2-280(d) of the City Code.

5H



2 

To make a motion to adopt a resolution authorizing the IT department to purchase 
126 block hours of GIS support from Geographic Information Services, Inc. 2100 
Riverchase Center, Suite 105, Birmingham, AL 35244, the total purchase not to exceed 
$19,936.98.  Funds are available in the IT Computer Maintenance fund account # 
636-228.000-993.0600.  This purchase is considered a sole source purchase pursuant to
section 2-280(d) of the City Code.

SUGGESTED COMMISSION ACTION: 



City of Birmingham, MI: GIS Support Block - Prepaid      |     www.gisinc.com     |     1 

August 9, 2021 

Eric Brunk 
Information Technology Manager 
City of Birmingham, MI 
Birmingham, Michigan   

Dear Eric, 

Thank you for your interest in our GIS Support Block. Included in the following pages are GISinc’s Support 
Block details and prices.   

GIS Support Blocks will provide a vehicle for accessing GIS support on-demand to City of Birmingham, MI. 
I hope you find this information helpful. If I can provide further assistance, please do not hesitate to 
contact me.   

Thank you again for your interest.  We look forward to working with you. 

Sincerely,  

Tyler Prahl 
Sr. Account Executive 
Geographic Information Services, Inc. 
2100 Riverchase Center, Suite 105 |Birmingham, AL 35244 
p: 205.725.5930 | m: 612.275.6752 | e: tyler.prahl@gisinc.com 

mailto:tyler.prahl@gisinc.com


 

 
City of Birmingham, MI: GIS Support Block - Prepaid      |     www.gisinc.com     |     2 

 

 

I. GIS Support Block 
 
GIS Support Blocks provide a vehicle for accessing GIS support on-demand.  Once a GIS Support Block is 

put in place, GISinc will provide professional services to assist City of Birmingham, MI with GIS support. 

All services provided as part of the GIS Support Blocks will be conducted by the most effective and cost-

efficient method, including: virtually through remote network access, telephone conference calls, Internet 

(WebEx) demonstrations, or on-site consultants. 

 

How do GIS Support Blocks work? 

Once the GIS Support Block vehicle is in place, GISinc will provide City of Birmingham, MI with a single 

point-of-contact. GISinc will identify the support tasks and establish a communication plan for 

coordinating the activities of the task as well as status reporting.  We will match the support task with the 

correct GISinc resource.   

 

If a support task becomes large, GISinc may require using a management team. This function includes 

people, processes, and technology that are designed to make sure that City of Birmingham, MI receives 

outstanding value. Milestones and completion dates will be established for the Planning and Analysis, 

Client review, Design, Client review, Development, Testing, and Installation/Implementation phases of a 

large task or project.  There are many tasks and risks that have the potential to derail a project. To manage 

this effort, larger tasks or projects that we execute are assigned a Project Coordinator or Technical 

Architect from GISinc. 

 

 

  



 

 
City of Birmingham, MI: GIS Support Block - Prepaid      |     www.gisinc.com     |     3 

 

 

II. Pricing & Acceptance 

Prepaid blocks of hours can be purchased at the prices listed in Table 1 and volume discounts are included 
at each block level. Support block hours expire after 12 months from the date of signature. GISinc will 
invoice City of Birmingham, MI upon receiving the signed form.  

You may indicate your acceptance of the above proposal with a signature from authorized personnel at 
City of Birmingham, MI. Any expenses or travel incurred by GISinc while performing GIS Support Block 
services to City of Birmingham, MI will be billed at actual costs separate from this contract. 

 

 

 

 

City of Birmingham, MI 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Quotation Terms and Conditions 

This confidential quotation is valid for thirty (30) days unless otherwise stated and does not include shipping or tax 
unless otherwise stated. This quotation information is proprietary and may not be copied or released other than for 
the express purpose of system and service selection and purchase.  This information may not be given to outside 
parties or used for any other purpose without written consent from Geographic Information Services, Inc. (GISinc). 
 
Payment Terms: Client will be billed monthly for all travel expenses and labor costs based on hours worked.  Client 
agrees to NET 30 terms after receipt of invoice on this prepaid GIS support block. Supporting details will be provided 
as requested to detail the hours, rates, and deliverable(s) performed during the preceding month. 
 

TABLE 1 

Prepaid Cost Hourly Rate Hours 

$2,500 to $15,000 $166.67 15.0 to 90.0 

$15,001 to $30,000 $158.23 94.5 to 189.5 

$30,001 to $55,000 $151.52 198.0 to 363.0 

$55,001+ $147.06 374.0+ 

Support Block 
Amount:  

Signature:  

Name:  

Title:  

Date:  

126 hours

Eric V. Brunk

IT Manager

September 01, 2021



 

Version 1.0  08Jan2019 

 

 

Standard Terms and Conditions 

 

These standard terms and conditions (“Terms and Conditions”) apply to any proposal, quotation and the resultant 

agreement relating to products and services sold by Geographic Information Services, Inc (“GISinc”) to a customer 

(“Customer”). These Terms and Conditions, together with the proposal, quotation and contract, including any statement 

of work, herein SOW, shall constitute the entire agreement (“Agreement”) between the parties. 

These Terms and Conditions are governed by the terms of the applicable License Agreement for any incorporated 

software (“License Agreement”). Capitalized terms used and not otherwise defined herein shall have the respective 

meaning set forth in the License Agreement. 



 

Version 1.0  08Jan2019 

1. GENERAL PROVISIONS. 
 

This proposal including the SOW and all Terms and 

Conditions set forth herein, constitutes the entire 

agreement between GISinc and Customer. The Terms 

and Conditions of the proposal shall govern and 

control the terms of any purchase order or purchase 

confirmation form from the Customer. Customer 

acknowledges that GISinc has not authorized any of its 

sales agents or representatives to make any 

representations, warranties or agreements on behalf 

of, or to bind GISinc in any way. This confidential 

proposal is valid for thirty (30) days and unless 

otherwise stated. 

2. SCOPE OF SERVICES. 
 

During the term of the Agreement, GISinc shall furnish 

the services in accordance with the SOW set forth in 

the proposal. 

3. WORK PERFORMANCE. 
 

GISinc agrees that all work performed hereunder shall 

be performed on a best effort basis by GISinc’s staff 

having an appropriate experience and skill level, and 

in compliance with the SOW. 

4. TAXES. 
 

Unless this Agreement specifies otherwise, the price 

included in the proposal does not include, and 

Customer is liable for and shall pay, all taxes, 

impositions, charges, and exactions imposed on or 

measured by this Agreement. Prices shall not include 

any taxes, impositions, charges, or exactions for which 

Customer has furnished a valid exemption certificate or 

evidence of exemption. 

5. CHANGES. 
 

No changes, modification, amendment shall be 

binding upon GISinc unless otherwise agreed to in 

writing. Customer’s authorized representative may in 

writing, direct changes within the general scope of the 

Agreement. If such change increases or decreases the 

cost or time required to perform this Agreement, 

Customer and GISinc shall negotiate an equitable 

adjustment in the price and schedule to reflect the 

appropriate change. GISinc shall adjust the proposal to 

reflect the change. Customer shall modify any purchase 

order or confirmation form and reissue to GISinc 

accordingly. 

6. INVOICE AND PAYMENT. 
 

Customer shall pay GISinc within thirty (30) days after 

receipt of invoice or as per the terms indicated in the 

proposal. GISinc will bill Customer monthly for all travel 

expenses and labor costs based on hours worked. 

7. CANCELLATION. 
 

Customer shall provide thirty (30) days written notice to 

GISinc prior to canceling an order. Customer will 

compensate GISinc for all authorized services 

satisfactorily performed through the cancellation date 

under the payment terms in section 6 of these Terms 

and Conditions. 

8. ASSIGNMENT. 
 

Neither party shall assign any of its rights or interest in 

this Agreement or subcontract all or substantially all of 

its performance of this Agreement without the other 

party’s prior written consent. 

9. INDEMNITY. 
 

<RESERVED> 

 

10. WARRANTY. 
 

GISinc warrants that it will perform the services in good 

faith and in conformance with professional industry 

standards. All GISinc employees, that work on the 

project, shall have the knowledge, education, training, 

skills and experience of the subject matter to which they 

will be performing services. 

GISinc warrants the completed application against 

bugs and defects for a period of 30 days after 

acceptance. Ongoing support, functional 

enhancements, or performance issues caused by a 

change in the customer’s IT environment are not 

included in the warranty. Coverage for these items will 

require a separate agreement. 

11. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. 
 

NOTWITHSTANDING ANY OTHER PROVISION HEREOF, 

GISINC SHALL NOT BE LIABLE FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL, 

SPECIAL, INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, PUNITIVE OR EXEMPLARY 

LOSS, DAMAGE, COST OR EXPENSE (INCLUDING, 

WITHOUT LIMITATION, LOST PROFITS AND OPPORTUNITY 

COSTS), EVEN IF THE CUSTOMER HAS BEEN ADVISED, OR 

SHOULD HAVE KNOWN OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH 

DAMAGES. GISINC’S AGGREGATE LIABILITY FOR 

DAMAGES ARISING OUT OF, RELATING TO OR IN ANY 



 

Version 1.0  08Jan2019 

WAY CONNECTED WITH THE RELATIONSHIP OF THE 

PARTIES, THIS AGREEMENT, ITS NEGOTIATION OR 

TERMINATION, OR PURSUANT TO ANY SOW (WHETHER IN 

CONTRACT OR TORT) SHALL IN NO EVENT EXCEED THE 

AMOUNT OF FEES RECEIVED BY GISINC FROM 

CUSTOMER PURSUANT TO THE APPLICABLE SOW UNDER 

WHICH THE ALLEGED LIABILITY AROSE. 

12. FORCE MAJEURE. 
 

Neither party will be liable to the other for delays in 

performing any obligations under the Agreement due 

to circumstances beyond its reasonable control, 

including but not limited to revolts, insurrections, riots, 

wars, acts of enemies, national emergency, strikes, 

floods, earthquake, embargo, inability to secure 

materials or transportation, and acts of God, and other 

events beyond the reasonable control of the parties 

caused by nature or governmental authorities. 

13. SERVERABILITY. 
 

If any provision of the Agreement is found to be invalid, 

illegal or unenforceable, then, notwithstanding such 

invalidity, illegality or unenforceability, the Agreement 

and the remaining provisions shall continue in full force 

and effect. In this event the parties will agree upon a 

valid, binding and enforceable substitute provision 

which shall be as close as possible to the commercial 

interests of the invalid or unenforceable provision. 

14. GENERAL SERVICES ADMINISTRATION SCHEDULE 
 

As indicated in the proposal, if applicable, this 

Agreement incorporates and shall be governed by the 

terms of a General Services Administration (“GSA”) 

Schedule entered by GISinc and the United States 

Government. GISinc’s GSA Schedule number: GS-35F- 

0682R. 

15. GOVERNING LAW. 
 

This Agreement and any disputes arising out of, or 

relating to, this Agreement shall be governed by the 

laws of the State of Alabama without regard to the 

conflict of law rules thereof, provided that (i) contract 

provisions that have been incorporated directly from or 

by express reference to the Federal Acquisition 

Regulations (“FAR”), FAR supplements or GSA schedule 

terms, (ii) contract provisions that have been flowed 

down from a contract with the U.S. Government, and 

(iii) the Changes and Termination for Convenience 

articles, shall be construed and interpreted according 

to the federal common law of government contracts, 

as enunciated and applied by federal judicial bodies, 

boards of contract appeals, and quasi-judicial 

agencies of the federal government. 

16. DISPUTE RESOLUTION. 
 

Customer and GISinc shall endeavor to resolve any 

controversy, claim or dispute arising out of or relating to 

the Agreement, or the performance or breach thereof, 

by negotiation. Any claim that is not resolved by 

negotiation within thirty (30) days of notification shall be 

settled by arbitration administered by the American 

Arbitration Association under its Commercial Arbitration 

Rules, and judgment on the award rendered by the 

arbitrator(s) may be entered in any court having 

jurisdiction thereof. The hearing locale will be held in 

the AAA office closest to GISinc corporate 

headquarters. 

17. OTHER. 
 

This Agreement shall be governed by and constructed 

in accordance with the laws of the State of Alabama 

without regard to conflicts of laws provisions thereof. 



 

Version 1.0  08Jan2019 

Both GISinc and Customer will comply with all laws 

applicable to the Agreement. 

All notices given under the Agreement will be effective 

wen received in writing. Notices to the Customer and 

GISinc will be sent to the address provided in the 

proposal. 

Changes to the Agreement must be in writing and must 

be signed by both parties. 

GISinc’s total liability to Customer for any reason shall 

not exceed the total amount paid to GISinc by 

Customer for the services provided under this 

Agreement. 

18. COMPLETE AGREEMENT. 
 

Customer acknowledges that it has read the 

Agreement, understands it and agrees to be bound by 

its Terms and Conditions. This contract contains the 

entire agreement of the parties and supersedes any 

and all prior agreements, understandings and 

communications between Customer and GISinc 

related to the subject matter of this contract. No 

amendment or modification of this contract shall bind 

either party unless it is in writing and is signed by 

Customer’s authorized representative and an 

authorized representative of GISinc. 

 

 



1 

MEMORANDUM 
Engineering Department 

DATE: August 18, 2021  

TO: Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 

FROM: James J. Surhigh, Consulting City Engineer 

SUBJECT: Emergency Repair – Sewer at Maple & Henrietta 

INTRODUCTION: 
• After the intense rain storm event on June 25, 2021, a resident reported water flowing

out of the ground, and then a “sinkhole” forming in one of the recently constructed planter
boxes on the north side of W. Maple Road, just west of Henrietta Street.

• Conditions were inspected by Engineering and Department of Public Services personnel,
where it was determined that the ground settlement was likely related to a problem with
a sewer, and that that repairs should be completed as soon as practicable before further
settlement or other damages to the recently constructed Maple Road streetscape or
roadway occurred.  The City Manager was asked to authorize an emergency repair of the
apparent sewer failure.

• The City Manager authorized the Engineering Department to engage a sewer contractor
to complete the necessary repairs.  Aaron’s Excavating completed the emergency repair
work on July 6 & 7, 2021.

BACKGROUND: 
As part of the Maple Road Reconstruction project completed in November 2020, new 
storm and combined sewers were installed in the area of the reported problem.  After 
reviewing the plans and discussion with inspectors who were present during that work, 
there was not a record of any City sewers or private sewer laterals, being present at the 
location of the sinkhole.  It was suspected that the likely cause was an old sewer service 
to the building at 214 W. Maple that was thought to have been abandoned and not 
reconnected to the new sewers during the Maple Road reconstruction project.  

Aaron’s Excavating Inc. was contacted to provide a quote for exploratory excavation and 
emergency repair of the sewer as needed.  Due to the uncertain nature of the exploratory 
excavation work to confirm the problem, a definitive quote could not be provided.  Aaron’s 
Excavating has completed work directly for the City in the past, as well as on numerous 
private sites under City permits, and has a reputation for high-quality workmanship and a 
history of providing fair pricing for the work they do.  On past projects for the City, the 
approximate daily cost for the sewer crew and equipment was approximately $3,000 to 
$3,500, so depending on what was discovered to be the problem upon excavation, the 
Engineering Department anticipated the costs to be $3,500 to $7,000. 

Aaron’s Excavating excavated the area on July 6, 2021, and found that there was an old 
building service pipe that had not been connected to the new sewers.  It was surmised 
that during the Maple Road construction, work was being done on the internal 

5I



2 
 
 

plumbing/drains in that building, and that storm drainage from the building (via roof drains 
and sump pump) had been disconnected from the service pipe, which is why it was 
thought to have been abandoned at the time.  Upon the building owner completing their 
work, storm flows had begun being discharged to the pipe, which then started a process 
of erosion that became evident after the large amount of precipitation occurring in June 
2021.  The Engineering Department believes this was an unforeseen condition, and not 
the Maple Road reconstruction contractor’s fault. 
 
Aaron’s Excavating completed the emergency sewer repair on July 7, 2021 by installing 
new PVC storm sewer to connect the existing building service pipe to the recently 
constructed catch basin nearby.  The final invoice for the emergency repair work was 
$6,650. 
 

LEGAL REVIEW:  
The City Attorney reviewed the circumstances, and does not object to the recommended 
approach. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:  

The cost from Aarons Excavating to complete the emergency sewer repair is $6,650.00.  
Funds are available in the Sewer Fund, Other Contractual Services account #590-536.001-
811.0000. 

 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 

Special public communications were not necessary for this project.  Work was completed 
with access from City property, and during normal working hours. 

 
SUMMARY 

The Engineering Department requests City Commission confirmation of the City Manager’s 
authorization to proceed with the emergency sewer repair on W. Maple Road at Henrietta 
Street. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:   

The following attachments accompany this report:  
• General Project Location Map 
• Purchase Order No. 113913 
• Invoice #5900 

 
SUGGESTED COMMISSION ACTION: 

To make a motion to adopt a resolution confirming the City Manager’s authorization for 
the emergency expenditure related to the sewer repair on W. Maple Road at Henrietta 
Street by Aaron’s Excavating, for a cost not to exceed $6,650.00 to be charged to the 
Sewer Fund, Other Contractual Services account #590-536.001-811.0000, pursuant to 
Sec. 2-286 of the City Code. 



0 0.008 0.016 0.024 0.0320.004
Miles

Ü

Emergency Sewer Repair

jsurhigh
Text Box
HENRIETTA ST

jsurhigh
Oval

jsurhigh
Callout
REPORTED "SINKHOLE"LOCATION



Terms

PO BOX 3001

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM

BIRMINGHAM, MI 48012

Invoice 

P.O. Box 3001, 151 Martin Street
Birmingham, MI 48012-3001
Phone: (248)530-1816  Fax: (248)530-1090
accountspayable@bhamgov.org

Amount Unit Price Description UnitsQuantity 

EMERGENCY SEWER REPAIR - MAPLE & HENRIETTAPO Description

BIRMINGHAM, MI  48009
151 MARTIN

ENGINEERINGShip to

WATERFORD, MI  48329

4159 FOLEY STREET
Address AARON'S EXCAVATING INC

Vendor 005358

Ordered By jsurhigh
Required Date

07/12/2021Purchase Order Date

113913Purchase Order No

02:22 PM
08/17/2021

ENGINEERING

NET 30 DAYS

6,650.00 6,650.00 EMERGENCY SEWER REPAIR EACH1 
6,650.00  590-536.001-981.0100

Kindly show purchase order number on invoice.

If applicable, a material safety sheet should be included with material shipped.

To the fullest extent permitted by law, vendor agrees to defend, indemnify, pay in behalf of and hold harmless the Cit
its elected and appointed officials, employees and volunteers, and others working on behalf of the City against any an
all claims, demands, suits or loss, including all costs connected therewith, for any damages which may be asserted,
claimed or recovered against or from the City, its elected and appointed officials, employees, volunteers or others
working on behalf of the City, by reason of personal injury, including bodily injury and death and/or property damage,
including loss of use thereof, which arises out of or is in any way connected or associated with this purchase order
contract.

Indemnification:

The vendor shall carry workers' compensation insurance in accordance with all applicable statutes of the State of
Michigan; commercial general liability and products and completed operations coverage; vehicle liability insurance
covering all owned, non-owned and hired vehicles.  Vendor shall furnish certificates of insurance evidencing the 
coverages outlined in this paragraph to the City of Birmingham upon request.

Insurance Requirements:

This purchase order is issued subject to the terms and conditions specified below.  By acceptance of this purchase
order, vendor acknowledges and agrees to abide by all such terms and conditions.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

08/17/2021DateApproved By

6,650.00 Total:



Bill To:
City of Birmingham Engineering Department
151 Martin Steet
Birmingham, MI 48012
ATTN:  Scott

Invoice

Serviced Item Description Amount
07/06/21 storm sewer 1.  Excavated and exposed bulkheaded 8" clay storm sewer,

utilities, fiber optic casings and new catch basin under edge
of curb.  Using mini excavator and city's vactor truck.
2.  Hauled spoils to city DPS yard.
3.  Core driller could not core drill 10" hole in new catch basin
due to fiber optic casings obstructing access.
4.  Barricaded excavation for overnight safety.

6,650.00

07/07/21 storm sewer 5.  Continued cleaning out bottom of excavation with vactor
truck for core driller.
6.  Core driller arrived with additional equipment for
anchoring drilling machine around fiber optic casings.
7.  Core drilled 10" hole in side of catch basin for installation
of new 8" sch 40 pvc storm line.
8.  Hauled in clean stone for bedding around new piping.
9.  Installed new 8" sch 40 pvc storm line from existing 8"
clay storm line to catch basin under edge of curb.
10.  Sealed hole in catch basin with hydraulic cement.
(around new pvc piping)
11.  Installed clean stone under and around new pvc piping
for stability.
12.  Hauled in and installed 2 loads of sand from DPS yard
and compacted.

Date
07/09/21

Aaron's Excavating, Inc.
4159 Foley St.
Waterford, MI 48329
248-674-2224

Invoice No.
5900

P.O. Number Terms
Due on receipt

TotalWe appreciate your business!

Ship To
214 W. Maple
Birmingham, MI  480098

Payments/Credit
s $0.00

Balance Due $6,650.00

Page 1



Bill To:
City of Birmingham Engineering Department
151 Martin Steet
Birmingham, MI 48012
ATTN:  Scott

Invoice

Serviced Item Description Amount
13.  Hauled in and installed 2 loads of top soil from DPS yard.
14.  Cleaned up site.

Date
07/09/21

Aaron's Excavating, Inc.
4159 Foley St.
Waterford, MI 48329
248-674-2224

Invoice No.
5900

P.O. Number Terms
Due on receipt

TotalWe appreciate your business!

Ship To
214 W. Maple
Birmingham, MI  480098

Payments/Credit
s $0.00

Balance Due $6,650.00

Date
07/09/21

Aaron's Excavating, Inc.
4159 Foley St.
Waterford, MI 48329
248-674-2224

Invoice No.
5900

P.O. Number Terms
Due on receipt

Total $6,650.00We appreciate your business!

Ship To
214 W. Maple
Birmingham, MI  480098

Payments/Credit
s $0.00

Balance Due $6,650.00

Page 2



1 

MEMORANDUM 
Engineering Department 

DATE: August 17, 2021 

TO: Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 

FROM: James J. Surhigh, Consulting City Engineer 

SUBJECT: Emergency Repair – Quarton Dam Gate Mechanism 

INTRODUCTION: 
• In August 2020, during routine debris removal work being completed at the Quarton Dam

spillway by the Department of Public Services (DPS), the auxiliary spillway gate operating
mechanism was damaged.  Midwest Power Systems, a specialty contractor that works on
mechanical gate systems, was called in to perform temporary repairs on the gate to
prevent an uncontrolled discharge from occurring.  However, the temporary repair that
stabilized the gate will not allow its proper operation.

• The long-term repair includes replacing the damaged parts of the lifting mechanism, and
the City Manager authorized the Engineering Department to order the replacement parts
through Midwest Powers Systems and proceed with scheduling the repairs.  Midwest
Power Systems, who is uniquely familiar with the condition of the gate system, provided
a quote to complete the necessary repairs, in the amount of $17,150.

BACKGROUND: 
A. The Quarton Dam is located on the Quarton Branch of the Rouge River.  In 2004, major

rehabilitation of the dam system was performed, which included installation of a new
auxiliary spillway gate and operating mechanism.  Upstream of Quarton Lake, the river is
in a natural state, and debris from fallen trees, organic materials from seasonal vegetation
cycles, and material dislodged from aquatic habitat has the potential to float downstream
and accumulate on the spillway steps and auxiliary spillway grates.

B. In 2020, a large tree was observed to have floated downstream and was lodged against
the spillway.  DPS mobilized to remove the large tree and other debris in August 2020,
and determined that the auxiliary spillway gate needed to be lowered to facilitate the
debris removal.  During this procedure, the gate operating mechanism was damaged.
Midwest Power Systems, a specialty contractor that works on mechanical gate systems,
was called in to perform temporary repairs on the gate to prevent an uncontrolled
discharge from occurring.  However, the temporary repair to stabilize the gate will not
allow for its proper operation.  The long-term repair includes replacing the damaged parts
of the lifting mechanism, which includes the lifting stems that must be special ordered to
fit the exact dimensions of the mechanism, and have a long lead-time.

C. Midwest Power Systems provided a quote for removing the temporary repairs and
installing the long-term replacement parts for the total amount of $17,150.  The
Engineering Department believed it was critical to order the parts in time so that
construction of a cofferdam to complete the repairs would not be needed, thereby adding
to the cost of the repairs.

5J



2 

D. Due to the critical nature of the repair, and Midwest Power Systems’ unique familiarity
with the conditions of the gate system and requirements for the necessary repairs, the
Engineering Department requested emergency authorization from the City Manager to
complete this work.  On May 6, 2021, Midwest Power Systems was authorized to order
the necessary parts and complete the long-term repairs to the gate mechanism as
described in their quote, for a cost not to exceed $17,150, as an emergency purchase in
accordance with Section 2-286 of the City Code.

E. On August 11, 2021, the repairs to the gate mechanism were completed by Midwest Power
Systems.  There were no additional charges, and the final invoice to the City was in the
amount of $17,150.

LEGAL REVIEW: 
F. The City Attorney reviewed the circumstances, and does not object to the recommended

approach.

FISCAL IMPACT: 
G. The cost from Midwest Power Systems to complete the repair of the auxiliary spillway gate

lifting mechanism is $17,150.00.  Funds are available in the Quarton Lake Maintenance
account #101-751.000-935.0300.

PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 
H. Special public communications were not necessary for this project.  Work was completed

with access from City property, and during normal working hours.

SUMMARY 
I. The Engineering Department requests City Commission confirmation of the City Manager’s

authorization to proceed with the emergency repair of the Quarton Dam auxiliary spillway
gate lifting mechanism.

ATTACHMENTS: 
J. The following attachments accompany this report:

• General Project Location Map
• Quote from Midwest Power Systems
• Purchase Order No. 113850

SUGGESTED COMMISSION ACTION: 
A. To make a motion to adopt a resolution confirming the City Manager’s authorization for

the emergency expenditure related to the repair of the Quarton Dam auxiliary spillway
gate lifting mechanism by Midwest Power Systems, for a cost not to exceed for $17,150.00
to be charged to the Quarton Lake Maintenance account #101-751.000-935.0300,
pursuant to Sec. 2-286 of the City Code.



0 0.03 0.06 0.09 0.120.015
Miles

Ü

Quarton Lake Dam

jsurhigh
Oval

jsurhigh
Callout
PROJECT LOCATION





Terms

PO BOX 3001

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM

BIRMINGHAM, MI 48012

Invoice to

P.O. Box 3001, 151 Martin Street
Birmingham, MI 48012-3001
Phone: (248)530-1816  Fax: (248)530-1090
accountspayable@bhamgov.org

Amount Unit Price Description UnitsQuantity 

EMERGENCY REPAIR - QUARTON DAM SPILLWAY GATEPO Description

BIRMINGHAM, MI  48009

151 MARTIN

ENGINEERINGShip to

MILFORD, MI  48380

2401 HICKORY OAK
Address MIDWEST POWER SYSTEMS, INC

Vendor 008127

Ordered By jsurhigh

Required Date
05/06/2021Purchase Order Date

113850Purchase Order No

12:13 PM

05/06/2021

ENGINEERING

NET 30 DAYS

17,150.00 17,150.00 AUX SPILLWAY GATE LIFTING MECHANISM EACH1 
17,150.00  101-751.000-935.0300

Kindly show purchase order number on invoice.

If applicable, a material safety sheet should be included with material shipped.

To the fullest extent permitted by law, vendor agrees to defend, indemnify, pay in behalf of and hold harmless the City,
its elected and appointed officials, employees and volunteers, and others working on behalf of the City against any and
all claims, demands, suits or loss, including all costs connected therewith, for any damages which may be asserted,
claimed or recovered against or from the City, its elected and appointed officials, employees, volunteers or others
working on behalf of the City, by reason of personal injury, including bodily injury and death and/or property damage,
including loss of use thereof, which arises out of or is in any way connected or associated with this purchase order
contract.

Indemnification:

The vendor shall carry workers' compensation insurance in accordance with all applicable statutes of the State of
Michigan; commercial general liability and products and completed operations coverage; vehicle liability insurance
covering all owned, non-owned and hired vehicles.  Vendor shall furnish certificates of insurance evidencing the 
coverages outlined in this paragraph to the City of Birmingham upon request.

Insurance Requirements:

This purchase order is issued subject to the terms and conditions specified below.  By acceptance of this purchase
order, vendor acknowledges and agrees to abide by all such terms and conditions.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

05/06/2021DateApproved By

17,150.00 Total:



1 

MEMORANDUM 

Police Department 

DATE: August 17, 2021 

TO:  Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 

FROM:  Scott Grewe, Operations Commander 

SUBJECT:  Chester Parking Structure Elevator Repairs 

INTRODUCTION: 
Staff was notified on August 5, 2021 that the sump pump located in the control room for the 
elevator at the southeast corner of the Chester Structure had failed resulting in flooding.  SP Plus 
was directed to contact contractors to drain and inspect the pump and elevator for damage.   

After the area was drained, the pump was found to be defective and was replaced.   The elevator 
was inspected by KONE Elevators for damage resulting from the flood.  Due to the water rising 
to a level reaching the control arm for the elevator, water was able to infiltrate the oil basin as 
the arm extended and retracted during use before the flooding was detected.   

KONE elevator, who has been the maintenance company for the City’s elevators for an extended 
period of time, advised and prepared a estimate to remove and replace the contaminated oil and 
to replace the “jack packing” that was also damaged.   

LEGAL REVIEW: 
None 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
The estimate provided by KONE is $7,345.00.  This will be paid out of the parking fund. 

SUMMARY: 
Flooding in the room containing the “jack head” for the elevator at the southeast corner of the 
Chester Structure was located.  As a result of the water, damage was done to the elevator which 
was shut down as a result.  A quote was obtained from KONE elevator to repair the elevator to 
get it back in operation.  This elevator is located directly across from the Baldwin House and used 
regularly by residents. When the elevator is not in operation, residents are forced to use the other 
elevator which is a significant distance away.  Out of concern for mobility challenged residents of 
the Baldwin House being forced to traverse a further distance to the elevator and their vehicles, 
this repair was approved by City Manager Markus as an emergency repair.  KONE was contacted 
to proceed with repairs as soon as possible. 

Additionally, SP Plus was directed to contact plumbing contractors to obtain quotes for the 
installation of a backup sump pump, with alarm, to ensure added protection is in place to prevent 
this type of damage in the future. 

5K



2 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Estimate from KONE Elevator

SUGGESTED COMMISSION ACTION: 
To make a motion adopting a resolution confirming the City Manager’s authorization for 
the emergency expenditure related to the repair of the Chester Street structure elevator by KONE 
Elevator for a cost not to exceed $7,345.00 to be charged to the Automobile Parking System 
Fund, Chester Parking Structure Elevator Maintenance account #585-538.008-930.0200, 
pursuant to Sec. 2-286 of the City Code. 











1 

MEMORANDUM 

Police Department 

DATE: August 17, 2021 

TO:  Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 

FROM:  Scott Grewe, Operations Commander 

SUBJECT:  Amended Contract  with SP Plus Corporation 

INTRODUCTION: 
In the fall of 2020, the Police Department took over operations of the parking structures.  During 
the initial months, operations and contractual service/contracts were reviewed.  Staff reviewed 
the contract for SP Plus Corporation, managing contractor for the day-to-day operations of the 
parking structures and identified areas of concern.  Staff had several meetings with SP Plus initially 
that now include regularly scheduled monthly meeting to review financials and maintenance.   

BACKGROUND: 
SP Plus (National Garages) has been serving the City of Birmingham since April 1954.  In early 
2019, the City put out an RFP for parking services and received four bids.  At the July 8, 2019 
City Commission meeting, the Commission selected SP Plus Corporation to continue the City’s 
Parking Management Services. 

During the fall of 2020, the Police Department took over operations of the parking structures and 
oversight of SP Plus Corporation.  Upon reviewing the contract, police department staff identified 
concerns and asked the City Attorney to review the contract. 

LEGAL REVIEW: 
The City Attorney reviewed the contract and determined it to be fraught with paragraphs and 
provisions whereby it would appear as though the employees of SP Plus were acting and assuming 
responsibilities as though they were City employees. Therefore, it became necessary to rewrite 
and rework this contract to clarify that employees of SP Plus are not under the domain and 
umbrella of the City of Birmingham, and, thereby not assuming any responsibilities and liabilities 
for SP Plus employees.  It is the City Attorney’s opinion that the new contract protects the City in 
the best possible way, allowing services for the parking system to our benefit. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
There is no change in existing contract in terms of finances or length of term. 

SUMMARY: 
Upon review of the existing contract with SP Plus Corporation it was determined there were areas 
of concern for the City.  Upon review by the City Attorney, proposed changes were made in the 
contract.  After meetings with SP Plus and their legal team, an agreement was reached and signed 
by SP Plus.  The result of the amended contract is a clear distinction that SP Plus employees are 

5L



2 

in no way under the domain and umbrella of the City and that the City is not assuming any 
responsibilities and liabilities for SP Plus employees. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. July 8, 2019 Memo to the Commission for Parking Management Services
2. July 8, 2019 City Commission Minutes
3. New amended contract with SP Plus Corporation

SUGGESTED COMMISSION ACTION: 
Make a motion adopting a resolution to amend the contract with SP Plus Corporation for
Parking Management Services for the five City owned parking structures.  Furthermore, to 
direct the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the agreement on behalf of the City. 









































1 

MEMORANDUM 

Police Department 

DATE: August 11, 2021 

TO:  Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 

FROM:  Scott Grewe, Operations Commander 

SUBJECT:  Stop Sign Request (Ravine at Ferndale and Brookside) 

INTRODUCTION: 

The police department received an email on June 21, 2021 from resident Kate Safford
regarding people speeding on Ravine (attached).  Staff spoke with Ms. Safford who
stated vehicles coming off Old Woodward and turning south onto Ferndale were
speeding.  She believed a good portion of the issue was related to carry out service at
Market North.  However, Ms. Safford further stated the curve of the intersection and
landscaping caused safety concerns due to reduced visibility. 

BACKGROUND: 

The intersection of Ferndale and Ravine only has a stop sign for northbound traffic on
Ferndale at Ravine.  There is no traffic control from the alley to the north, or on Ravine.
Ms. Stafford noted some of the neighbors have suggested a 4-way stop at this
intersection.  Ravine is a curved roadway, and as a result, gives drivers limited sight
distance at Ferndale when exiting the alley to see approaching vehicles from either
direction on Ravine.

Staff contacted Fleis & Vandenbrink (F&V) and asked they review the intersection and
provide a recommendation. F&V conducted a review of the intersection and agreed with
resident concerns advising the sight lines did not provide adequate sight distance at the
intersection of Ravine and Ferndale.  Additionally, F&V also examined the intersection of
Ravine and Brookside and concluded that it also had sight line concerns. 

LEGAL REVIEW: 
None 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
Signage will be ordered and installed by DPS.  Cost of the signs is expected to be approximately 
$200. 

SUMMARY: 
Staff received a complaint from a resident regarding the safety of the intersection at Ravine and 
Ferndale requesting a 4-way stop be installed.  The City’s consultants were contacted and 
conducted a review.  While there was no accident data to suggest the intersection was unsafe, 
F&V noted the sight distance was not adequate and recommended a 4-way stop be installed.  

5M



2 

F&V also reviewed the intersection of Ravine and Brookside due to its close proximity and came 
to the same conclusion.  Therefore, F&V also recommend a stop sign for southbound Brookside 
at Ravine.  (See attached report from F&V) 

This was reviewed by the Multi-Modal Transportation Board (MMTB) at their August 5, 2021 
meeting.  The MMTB passed a recommendation to the City Commission to approve the installation 
of the stop signs recommended by F&V at both locations. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Email complaint from resident Kate Safford.
2. F&V Report.
3. Memo to the MMTB.
4. Minutes from the August 5, 2021 meeting of the MMTB.

SUGGESTED COMMISSION ACTION: 

Make a motion adopting a resolution to approve the installation of a 4-way stop control
at the intersection of Ferndale and Ravine and the installation of a stop sign on the
southbound approach of Brookside at Ravine.



2 
 
 

On Mon, Jun 21, 2021 at 8:20 PM Kate Safford <katesafford@sbcglobal.net> wrote: 
Loved your update BTW - concise, nothing but the facts, just straight-forward facts. 
  
On a separate note, my husband and I live on Ravine (a block from Market North corner and the newly 
renovated "Red" Studio to become a restaurant soon).   How do we get the police to put up mph 
signs??   Now we have all kinds of people speeding up our street, turning around in and out of the alley 
(we are the stone and tile house at 211 - the alley is next to our home), and driving around the block 
because there is no parking for their pickup.  I can't believe that the "City" allowed another restaurant in 
this neighborhood.  There's already no parking.   I'm not kidding, folks pass by the restaurant, go around 
the curve and speed up the street.  Someone, perhaps a child will be killed.   Some of the neighbors have 
suggested a 4-way stop at Ravine and Ferndale.  We sit out on our porch in the evening, and now it's 
loud.   Where shall we start?  We knew Chief Studt, but he's gone.  Shall I bring this up on the "Bang the 
Table website?" 
  
I am copying you Brad because you are in the neighborhood as well.  It's truly gotten crazy.  Perhaps we 
need a car counter or something to check out the traffic increase and perhaps a speed calculator? 
  
  
Kate Safford 
248-867-3442 
 
 

mailto:katesafford@sbcglobal.net


 
 
 
 

MEMO 

27725 Stansbury Boulevard, Suite 195 
Farmington Hills, MI 48334 

P: 248.536.0080 
F: 248.536.0079 

Ferndale & Ravine Intersection Evaluation FINAL Memo 7-29-2021  www.fveng.com 

 VIA EMAIL 

To: Cmdr. Scott Grewe, Operations Commander 
Birmingham Police 

From: 
Julie M. Kroll, PE, PTOE 
Nick Van Heck, EIT 
Fleis & VandenBrink Engineering 

Date: July 29, 2021 

Re: Ferndale Ave. and Ravine Rd. Multi-Way Stop Evaluation 

 
Fleis & VandenBrink (F&V) staff is pleased to present this memorandum to the City of Birmingham for your use 
evaluating the intersection of Ferndale Avenue & Ravine Road.  The City of Birmingham has received input 
from neighborhood residents regarding the safety of this intersection and requested an evaluation to determine 
what mitigation measures should be considered. 

F&V performed a field review to evaluate the intersection and it was determined that multi-way stop control 
should be considered.  Therefore, further analysis was performed to determine if this mitigation is recommended 
in accordance with the guidance outlined in the Michigan Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MMUTCD) 
Sections 2B.04, 2B.06, and 2B.07. Additional information is provided in the American Association of State 
Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO) Geometric Design of Highway and Streets (Green Book). The 
results of the analysis and the recommendations are included herein.  

INTERSECTION CONTROL ANALYSIS 
The study intersection of Ferndale Avenue & Ravine Road is a four-leg intersection that provides stop-control 
only on the northbound approach (south leg) of Ferndale Avenue.  Section 2B.07 of the MMUTCD provides a 
set of criteria to evaluate in order to determine when the installation of multi-way stop should be considered at 
an intersection.  The applicable criterion includes the evaluation of the Crash History and Sight Distance at the 
intersection. 

CRASH HISTORY 
Five or more reported crashes in a 12-month period that are susceptible to correction by a multi-way stop 
installation.  Such crashes include right-turn and left-turn collisions as well as right-angle collisions. Not met. 
A crash analysis for the study intersection was performed and the most recent 10-years of available data (2011-
2020) was collected from Michigan Traffic Crash Facts.  The results of the analysis showed one weather related 
crash that occurred March 2014.  Therefore, no correctable crash history was identified at this intersection. 

SIGHT DISTANCE  
Locations where a road user, after stopping, cannot see conflicting traffic and is not able to negotiate the 
intersection unless conflicting cross traffic is also required to stop. Met. 
The intersection sight distance evaluation is shown on the attached exhibit and shows that there is not adequate 
sight distance to support the existing intersection operations. Therefore, an All-Way Stop controlled intersection 
is recommended for Ferndale Avenue and Ravine Road. 

Additionally, during the field review it was identified that the adjacent intersection at Brookside Avenue does 
not provide a Stop sign on this minor street approach.  Due to the sight distance limitations on Ravine Road, it 
is recommended that a Stop sign is provided on the Brookside Ave. approach. 



City of Birmingham | Ferndale & Ravine Intersection Evaluation 
July 29, 2021 │ Page 2 of 2 

Ferndale & Ravine Intersection Evaluation FINAL Memo 7-29-2021   

RECOMMENDATIONS 
1. Provide All-Way Stop control at the Ferndale Road & Ravine Road intersection. 

2. Provide a Stop sign on the Brookside Ave. approach at Ravine Road. 

If you have any questions or concerns regarding this engineering analysis, please contact our office. 
 
NVH:jmk 





1 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

Engineering Dept. 
Planning Dept. 

Police Dept. 
DATE:  July 30, 2021  
 
TO:  Multi-Modal Transportation Board 
 
FROM: Jim Surhigh, City Engineer 

Jana Ecker, Planning Director 
  Scott Grewe, Police Commander 
 
SUBJECT:      Signage Request on Ravine 
 
 
 
INTRODUCTION 
The police department received an email on June 21, 2021 from resident Kate Safford 
regarding people speeding on Ravine (attached).  Staff spoke with Ms. Safford who 
stated vehicles coming off Old Woodward and turning south on Ferndale were speeding.  
She believed a good portion of the issue was related to carry out service at Market.  
However, Ms. Safford stated the curve of the intersection and landscaping caused safety 
concerns due to reduced visibility. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The intersection of Ferndale and Ravine only has a stop sign for northbound traffic on 
Ferndale at Ravine.  There is no traffic control from the alley, or on Ravine. Ms. Stafford 
noted some of the neighbors have suggested a 4-way stop at this intersection.  The 
roadway on Ravine curves to the west of the intersection, and gives drivers limited sight 
distance at Ferndale and the alley to see cars east and west on Ravine. 
 
SUMMARY 
Staff contacted Fleis & Vandenbrink (F&V) and asked they review the intersection and 
provide a recommendation. The F&V report is attached. 
 
SUGGESTED RECOMMENDATION 
To install 4-Way Stop control at the Ferndale and Ravine intersection and provide a 
Stop sign on the southbound approach on Brookside Ave. at Ravine. 
 
 
  



DRAFT 

1 

City Of Birmingham Multi-Modal Transportation Board  
Thursday, August 5, 2021 

151 Martin Street, City Commission Room 205, Birmingham, MI 

Minutes of the regular meeting of the City of Birmingham Multi-Modal Transportation Board held 
Thursday, August 5, 2021.  

Acting Vice-Chair Katie Schafer convened the meeting at 6:03 p.m.  

1. Rollcall 
Present: Board Members Andrew Haig, David Hocker, David Lurie, Tom Peard, Katie  

Schafer 
 

Absent: Chair Johanna Slanga; Board Member Doug White; Alternate Board Member  
Joe Zane; Student Representatives Lauren Morris, Justin Schoener, Alex Walters 

 
Administration:  Jana Ecker, Assistant City Manager 

Laura Eichenhorn, City Transcriptionist  
Scott Grewe, Police Operations Commander 

    Scott Zielinski, Assistant City Engineer 
 
Fleis & Vandenbrink (F&V): 
    Julie Kroll 
 
MKSK:   Haley Wolfe 
 
2. Introductions  
 
3. Review Agenda 
 
4. Approval of MMTB Minutes of July 8, 2021 
 
Motion by Mr. Lurie 
Seconded by Mr. Haig to approve the MMTB Minutes of July 8, 2021 as submitted.  
 
Motion carried, 5-0.  
 
ROLL CALL VOTE  
Yeas: Lurie, Haig, Peard, Hocker, Schafer 
Nays: None  
 
5. Phase III – S. Old Woodward (Brown to Landon) - Update  
 
6. S. Eton Corridor Study – Update  
 
 



Multi-Modal Transportation Board Proceedings 
August 5, 2021 

2 

7. Ferndale / Ravine Intersection – Stop Sign Request  
 
PC Grewe presented the item. 
 
Acting Vice-Chair Scahfer said implementing the recommendation from F&V would likely make 
the intersection safer. 
 
Motion by Mr. Lurie 
Seconded by Acting Vice-Chair Schafer to recommend providing 1. An All-Way Stop 
control at the Ferndale Road & Ravine Road intersection; and, 2. A Stop sign on the 
Brookside Ave. approach at Ravine Road. 
 
PC Grewe confirmed he would let Ms. Safford, the resident that raised the issue, 
know the outcome of the discussion. 
 
Motion carried, 5-0.  
 
ROLL CALL VOTE  
Yeas: Lurie, Schafer, Haig, Peard, Hocker  
Nays: None 
 
8. Latham Street – Survey Results  
 
9. Citywide Sidewalk Priorities 
 
10. Meeting Open to the Public for items not on the Agenda 
 
None. 
 
11. Miscellaneous Communications  
 
12. Next Meeting – August 5, 2021 
 
13. Adjournment  
 
No further business being evident, the board members adjourned at 7:14 p.m.  

Jana Ecker, Planning Director 
 

 



  DATE:     August 23, 2021 

TO: Tom Markus, City Manager 

FROM: Alexandria Bingham, City Clerk 

SUBJECT:    2021 Santa House 

INTRODUCTION: 
The Birmingham Shopping District has submitted a Special Event application to hold 
the 2021 Santa House event beginning weekends on November 27th through 
December 24th during various hours.  Set-up for the event is to be coordinated with 
DPS during the week of November 15th.  Tear-down is scheduled to begin the week of 
January 3, 2022 and will be coordinated with DPS.   

BACKGROUND: 
Prior to application submission, the Police Department reviewed the proposed event 
details for street closures and the need for safety personnel and approved the details. 

DPS, Planning, Building, Engineering, Police, and Fire have indicated their approval.  

SP+ Parking has been notified of the event for planning purposes.  

The Winter Markt and Santa House with Carriage Rides are the only two events 
scheduled in Birmingham in December. Both events are hosted by the Birmingham 
Shopping District and are intended to run concurrently.  

In addition to welcoming Santa on Saturday, November 27, merchants will be offering 
specials and incentives to encourage shoppers to shop local for Small Business 
Saturday. The BSD will also set up a tent on the southwest corner of the sidewalk at 
Maple & Old Woodward that will offer holiday treats and incentives to shoppers. 

BSD will continue to monitor the Covid-19 situation and follow the appropriate 
MDHHS and city guidelines 

LEGAL REVIEW: 
n/a 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
n/a 

MEMORANDUM 
Clerk's Office 

5N



     PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 

The Birmingham Shopping District notified residents and businesses details of the 
event by postcard mailed at least two weeks prior to the Commission meeting. 
Addresses were notified within 300 feet of   the event space. 

SUMMARY: 
The City Commission is being asked to approve the 2021 Santa House to begin the 
weekend of November 27th with set-up to begin the week of November 15th.  Tear-
down is scheduled to begin during the week of January 3, 2022. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Special Event application
2. Notification letter with map of event area distributed to residents/businesses within

300 feet of the event area on August 4th, 2021.  Notification addresses are on file
in the Clerk’s Office

3. Certificate of Insurance
4. Department Approval page with comments and estimated costs

SUGGESTED COMMISSION ACTION:
To make a motion to adopt a resolution approving a special event permit as
requested by the Birmingham Shopping District to hold the 2021 Santa House 
beginning the weekend of November 27, 2021 through December 24, 2021 
contingent upon compliance with all permit and insurance requirements and 
payment of all fees and, further, pursuant to any minor modifications that may be 
deemed necessary by administrative staff at the time of the event, or event 
cancellation that may be deemed necessary by administrative staff leading up to 
or at the time of the event due to public health and safety measures.  























 

 

  
 
 
 
 
NOTE TO STAFF:  Please submit approval by 08/17/21  DATE OF EVENT:  WEEKENDS NOV 27-DEC 24 
  

DEPARTMENT APPROVED COMMENTS 

PERMITS 
REQUIRED 

(Must be obtained directly 
from individual 
departments) 

ESTIMATED 
COSTS 

(Must be paid two 
weeks prior to the 
event. License will 

not be issued if 
unpaid.) 

ACTUAL 
COSTS 

(Event will be 
invoiced by the 
Clerk’s office 

after the event) 

 
PLANNING 

101-000.000-634.0005 
248.530.1855 

 

ND - N/A $0 $0 

BUILDING 

101-000.000.634.0005 
248.530.1850 

MJM 
Building can inspect during normal 
business hours. 

Tents over 400SQFT $0  

FIRE 
101-000.000-634.0004 

248.530.1900 
JDP 

Follow all current MDHHS Covid-19 
guidelines 
Tents over 400 sq. ft. require inspection 
by Fire Marshal and Building Department 
Fire extinguisher(s) required for all 
structures erected.  ABC extinguisher, 
size 5 lb. 
Any heating devices require inspection 
by Fire Marshal 

 $0.00  

POLICE 
101-000.000.634.0003 

248.530.1870 
SG 

On duty personnel will provide extra 
patrol. 

 $0 $0 

DEPARTMENT APPROVALS 
 

                    EVENT NAME: SANTA HOUSE 
  
LICENSE NUMBER #21-00011647  COMMISSION HEARING DATE: 08/23/21 



 

 

PUBLIC SERVICES 
101-000.000-634.0002 

248.530.1642 

CL 
DPS will assist with this event including 
delivery, set up and removal. 

 $6,500  

ENGINEERING 
101-000.000.634.0002 

248.530.1839 
SDZ Not affected, no permits required  0 0 

SP+ PARKING MHC No Concerns     

INSURANCE 
248.530.1807 

 
Need to submit CoI, Hold Harmless 
Agreement 

None $0 $0 

CLERK 
101-000.000-614.0000 

248.530.1803 

 

Notification letters to be mailed by 
applicant no later than ___. Notification 
addresses on file in the Clerk’s Office.  
Evidence of required insurance must be 
on file with the Clerk’s Office no later 
than ____. 
 

Applications for 
vendors license must 
be submitted no later 
than ____. 

$165 pd 
 

 
 
 

    

TOTAL 
DEPOSIT 

REQUIRED 
 
 

ACTUAL 
COST 

 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FOR CLERK’S OFFICE USE 
 
Deposit paid ___________ 
 
Actual Cost     
 
Due/Refund    
 



 

 

 
 
 
 Rev. 8/18/21 
h:\shared\special events\- general information\approval page.doc 



  DATE:      August 23, 2021 

TO: Tom Markus, City Manager 

FROM: Alexandra Bingham, City Clerk 

SUBJECT:    Special Event - 2021 Winter Markt 

INTRODUCTION: 
The Birmingham Shopping District has submitted a Special Event application to hold 
the 2021 Winter Markt event on December 3-5, 2021 in Shain Park and on the 
surrounding streets.  Set-up for the event is scheduled for Monday, November 29 – 
Friday, December 3.  Set up will begin in Shain Park, Monday through Wednesday, 9am 
-8pm. On Thursday street closures will begin at noon.

Winter Markt hours of operation will be: 
Friday, December 3  4:00 – 9:00 p.m. 
Saturday, December 4 10:00 a.m. – 9:00 p.m. 
Sunday, December 5 10:00 a.m. – 4:00 p.m. 

Tear-down will happen on December 5 from 4:00 – 9:00 p.m. 

BACKGROUND: 
Prior to application submission, the Police Department reviewed the proposed event 

details for street closures and the need for safety personnel and approved the details. 
DPS, Planning, Building, Engineering, Police, and Fire have indicated their approval.  

SP+ Parking has been notified of the event for planning purposes.  

The Winter Markt and Santa House with Carriage Rides are the only two events 
scheduled in Birmingham in December. Both events are hosted by the Birmingham 
Shopping District and are intended to run concurrently.  

LEGAL REVIEW: 
n/a 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
n/a 

MEMORANDUM 
Clerk's Office 

5O



     PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 

The Birmingham Shopping District notified residents and businesses details of the 
event by postcard mailed at least two weeks prior to the Commission meeting. 
Addresses were notified within 300 feet of   the event space. 

SUMMARY: 
The City Commission is being asked to approve a special event permit for the 2021 
Winter Markt to be held December 3-5, 2021. Set up will begin in Shain Park, Monday 
through Wednesday, November 29 - December 1, and on Thursday, December 2 street 
closures will begin at noon.  Tear down will occur on the last day of the event, 
December 5 from 4:00 – 9:00 p.m. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Special Event application
2. Notification letter with map of event area distributed to residents/businesses within

300 feet of the event area on August 4, 2021.  Notification addresses are on file
in the Clerk’s Office

3. Event site map
4. Certificate of Insurance
5. Department Approval page with comments and estimated costs

SUGGESTED COMMISSION ACTION:
To make a motion to adopt a resolution approving a special event permit as
requested by the Birmingham Shopping District to hold the 2021 Winter Markt 
Friday, December 3 – Sunday, December 5, 2021 contingent upon compliance 
with all permit and insurance requirements and payment of all fees and, 
further, pursuant to any minor modifications that may be deemed necessary by 
administrative staff at the time of the event. 





















 

 

  
 
 
 
 
NOTE TO STAFF:  Please submit approval by 08/17/21  DATE OF EVENT:  DEC 3-5 
  

DEPARTMENT APPROVED COMMENTS 

PERMITS 
REQUIRED 

(Must be obtained directly 
from individual 
departments) 

ESTIMATED 
COSTS 

(Must be paid two 
weeks prior to the 
event. License will 

not be issued if 
unpaid.) 

ACTUAL 
COSTS 

(Event will be 
invoiced by the 
Clerk’s office 

after the event) 

 
PLANNING 

101-000.000-634.0005 
248.530.1855 

 

ND - N/A $0 $0 

BUILDING 

101-000.000.634.0005 
248.530.1850 

MJM 
Tents over 400 SQFT. Require a permit. 
Fire marshal and Assistant building 
official to inspect tents after setup. 

 $166.11  

FIRE 
101-000.000-634.0004 

248.530.1900 
JDP 

Follow current MDHHS Covid-19 
guidelines. 
Tents over 400 Sq. Ft. require inspection 
and permit as stated by Building Dept. 
Fire extinguishers required for tents 
Egress approvals for tents by Fire 
Marshal inspection. 
Heating appliances require inspection 
and approval from Fire Marshal 

 $0.00  

POLICE 
101-000.000.634.0003 

248.530.1870 
SG 

Personnel and barricades for street 
closure.  Temporary liquor license 
required from the LCC with City 
Commission and Chief of Police approval.  
Placement of signs indicating alcoholic 
beverages must remain within the closed 

 $950  

DEPARTMENT APPROVALS 
 

                    EVENT NAME:  WINTER MARKT 
  
LICENSE NUMBER #21-00011648  COMMISSION HEARING DATE: 08/23/21 



 

 

area where beverages are being served.  
Must have personnel to monitor the 
entrance/exit area to ensure no alcoholic 
beverages are removed from the closed 
area. 

PUBLIC SERVICES 
101-000.000-634.0002 

248.530.1642 

CL 

Costs include: barricade placement and 
removal, sign/banner placement and 
removal, set up and clean-up costs.  A 
hydrant permit must be obtained and 
event will be charged for water usage. 

Hydrant permit $7,500  

ENGINEERING 
101-000.000.634.0002 

248.530.1839 
sdz 

Looks as though road closures are 
required. Class 3 barricades at end of 
closed streets needed. 

Obstruction permit for 
road closure 

$65 $65 

SP+ PARKING MHC No Concerns    

INSURANCE 
248.530.1807 

 
Need to submit CoI, Hold Harmless 
Agreement 

None $0 $0 

CLERK 
101-000.000-614.0000 

248.530.1803 

 

Notification letters to be mailed by 
applicant no later than ___. Notification 
addresses on file in the Clerk’s Office.  
Evidence of required insurance must be 
on file with the Clerk’s Office no later 
than ____. 
 

Applications for 
vendors license must 
be submitted no later 
than ____. 

$165 pd 
 

 
 
 

    

TOTAL 
DEPOSIT 

REQUIRED 
 
 

ACTUAL 
COST 

 
 
 

  
 
 FOR CLERK’S OFFICE USE 

 
Deposit paid ___________ 
 
Actual Cost     
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Rev. 8/18/21 
h:\shared\special events\- general information\approval page.doc 



1

MEMORANDUM 
City Clerk’s Office 

DATE: August 18, 2021 

TO: Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 

FROM: Alexandria Bingham, City Clerk 

SUBJECT: Brooklyn Pizza Liquor License Renewal 

INTRODUCTION: 
Annually the City Commission is required by Chapter 10, Alcoholic Liquors, of the 
Birmingham Code of Ordinances to review the licenses of establishments which sell 
intoxicating liquor for consumption on the premises in the city and to consider the renewal 
of those licenses. As part of the review process investigations of each licensed 
establishment are conducted by the Building, Planning, Police, Fire and Finance 
Departments to determine whether the licensee is in compliance with all applicable city 
and state codes. 

After reviewing the results of the annual investigation, the City Commission considers 
renewal of all existing licenses for consumption of intoxicating liquor on the premises in 
the city. 

The City Commission already approved most liquor licenses at the February 22, 2021 
meeting and the remaining licenses on March 22, 2021. Due to the timing, turnover, and 
short staffing in the clerk’s office when Brooklyn Pizza was granted their initial request for 
a liquor license in 2019, they were not added to the list for renewals for 2020 or 2021.  

BACKGROUND: 
Brooklyn Pizza obtained approval for their initial liquor license at the December 9, 2019 
City Commission meeting but was not included in the batch of liquor licenses to approve 
early in January of 2021.  

At the time Brooklyn Pizza obtained their initial approval the clerk’s office was critically 
short staffed and recovering from a November election. Due to the stress on the clerk’s 
office, the initial commission approval paperwork for Brooklyn was not fully entered into 
BSA, therefore Brooklyn Pizza did not come up as an establishment to be reviewed and 
included in reports for renewable liquor licenses in 2021.  

City staff found no violations or outstanding issues with Brooklyn Pizza. Reports are 
attached with this memo.  

Also, while 2021 liquor licenses were being considered, the Mad Hatter was not in 
operation.  Mad Hatter’s license was approved on March 22, 2021 resolution #03-083-21, 
but because they were closed at the time, city staff was not able to fully inspect the 

5P



2 

establishment. Since then Mad Hatter has reopened to serve; city staff re-inspected the 
property and found no issues.  

LEGAL REVIEW: 
The City Attorney has reviewed the suggested process and finds it in order. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
Minimal, the only fee to collect is the liquor license renewal fee. Treasury confirmed there 
were no other outstanding financial issues.   

PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 
The city clerk’s office communicated with the Hani Abdelfatah, owner of Brooklyn Pizza, 
by phone, email, and certified mail to inform him of the clerical issue and the steps needed 
to get back on track.  

SUMMARY 
City staff recommends renewing the liquor license for Brooklyn Pizza for the 2021 season. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
A. City Code – Sec. 10-40 reasons to object to the renewal of a liquor license.
B. Department feedback regarding Brooklyn Pizza: building, planning, police, fire, treasury

SUGGESTED COMMISSION ACTION: 
Make a motion to adopt a resolution approving the renewal of Brooklyn Pizza’s liquor license for 
2021. 



8/19/2021 Birmingham, MI Code of Ordinances

1/1

(1)

(2)

(3)

a.

b.

c.

d.

e.

f.

g.

h.

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

Sec. 10-40. - Same—Standards.

The city commission may object to renewal of a license for consumption of intoxicating liquor on the

premises for one or more of the following reasons:

Licensee's failure to comply with all applicable city and state laws concerning health, safety,

moral conduct or public welfare.

Licensee's repeated violations of state liquor laws.

Licensee's maintenance of a nuisance upon or in connection with the licensed premises,

including but not limited to any of the following:

Existing violations of building, electrical, mechanical, plumbing, zoning, health, fire or

other applicable regulatory codes;

A pattern of patron conduct in the neighborhood of the licensed premises which is in

violation of the law and/or disturbs the peace, order, and tranquility of the neighborhood;

Failure to maintain the grounds and exterior of the licensed premises, including litter,

debris, or refuse blowing or being deposited upon adjoining premises;

Entertainment on the licensed premises without a permit and/or entertainment which

disturbs the peace, order and tranquility in the neighborhood of the licensed premises;

Any advertising, promotion or activity in connection with the licensed premises which by

its nature causes, creates or contributes to disorder, disobedience to rules, ordinances or

laws, or contributes to the disruption of normal activity of those in the neighborhood of

the licensed premises;

Numerous police contacts with the licensed premises or the patrons of the premises;

Failure to adequately staff and control the premises; and

The conditions or practices of the business present immediate health and safety issues.

Licensee's failure to permit the inspection of the licensed premises by the city's agents or

employees in connection with the enforcement of the City Code.

Licensee's failure to comply with the terms of its liquor license or any conditions imposed by

the city commission or the liquor control commission at the time of issuance or transfer of

the license.

Licensee's failure to comply with all standards and plans established and approved by the city

commission at the time of original approval or transfer of the license.

Licensee's failure to timely pay its taxes or other monies due the city.

(Code 1963, § 7.403(b); Ord. No. 1551, § 7.403(B), 3-15-93; Ord. No. 2067, 8-22-11)



8/19/2021 City of Birmingham MI Mail - Brooklyn Pizza - Liquor License Renewal

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0?ik=122eed7f76&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f%3A1705291567076333040&simpl=msg-f%3A17052915670… 1/1

Alex Bingham <abingham@bhamgov.org>

Brooklyn Pizza - Liquor License Renewal
Bruce Johnson <Bjohnson@bhamgov.org> Wed, Jul 14, 2021 at 3:59 PM
To: Alex Bingham <abingham@bhamgov.org>
Cc: Mary Kucharek <mkucharek@bhlaw.us.com>, Mark Clemence <Mclemence@bhamgov.org>, Tom Markus
<tmarkus@bhamgov.org>, Paul Wells <Pwells@bhamgov.org>, Jana Ecker <Jecker@bhamgov.org>, Jack Todd
<jtodd@bhamgov.org>, Clerks Office <ClerksOffice@bhamgov.org>

Hi Alex,

Brooklyn Pizza recently completed an extensive renovation expanding their tenant space. We issued a temporary
certificate of occupancy last August so they could open while completing planning department items noted during their
final inspection at that time. Those items have been completed and a full certificate of occupancy was issued last month.
I also looked at our code enforcement history and there are no active complaints. Since they recently received a full
certificate of occupancy and there are no code enforcement violations, the building department would recommend
approval. Let me know if you need something more formal than this email. 

Bruce 
[Quoted text hidden]
-- 

Bruce R. Johnson
Building Official 
City of Birmingham
151 Martin Street
Birmingham, MI 48009
(248) 530-1842 Office
(248) 530-1292 Fax
[Quoted text hidden]

https://www.google.com/maps/search/City+of+Birmingham+151+Martin+Street?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/City+of+Birmingham+151+Martin+Street?entry=gmail&source=g


2021 LCC INSPECTION STATUS REPORT

LOCATION STATUSFACILITY NAME

08/09/2021

BUILDING DEPARTMENT

2666 W 14 MILE RD APPROVEDLINCOLN HILLS GOLF COURSE

155 S BATES ST FL 1 APPROVEDTALLULAH WINE BAR & BISTRO

380 S BATES ST APPROVEDCOMMUNITY HOUSE

111 ELM ST APPROVEDALL SEASONS OF BIRMIGHAM

245 S ETON ST APPROVEDBIG ROCK CHOP HOUSE

575 S ETON ST APPROVEDGRIFFIN CLAW BREWERY

735 FOREST AVE STE 100 APPROVEDFOREST GRILL

209 HAMILTON ROW APPROVEDEMAGINE

377 HAMILTON ROW APPROVEDBIRMINGHAM SUSHI CAFE INC

111 HENRIETTA ST APPROVEDBROOKLYN PIZZA

2100 E MAPLE RD APPROVEDWHOLE FOODS

225 E MAPLE RD APPROVEDSOCIAL KITCHEN

310 E MAPLE RD APPROVEDPERNOI

160 W MAPLE RD APPROVEDDICK O DOWS

220 E MERRILL ST APPROVED220 RESTAURANT HOSPITALITY LLC

243 E MERRILL ST APPROVEDLASTRADA-CAFE

185 N OLD WOODWARD AVE APPROVEDMAD HATTER

260 N OLD WOODWARD AVE APPROVEDTHE MORRIE

323 N OLD WOODWARD AVE APPROVEDFLEMINGS PRIME STEAKHOUSE

474 N OLD WOODWARD AVE APPROVEDMARKET 

505 N OLD WOODWARD AVE APPROVEDSALVATORE SCALLOPINI RESTAURAN

525 N OLD WOODWARD AVE APPROVEDLUXE BAR & GRILL

116 S OLD WOODWARD AVE APPROVEDCHURCHILL'S

201 S OLD WOODWARD AVE APPROVEDHYDE PARK STEAKHOUSE

211 S OLD WOODWARD AVE APPROVEDBIRMINGHAM THEATER LLC

325 S OLD WOODWARD AVE STE 1 APPROVEDADACHI RESTAURANT GROUP LLC

588 S OLD WOODWARD AVE APPROVEDPHOENICIA RESTAURANT 

184 PIERCE ST APPROVEDTOWNHOUSE KITCHEN & BAR LLC

203 PIERCE ST APPROVEDTOAST ENTERPRISES, LLC

263 PIERCE ST APPROVEDELIE'S MEDITERREAN GRILL

273 PIERCE ST APPROVEDSTREETSIDE RESTAURANT

316 STRATHMORE RD APPROVEDSPRINGDALE GOLF COURSE

100 TOWNSEND ST APPROVEDTOWNSEND HOTEL



2021 LCC INSPECTION STATUS REPORT

LOCATION STATUSFACILITY NAME

08/09/2021

BUILDING DEPARTMENT

167 TOWNSEND ST APPROVEDBELLA PIATTI LLC

117 WILLITS ST APPROVEDSLICE/SIDECAR/SHIFT

34977 WOODWARD AVE APPROVEDHAZEL RAVINES & DOWNTOWN

34244 WOODWARD AVE APPROVEDBISTRO JOE'S

2/2InspectionGroup.GroupType  =  LCC ANNUAL  AND
InspectionGroup.DateStarted  Between  12/1/2020 12:00:00 AM AND
8/1/2021 11:59:59 PM
AND
InspectionGroup.GroupNumber  Does Not Contain  ILCC21-0021



MEMORANDUM 
 

Planning Division 
 
DATE:   August 19th, 2021 
 
TO:   Alex Bingham, City Clerk 
 
FROM:  Nicholas Dupuis, City Planner 
 
SUBJECT: 111 Henrietta – Brooklyn Pizza  
 
 
The subject business, Brooklyn Pizza, was approved by the City Commission on December 9th, 
2019 for a Special Land Use Permit to operate a food and drink establishment with on premise 
consumption of alcoholic beverages under the City’s bistro regulations. 
 
The Planning Division performed an inspection on August 8th, 2020 and observed several 
unfinished elements on the building. The Planning Division returned on June 21st, 2021 and found 
that the work had been completed, and that the building exterior, interior, and site matched the 
approved site plans on file within the Planning Division. 
 
At this time, the Planning Division has not observed any violations on the property, and has noted 
that the establishment has maintained the required 65 seat maximum within the bistro. 







1 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

(Treasury) 
 
DATE:   8/19/2021 
 
TO:   Alexandria Bingham, City Clerk 
 
FROM:  Jack Todd, Deputy Treasurer 
 
SUBJECT: Brooklyn Pizza Liquor License Renewal 
 

 
 

 
It recommended that the City Commission approve Brooklyn Pizza’s liquor license renewal. 
Brooklyn Pizza does not have any outstanding taxes, utility payments, invoices, or special 
assessments. 

 



1 

MEMORANDUM 
City Clerk’s Office 

DATE: August 18, 2021 

TO: Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 

FROM: Alexandria Bingham, City Clerk 

SUBJECT: Permanent Polling Location Change for Precinct 6 

INTRODUCTION: 
During preparation for the August 4th 2020 state primary it was apparent that City Hall, 
which hosts precinct 6 for Birmingham voters, was not a large enough space to 
comfortably accommodate election inspectors and voters with social distancing as 
recommended due to the COVID-19 pandemic. 

For the November 3, 2020 General Election the city temporarily relocated precinct 6 voters 
to the Community House. The Community House was a great location and well received 
by the voters and election inspectors.  

Since then the clerk’s office has kept an open mind toward figuring out the best long-term 
solution for a permanent polling location for precinct 6.  

BACKGROUND: 
In June of 2021 the City Clerk walked through the Baldwin Library to scout out the 
available space to see if the library would be a good fit as a polling location.  

The City Clerk collaborated with DPS staff and Library Director Rebekah Craft on weighing 
the pros and cons of each possible polling location to determine the overall best fit for the 
city.  

It is my goal to be able to provide every voter and election inspector with a comfortable 
experience on Election Day. The Baldwin Library is not currently being used to host any 
other polling location, and has the adequate space to comfortably accommodate voters 
and election inspectors on Election Day. The Baldwin Library meets the accessibility and 
ADA requirements. City staff believes it would be most practical and beneficial to 
permanently locate precinct 6 voters to the Baldwin Library.  

The deadline to change a polling location is Friday, September 3, 2021. As soon approved 
I will be working with the state to update the location and send notification by mail to the 
affected voters. Signs will be posted at City Hall to direct precinct 6 voters to the Baldwin 
Library on Election Day and there will be several informative news blasts as well as social 
media posts to notify voters. 

LEGAL REVIEW: 
City Attorney Mary Kucharek has been informed of this recommendation and supports it. 

5Q



2 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
There will be a minor additional cost spent on the mailing to notify voters that their 
precinct location has changed.  

INITIATIVES FOR INFORMING THE AFFECTED VOTERS: 
• Information will be sent to the state and updated in the Qualified Voter File
• All precinct 6 voters will receive new voter registration cards
• Postcard reminders on the precinct location change will go out 2 weeks prior to the

election for these voters
• The City Clerk’s Elections Web page will have significant updates to highlight the

permanent change, including updating the precinct location map
• The polling location change will be announced at City Commission meetings prior to the

election
• Social media posts and news blasts will be made to inform voters
• Notification of the precinct location change will be published in the city’s electronic and

printed newsletters
• Signs will be posted at City Hall on Election Day directing precinct voters to the Baldwin

Library

SUMMARY 
Approving the suggested resolution to change the polling location of precinct 6 from City 
Hall to the Baldwin Public Library is in the best interest of the City in providing adequate 
space and accommodations to voters and election inspectors. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
A. Staff Reasoning Grid – Pros and Cons of Precinct 6 Locations
B. Election Officials Manual, Chapter 1, Responsibilities of Election Commission Members
C. Election Officials Manual, Chapter 14, Establishing Polling Places

SUGGESTED COMMISSION ACTION: 
To make a motion to adopt a Resolution approving the suggested precinct change as 
required by the Election Commission and as recommended by the City Clerk. Precinct 6 
presently located at City Hall will be permanently located at the Baldwin Public Library 
effective immediately. 



PCT 6 Location

City Hall Community House Baldwin Library

Pros -has been established for
a long time
-DPS has easy access
for set up and break
down

-big beautiful space
(banquet room)
-can host large elections
-compliments from voters
and inspectors from
November 2020

-big beautiful space
(room downstairs)
-easier ADA access than
City Hall
-could be permanent
-can host large elections
-DPS would have easier
access to building for
setup/breakdown of
equipment
-ample metered parking
that can be blocked off
for voters, close
proximity to Chester
parking structure
-will expose more people
to all the library’s offers

Cons -city hall lacks capacity to
host larger elections
-ADA accessibility is
more challenging
-crowds the clerk’s office
on election day
-more confusing for
voters who think they
vote at city hall
regardless of their
geographic location/pct
assignment

-harder to schedule drop
off and pickup of election
equipment with DPS
(access to the building)
-CH management
doesn’t want to commit
to using the Community
House as a permanent
location
-May start charging us
for space
-have to notice for every
election

- have to notify and mass
mail new voter ID cards
the first time, but not in
the future

-deadline to change location is 60 days before, must decide and have on one of the August agendas



ELECTION  OFFICIALS’ MANUAL 

Michigan Bureau of Elections 
Chapter 1, Updated February 2019 

Chapter 1, Page 7 of 9 

 

 

 

Election Commission Responsibilities that should be handled via an Open Meeting by Election 

Commission Members: 

• Approving of ballots 

• Appointing precinct inspectors 

• Public Accuracy Test 

• Precinct Changes / Consolidations 

• Adoption of resolution outlining delegated duties 

 
Election Commission Duties that may be delegated to the Local Clerk or authorized assistant 

(note: Delegated duties should be documented via resolution): 

• Preparing meeting materials for the Election Commission (ballots proof for approval, list of 

election inspectors for appointment, etc.) 

• Preparing, printing and delivering ballots 

• Providing candidates and the Secretary of State with proof copies of ballots 

• Providing notice to voters in the case of precinct changes/consolidations 

• Providing election supplies and ballot containers 

• Preliminary logic and accuracy testing 

• Notifying major political parties of certified precinct Inspector appointments (federal and state 

elections only) 

 

SCHOOL ELECTION COORDINATING COMMITTEE: Every school district has a School Election 

Coordinating Committee responsible for determining the details of how special school elections will be 

administered. The School Election Coordinating Committee is composed of a school election coordinator, 

the secretary of the school board and the clerks of all jurisdictions covered by the school district. For a 

school district wholly contained within a single jurisdiction, that clerk is the school election coordinator. In 

a school district that crosses jurisdiction lines the county clerk is the coordinator. 

 

TYPES OF ELECTIONS 

There are several types of elections conducted in Michigan. The following is an overview of the various 

types. 

 

 

 

 



   ELECTION OFFICIALS’ MANUAL 
 Michigan Bureau of Elections 

Chapter 14, Updated November 2019 

Chapter 14, Page 7 of 9 

 

 

 

ESTABLISHING POLLING PLACES: The city council or township board is responsible for 

determining the location of polling places in the jurisdiction. Michigan election law, MCL 168.662, 
provides the following with respect to the establishment of polling places: 

 
• Whenever possible, a polling place must be located in a publicly owned or controlled facility such as 

a school building, fire station or police station. 
 

• If it is necessary to establish a polling place in a building other than a publicly owned or controlled 
facility, the building must be owned or controlled by an organization that is “exempt from federal 
income tax pursuant to section 501(c) other than 501(c)(4), (5), or (6) of the internal revenue code 
of 1986….” 

 
• As an exception to the above, a polling place may be established in a “profit or nonprofit residence 

or facility in which 150 persons or more aged 62 or older reside or at an apartment building or 
complex in which 150 persons or more reside.” 

 
• All polling places must be fully accessible to the elderly and handicapped. If necessary, the use of 

temporary ramps and signs designating handicap parking spaces may be employed on Election Day 
to ensure access. 

 
• If a polling place is established in a building not owned or controlled by the city or township, it is 

advisable to have a polling place use agreement with the building owners. 
 

• A polling place may not be established in a building that is owned by a business, individual, firm, 
organization, etc. that has established, directs, controls or financially supports the administration of 
a Political or Independent Committee registered under the Campaign Finance Act. This prohibition 
extends to a building owned by a subsidiary of a corporation or the local of a labor organization if the 
parent corporation or labor organization has established, directs, controls or financially supports the 
administration of a Political or Independent Committee. 

 
• The same polling place may be used to accommodate up to six precincts if convenient and practicable 

(each precinct must have its own precinct board.) 
 
 
 



   ELECTION OFFICIALS’ MANUAL 
 Michigan Bureau of Elections 

Chapter 14, Updated November 2019 

Chapter 14, Page 8 of 9 

 

 

 

 

 

• A polling place may not be established, moved or abolished less than 60 days before an 
election unless the polling place has been “damaged, destroyed, or rendered 
inaccessible or unusable as a polling place.” 

 
• An Accessibility Checklist can be found in the eLearning Center for use in determining 

whether a site is fully accessible or not. Use of the checklist is strongly recommended as 
there are many requirements to ensure ADA compliance. 

 
CHANGES REQUIRED IN QUALIFIED VOTER FILE: Whenever a precinct or district 

boundary line or polling place changes, the information must also be updated in QVF.  
 

ARRANGING POLLING PLACES: A polling place is composed of a processing/voting 

area and a public area. When arranging a polling place, consideration must be given to the 
space needed to establish these two areas, the need for an orderly flow of traffic and the 
right of voters to cast their ballots in secrecy. 

• The processing/voting area of the polling place contains a table and chairs for the election 
inspectors appointed to work in the precinct. Sufficient room must be available in front of 
the table for electors who are offering to vote to stand. The election inspectors should be 
positioned so that they have a clear view of the polling place. The processing/voting area 
of the polling place also contains the voting stations and the tabulator needed to serve the 
precinct. Tabulators must be positioned in full view and close to the election inspectors 
so that they can be monitored at all times. The processing/voting area is reserved for the 
precinct inspectors engaged in processing voters, the voters applying to vote and in the 
process of voting, and any challengers qualified to serve in the precinct. No other persons 
have the authority to be present in the processing/voting area. 

 
• The public area is reserved for voters entering and exiting the polling place and any 

persons on hand to observe the election who do not have official “challenger” status. 
 
Some type of barrier must be established so that the processing/voting area of the polling place can be 
distinguished from the public area of the polling place. In instances where a polling place is used to 
accommodate two or more precincts, care must be taken to clearly separate the precinct boards to avoid voter 
confusion. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1 

MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Department 

DATE: August 16, 2021 

TO: Tom Markus, City Manager 

FROM: Scott Zielinski, Assistant City Engineer, 
Jim Surhigh, Consulting City Engineer 

SUBJECT:  Townsend and Peabody Street Paving 
Contract #6-21 (P) Contract Award 

INTRODUCTION: 

Bids for the Townsend and Peabody Paving Project #6-21(P) were opened on August 
12, 2021. The City received four (4) bids. The lowest complete and qualified bid 
was submitted by DiPonio Contracting, Inc. 

BACKGROUND: 

The Townsend and Peabody Street Paving Project is a multiple block project in three 
primary sections, Townsend St. from Southfield to Chester, Peabody St. from E. Maple 
to Brown and the alley east of Purdy south of Frank St.  The project includes work 
designed to improve water and sewer infrastructure while replacing a severely 
deteriorated pavement. The Townsend and Peabody Street Paving project was 
presented to the Multi-Modal Transportation Board (MMTB) for review and 
recommendations for improvement. As part of the pavement replacement, the City 
will placing new curb and gutters along with replacing drive approaches, and 
improving sidewalk ramps as needed, No additional recommendations were given by 
MMTB for the project. 

The Engineering Department opened bids on August 12, 2021. Four (4) bids were 
received, as listed on the attached summary. The low bidder was DiPonio Contracting, 
Inc., with their bid of $1,154,870.95.  Diponio’s bid was 1.9% higher than the 
Engineer’s Estimate of $1,133,540.40.  The letter from our engineering consultant, 
Nowak & Fraus Engineers, is attached for reference recommending Diponio to be 
selected based on received bid. Diponio’s bid included water and sewer lateral service 
work within our estimated costs for the SAD district for the project.  

DiPonio Contracting, Inc. has completed several projects for the City in the past, 
most recently the Grant Street Paving project in 2021. Based on the performance of 
previous projects, we are confident that they are fully qualified to perform the type of 
work included in the Townsend and Peabody Street Paving Project. 

As is required for all of the City’s construction projects, DiPonio Contracting, Inc. 
has submitted a 5% bid security with their bid which will be forfeited if they do not 
provide the signed contracts, bonds and insurance required by the contract following 

7A



2 

the award by the City Commission. 

LEGAL REVIEW: 

The City’s standard contract language was used for this bidding document.  No 
legal review is required at this time.  

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This project was originally scheduled to start prior to the end of the 2020/2021 budget, 
however, due to delays, it is now scheduled for fall.  Funds are available from the prior 
fiscal year for this project, but a budget amendment for fiscal year 2021/2022 will be 
necessary.  The breakdown of costs for this project by fund are as follows: 

Budget Bid Amount

Sewer Fund, Pub. Imp. 590-536.001-981.0100  $   410,000.00  $  405,754.24 

Water Fund, Pub. Imp. 591-537.004-981.0000  $   210,000.00  $  178,440.03 

Local Streets Fund 203-449.001-981.0100  $   425,000.00  $  353,210.22 

Major Streets Fund  202-449.001-981.0100  $   200,000.00  $     195,840.47 

Alley Fund 101-444.002-981.0100 $    25,000.00 $     21,626.00 

TOTAL  $ 1,270,000.00  $   1,154,870.95 

PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 

Communication with the residents in the project area will include the project 
announcement, project start date and regular updates. Residents will be encouraged 
to sign up for the City’s Constant Contact to receive additional information during 
the project. 

SUMMARY: 

It is recommended that the Townsend and Peabody Street Paving Project #6-21(P), 
be awarded to DiPonio Contracting, Inc. and a budget amendment for this project 
approved. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

• Project Area Map – (one page)
• Bid Summary – (one page)



3 

• Plans – (24 sheets)
• Nowak and Fraus Engineers Recommendation – (one page)

SUGGESTED COMMISSION ACTION: 

Make a motion adopting a resolution awarding the Townsend and Peabody Street 
Paving Project #6-21(P), to DiPonio Contracting, Inc. contingent upon execution of 
the agreement and meeting all insurance and bonding requirements.  In the amount 
of $1,154,870.95, to be charged to the following accounts: 

Sewer Fund, Public Imp. 590-536.001-981.0100 $  405,754.24 

Water Fund, Public Imp. 591-537.004-981.0000 $  178,440.03 

Local Streets Fund 203-449.001-981.0100 $  353,210.22 

Major Streets Fund 202-449.001-981.0100 $    195,840.46 

General Fund 101-444.002-981.0100 $     21,626.00 

Total $   1,154,870.95 

To authorize the Mayor to sign the contract on behalf of the City; and  

To approve the appropriation and amendment to the 2021/2022 budget as follows: 

General Fund: 
Revenues: 
Draw from Fund Balance 101-000.000-400.0000 $21,630 

Expenditures: 
Engineering and Public Services – Alleys 101-444.002-981.0100 $21,630 

Major Street Fund: 
Revenues: 
Draw from Fund Balance 202-000.000-400.0000 $195,840 

Expenditures: 
Construction of Roads and Bridges 202-449.001-981.0100 $195,840 

Local Street Fund: 
Revenues: 
Draw from Fund Balance 203-000.000-400.0000 $353,210 

Expenditures: 
Construction of Roads and Bridges 203-449.001-981.0100 $353,210 



4  

 
 
Sewer Fund: 
Revenues: 
Draw from Fund Balance   590-000.000-400.0000 $405,760 
 
Expenditures: 
Sewer Improvements    590-536.001-981.0100 $405,760 
 
Water Fund: 
Revenues: 
Draw from Fund Balance   591-000.000-400.0000 $178,440 
 
Expenditures: 
Water Main Improvements   591-537.004-981.0100 $178,440 
 

 



 



Company Name Addendums
5% Bid 

Security

DiPonio Contracting, Inc. Y Y

Pamar Enterprises, Inc. Y Y

FDM Contracting, Inc. Y Y

C&P Construction Co, Inc. Y Y  $                                                        1,365,062.00 

 $                                                        1,154,870.95 

 $                                                        1,226,389.00 

 $                                                        1,247,878.25 

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM

 2021 TOWNSEND AND PEABODY PAVING PROJECT

CONTRACT # 6-21 (P)

BID SUMMARY

August 12, 2021 - 2:00 PM

 Bid Amount 



Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

C
AM

BR
ID

G
E

R
U

G
BY

ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT

YORKSHIRE

APPROVED                                   DATE
BENCHMARKS SET AND SHOWN PER
SHEET WERE ESTABLISHED OFF OF THE
CITY OF BIRMINGHAM BENCHMARK DATUM.

BENCHMARK NOTE

Oakland County, Michigan
SCALE:

0 400 800

200 600 1000200

G
R

EE
N

W
O

O
D

14 MILE RD.

G
R

EE
N

LA
W

N

G
O

LF
   

-  
   

 V
IE

W

FAIRWAY    D
RIVE

HILL
SIDE

PO
LO

 P
L. D
R

.

NORTHLAWN  DRIVE

FAIR WAY  DR.

LINCOLN AVE

D
O

N
M

AR
 C

T.

LA
R

C
H

LE
A 

   
   

   
   

   
  D

R
IV

E

W
ES

TC
H

ES
TE

R
   

   
   

   
   

   
 W

AY

G
LE

N
H

U
R

ST
   

   
   

   
   

 D
R

IV
E

AR
D

EN

LA
N

E

C
AR

O
LW

O
O

D

CT.C
R

AN
BR

O
O

K 
 R

D
.

PL
EA

SA
N

T 
  A

VE
.

PLEASANT

CT.

M
ER

R
IT

T 
 L

AN
E

BR
YN

 M
AW

R
W

EL
LE

SL
EY

 D
R.

BE
RW

YN
  R

D.

AR
G

YL
E 

  B
LV

D.
G

O
LF

VI
EW

DEVONLANE

RADNOR  DR.
AVON LANE

SAXON

WAKEFIELD

LA
TH

AM
NORFO

LK WORTH-
INGTON

SOUTHLAWN

NORTHLAWN

CANTERBURY

LA
TH

AM

SO
U

TH
FI

EL
D

SH
IP

M
AN

BI
R

M
IN

G
H

AM

M
AR

YL
AN

D

ST
AN

LE
Y

W
AS

H
IN

G
TO

N

BA
TE

S

H
EN

R
IE

TT
A

SOUTHLAWN

14   MILE   RD.

WALLACE

PI
ER

C
E

GORDONLANE

TR
AI

L

H
AW

TH
O

R
N

E

AS
PE

N

LI
N

D
EN

BRANDON

SH
IR

LE
Y 

D
R

.

AR
LI

N
G

TO
N

 R
D

.

ARLING
TO

N RD.

SH
IR

LE
YMAPLE

RIV
ER

R
O

U
G

E

FAIRVIEW

WINTHROP

PINE

MELBORNE

KI
M

BE
R

LE
Y C
H

ES
TE

R
FI

EL
D

PINE

FA
IR

FA
X

SU
FF

IE
LD

PI
LG

R
IM

PU
R

IT
AN

LA
KE

PA
RK

W
ES

TW
O

O
D

G
LE

N
H

U
R

ST BROOKWOOD

KEN
WOOD

LY
O

N
H

U
R

ST

BR
O

O
KW

O
O

D

OAK

RAY  NALE

MID

LAND

W
IL

LO
W

 L
AN

E

LA
KE

SI
D

E

REDDING

ASH
FORD LN.

O
LD

 S
AL

EM

COLONIAL
CT.

BLOOMFIELDCT.

OAK

H
AZ

EL
W

O
O

D
BA

LD
W

IN
 C

T.

W
O

O
D

LA
N

D

AT
EN

 C
T.

HARMON

BA
LD

W
IN

M
IL

LR
AC

E

LAKESIDE

RANDALL

DEWEY

TO
O

TIN
G

LAN
E

BO
NNIE BRIER

VINEWOOD

BROOKSIDE

RA VIN
E

EUCLID

W
OODW

ARDPARK

FERNDALE

OLD W
OODW

ARDWARREN

OAKLAND

SOUTHLAWN

CATALPA

BENNAVILLE
CHAPIN

EMMONS

DAVIS

SMITH

BIRD

C
ED

AR

FL
O

YD

G
R

AN
T

RUFFNER

HUMPHREY

LINCOLN

W
OODW

ARD

TA
U

N
TO

N

CROFT

PENISTONE

BANBURY

HUMPHREY

MELTON

M
AN

SFIELD

BRADFORD

SHEFFIELD
DUNSTABLE

CHELTENHAM

H
AN

LE
Y 

C
T.

ET
O

N

C
O

M
M

ER
C

E

W
O

R
TH

AD
AM

S

LANDON

GEORGE

FL
O

YD

C
LA

R
K

LI
N

C
O

LN
C

T.

DORCHESTER

BUCKINGHAM

PO
PP

LE
TO

N RIDGEDALE

OAKLAND

O
AK

-
D

AL
E

LA
W

N
 D

AL
E

O
AK

  D
AL

E

PO
PP

LE
TO

N

R
O

SE
  D

AL
E

WESTBORO DR.

RIVENOAK

KENNESAW

MOHEGAN

O
XF

O
R

D

WIMBELTON

ABBEY

PUTNEY

HE
NL

EY

HENLEY

ABBEY

TW
IN

O
AK

S AD
AM

S

DERBY

TOTTENHAM

SHEPARDBUSH

W
AR

W
IC

K

NORWICH

DERBY

PEMBROKE
CT. PEMBROKE

G
RAEFIELD

G
R

AE
FI

EL
D

 C
T.

N
. E

TO
N

ED
EN

BO
R

O
U

G
H

DERBY

PEMBROKE

MANCHESTER

WINDEMERE

BUCKINGHAM

DORCHESTER

ST
.  

 A
N

D
R

EW
S

C
O

O
LI

D
G

E

GRAND       TRUNK      W
ESTERN        R.  R.

SPRINGDALE
PARK

16    MILE    ROAD

STRATHMORE

Q
UARTO

N    LAKE

H
ID

D
EN

 R
AV

IN
ES

C
U

M
M

IN
G

S

MADISON

C
O

U
R

T

HANNA

FRANK

SO
UT

HF
IE

LD

W
AT

KI
N

S

C
H

ER
R

Y 
C

T.

ST
AN

LE
Y

C
H

ES
TE

R

BA
TE

S

H
EN

R
IE

TT
A

PI
ER

C
E

CO
UR

T

 DR.

VA
LL

EY
VI

EW
LA

N
E

W
OO

DL
AN

D

VI
LL

A 
C

T.

TOWNSEND

     BROWN

MERRILL

MARTIN
W. M

APLE

CT.

HOLLAND

HAYNES
HAYNES

BOWERS

PALMERHAZEL

VILLA

BOWERS

HAYNES
CT.

PURDY
ANN

FRANK
DAINES

BROWN

HAMILTON
PEABO

DY

HAYNES

BOWERS

HAZEL

CHESTNUT

FORESTEL
M

YOSEMITE

E. MAPLE

KNOX
MAPLE

YA
N

KE
E

C
O

LU
M

BI
A

YORKSHIRE

BENNAVILLE

AD
AM

S

WILLITS

LINCOLN

LINCOLN

M
ELTO

N

HUMPHREY

W
O

O
D

LE
A

WILLITS
ALLEY

TOWNSEND STREET & PEABODY STREET PAVING PROJECT
CONTRACT #6-21P

W
O

R
TH

E. MAPLE

BOWERS

SHEET INDEX

C
H

ES
TE

R

BA
TE

S

H
EN

R
IE

TT
A

FRANK

S. OLD W
OODW

ARD

A Walkable Community

City of BirminghamNF

N

EW

S

JULY 22, 2021    BIDS

PROJECT
AREAS

TO
W

N
SE

N
D

 S
TR

EE
T 

& 
PE

AB
O

D
Y 

ST
R

EE
T 

PA
VI

N
G

 P
R

O
JE

C
T

C
O

N
TR

AC
T 

#6
-2

1P

COLE

WEBSTER

TO
R

R
Y

RUFFNER

ED
G

E
W

O
O

D

COVER SHEET
C1         PAVING & UTILITY PLAN - TOWNSEND STREET STA. P.O.B. TO 5+00
C2         PAVING & UTILITY PLAN - TOWNSEND STREET STA. 5+00 TO P.O.E.
C3         PAVING & UTILITY PLAN - PEABODY STREET STA. P.O.E. TO P.O.B.
C4         STORM SEWER PROFILES - TOWNSEND STREET
C5         GRADING PLAN TOWNSEND STREET STA. P.O.B. TO 5+00
C6         GRADING PLAN TOWNSEND STREET STA. 5+00 TO P.O.E.
C7         GRADING PLAN PEABODY STREET STA. P.O.B. TO P.O.E.
C8         INTERSECTION GRADING DETAILS - TOWNSEND ST. & SOUTHFIELD RD.
C9         INTERSECTION GRADING DETAILS - PEABODY ST. & BROWN ST.
C10       TOWNSEND ST. UTILITY PHASING AND TRAFFIC MAINTENANCE PLAN
C11       TOWNSEND ST. PAVING PHASING AND TRAFFIC MAINTENANCE PLAN
C12       PEABODY ST. UTILITY PHASING AND TRAFFIC MAINTENANCE PLAN
C13       PEABODY ST. PAVING PHASING AND TRAFFIC MAINTENANCE PLAN
C14       ADVANCED WARNING SIGNAGE & TRAFFIC DETOUR PLAN - TOWNSEND ST. & PEABODY ST.
C15       EXISTING & PROPOSED CROSS-SECTIONS
C16    EAST MAPLE ROAD PAVEMENT MARKING & SIGNAGE PLAN
C17       M.D.O.T. DETAILS
C18       FRANK STREET ALLEY -  DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENT PLAN
C19       NOTES & DETAILS ( 1 OF 2)
C20       NOTES & DETAILS (2 OF 2)

Q1     QUANTITIES

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM - SEWER STANDARD DETAILS
CITY OF BIRMINGHAM - WATER MAIN STANDARD DETAILS

N
. G

LE
N

H
U

R
ST

 D
R

.

W
ES

TW
O

O
D

 D
R

.

W
AD

D
IN

G
O

N
 R

D
.

TI
LB

U
R

Y 
R

D
.

YA
R

M
O

U
TH

 R
D

.

C
O

VI
N

G
TO

N
 R

D
.

OAK BLVD 

AMBERLY RD

ENDSLEIGH DR.

COVINGTON PI

N. GLENGARRY  RD

S.
 IN

D
IA

N
 M

O
U

N
D

  R
D

.
FO

X 
C

H
AS

E 
  R

D
.

MIDDLEBURY  LN.

S. W
ILLIAM

SBU
R

Y  R
D

S. CRANBRO
O

K CRO
SS RD.

N
. C

R
AN

BR
O

O
K 

R
D

.

 UTILITY NOTE  
THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF SOME OF THE
EXISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THE
SURVEY DRAWING WERE OBTAINED FROM MUNICIPAL
AND UTILITY COMPANY RECORDS AND MAPS.
THEREFORE, NO GUARANTEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR
IMPLIED AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY
THEREOF.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE
FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND
ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

WATER / SEWER SERVICE NOTE  
ALL WATER AND SEWER SERVICE LATERAL
INFORMATION IS SHOWN PER RECORD, WITHIN THE
PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL
COORDINATE WITH CITY FOR ALL PRIVATE-SIDE WATER
AND SEWER LATERAL INFORMATION, AS REQUIRED, TO
CONSTRUCT THE PROJECT (INC.).

ALL STORM AND SEWER TRENCH
SHALL BE BACKFILLED WITH
COMPACTED GRANULAR (SAND)
MATERIAL.

CAUTION!!! LIVE WATER MAIN
PRIOR TO CUTTING IN NEW MAIN FITTINGS, THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR
COORDINATING THE EXISTING WATER MAIN
SHUT-DOWN WITH THE CITY. MORE IMPORTANTLY,
THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR
SAFELY ENSURING THAT PRESSURES DO NOT EXIST
IN THE MAIN AFTER SHUT-DOWN & PRIOR TO CUTTING
THE MAIN. IF REQUIRED, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL
UTILIZE A HYDRA-STOP DEVICE TO CLOSE OFF FLOW
WHILE CUTTING IN NEW TEE.

CONSTRUCTION NOTES
These notes shall apply for all work within this contract:

1. The contractor shall notify MISS DIG 1-800-482-7171 at least 3 working days
excluding Saturday, Sunday, and Holidays before making any excavations and
notify the City of Birmingham Engineering Department a minimum of 24 hours
prior to the start of construction (248-530-1850).

2. See the City of Birmingham drawings "Sewer Standard Details" and "Water
Main Standard Details" for details of manholes, catch basins, inlets, and related
sewer and water main work.

3. All excavation under or within three feet of pavement, public or private, shall be
backfilled and compacted with sand.

4. The joints at the edges of all excavations in the pavement shall be sawcut, or
pavement will be removed to existing joints, as directed by the Engineer.  There
is no separate pay item for saw cutting pavements.

5. The contractor shall be responsible for damage to existing utilities, pavement,
trees, landscaping, gravel, etc., whether located on public or private property.

6. Catch basin and inlet castings scheduled for replacement, or new construction
shall be EJIW 5000Z4 DI / 5000M4 DI Hinged Assembly unless specified
otherwise.  Manhole castings shall be EJIW 1040-A cover as noted on the
detail sheets and plans, unless otherwise specified.

7. Storm, sewer and water main trench shall be backfilled with MDOT Class II
sand and properly compacted to 95% of modified proctor density.

8. No work shall be allowed on the combined sewer system until appropriate
permits have been received by the Michigan Department of Environment, Great
Lakes & Energy  (EGLE).

9. The contractor shall coordinate and cooperate with all other utility companies
working in the same area, project related or not, during the same allotted
construction period.

design engineer seal

W
O

O
DW

ARD



BENCHMARK

TOWNSEND ST. CONDOMINIUM

PIETY HILL PLACE
#600 BROWN STREET

TOWNSEND HOUSE
#555 TOWNSEND STREET

 HOUSE
#525 TOWNSEND STREET

CAUTION!!

CAUTION!!

#550 TOWNSEND STREET

#570 TOWNSEND STREET

#574 TOWNSEND STREET

#582 TOWNSEND STREET

#590 TOWNSEND STREET

BIRMINGHAM PLACE CONDOMINIUM

THE TERRACE ON TOWNSEND

#542 TOWNSEND ST.

#530 TOWNSEND ST.
#522 TOWNSEND ST.

#518 TOWNSEND ST.

#604TOWNSEND STREET

#602TOWNSEND STREET

#600 TOWNSEND STREET

CAUTION!!

CAUTION!!

M
AT

CH
LI

N
E 

5+
00

////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////

TOWNSEND ST. PROFILE
SCALE:  H 1" = 20'   V 1"=2'

EX. 207' - 10" COMBINED SEWER @ 0.45%(MH 35 - MH 253)

EX. 207' - 10" COMBINED SEWER @ 0.47%(MH 252 - MH 34)

EX. 293' - 8" COMBINED SEWER @ 0.37%
(MH 42 - MH 41)

SOUTHFIELD RD.
(ROW VARIES)

M
AT

CH
LI

N
E 

5+
00

EX. 265' - 8" COMBINED SEWER @ 0.44%

(MH 146 - MH 42)

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////

)

)

)

EX. 18' - 10" COMBINED SEWER @ 0.34%
(MH 253 - MH 252)

Paving & Utility Plan
Townsend Street
Sta. P.O.B. to 5+00

C1

SCALE:

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

Townsend St. & Peabody St.
Paving Project
Contract #6-21(P)

SEAL

April 23, 2021

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE    ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

sheet no.

M271
NFE JOB NO.

NF
civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

ENGINEERS

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

WWW.NOWAKFRAUS.COM

Engineering Department
151 Martin Street
Birmingham, MI 48012

A Walkable Community

Part of the Northwest 14 of
Section 36, Town 2 North,
Range 10 East, City of
Birmingham, Oakland
County, Michigan

04-23-21  issued survey

06-30-21 city review

07-22-21 BIDS

1" = 20'
01020 10 20 30

NF

N

G. Viju

B. Buchholz

SEWER STRUCTURE
SCHEDULE

 UTILITY NOTE  
THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF SOME OF THE
EXISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THE
SURVEY DRAWING WERE OBTAINED FROM MUNICIPAL
AND UTILITY COMPANY RECORDS AND MAPS.
THEREFORE, NO GUARANTEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR
IMPLIED AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY
THEREOF.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE
FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND
ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

STORM STRUCTURE
SCHEDULE

WATER MAIN SCHEDULE

WATER / SEWER SERVICE NOTE  
ALL WATER AND SEWER SERVICE LATERAL
INFORMATION IS SHOWN PER RECORD, TO REFLECT
EXISTING PIPE SIZE AND MATERIAL  WITHIN THE PUBLIC
RIGHT OF WAY. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE
WITH CITY FOR ALL PRIVATE-SIDE WATER AND SEWER
LATERAL INFORMATION, AS REQUIRED, AND SHALL
RE-CONNECT NEW LATERALS WITHIN THE
RIGHT-OF-WAY TO EXISTING LATERALS ON PRIVATE
PROPERTY (INC.).

LEGEND

P. Tulikangas



BENCHMARKBENCHMARK

HOUSE
#504 TOWNSEND STREET

HOUSE
#494 TOWNSEND STREET

HOUSE
#464 TOWNSEND STREET

TOWNSEND AT CHESTER TOWNHOMES

 HOUSE
#525 TOWNSEND STREET

 HOUSE
#505 TOWNSEND STREET

 HOUSE
#491 TOWNSEND STREET TOWNSEND PLACE PROPERTIES

#444 CHESTER STREET

CAUTION!!
#522 TOWNSEND ST.

#518 TOWNSEND ST.

#430 TOWNSEND STREET

#420 TOWNSEND STREET

#410TOWNSEND STREET

CAUTION!!

////////////
////////////////////////////////

M
AT

CH
LI

N
E 

5+
00

//////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////

// // // //

EX. 272' - 8" COMBINED SEWER @ 0.47%(MH 41 - MH 40)

EX. 42' - 10" STORM SEWER

@ 2.17% (MH 32a - MH 32)

EX. 259' - 10" COMBINED SEWER @ 0.50%

(MH 34 - MH 34A)

CHESTER AVE.
(ROW VARIES)

EX. 30' - 18" COMB.
SEWER @ 1.25%
(MH 32 - MH 33)

TOWNSEND ST. PROFILE
SCALE:  H 1" = 20'   V 1"=2'

EX. 293' - 8" COMBINED SEWER @ 0.37%
(MH 42 - MH 41)

EX. 207' - 10" COMBINED SEWER @ 0.47%(MH 252 - MH 34)

M
AT

CH
LI

N
E 

5+
00

//
//

//
//

//
//

//

// // // // // //

// // // // // // // // //

////////////////////////////////

// // //

) )

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//

EX. 44' - 12" COMBINED SEWER @ 0.54%
(MH 40 - MH 40-NEW)

// // // // // // //
EX. 22' - 12" COMB.

SEWER @ 0.54%
(MH 40A - MH )

Paving & Utility Plan
Townsend Street
Sta. 5+00 to P.O.E.

C2

SCALE:

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

Townsend St. & Peabody St.
Paving Project
Contract #6-21(P)

SEAL

April 23, 2021

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE    ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

sheet no.

M271
NFE JOB NO.

NF
civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

ENGINEERS

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

WWW.NOWAKFRAUS.COM

Engineering Department
151 Martin Street
Birmingham, MI 48012

A Walkable Community

Part of the Northwest 14 of
Section 36, Town 2 North,
Range 10 East, City of
Birmingham, Oakland
County, Michigan

04-23-21  issued survey

06-30-21 city review

07-22-21 BIDS

1" = 20'
01020 10 20 30

NF

N

G. Viju

B. Buchholz

SEWER STRUCTURE SCHEDULE

STORM STRUCTURE SCHEDULE

WATER MAIN SCHEDULE

 UTILITY NOTE  
THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF SOME OF THE
EXISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THE
SURVEY DRAWING WERE OBTAINED FROM MUNICIPAL
AND UTILITY COMPANY RECORDS AND MAPS.
THEREFORE, NO GUARANTEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR
IMPLIED AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY
THEREOF.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE
FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND
ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

WATER / SEWER SERVICE NOTE  
ALL WATER AND SEWER SERVICE LATERAL
INFORMATION IS SHOWN PER RECORD, TO REFLECT
EXISTING PIPE SIZE AND MATERIAL  WITHIN THE PUBLIC
RIGHT OF WAY. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE
WITH CITY FOR ALL PRIVATE-SIDE WATER AND SEWER
LATERAL INFORMATION, AS REQUIRED, AND SHALL
RE-CONNECT NEW LATERALS WITHIN THE
RIGHT-OF-WAY TO EXISTING LATERALS ON PRIVATE
PROPERTY (INC.).

LEGEND

P. Tulikangas



EX. 462' - 8" ABANDONED COMBINED SEWER @ 1.04%
(MH 121 - MH 125)

EX. 148' - 12" COMBINED SEWER @ 1.79%
(MH 123A - MH 122)

EX. 32' - 12" COMBINED
SEWER @ 2.27%

(MH 123 - MH 123A)

EX. 165' - 12" COMBINED SEWER @ 1.70%
(MH 124A - MH 123)

EX. 94' - 12" COMBINED SEWER @ 1.69%
(MH 124 - MH 124A)

E. MAPLE RD.
(ROW VARIES)

E. BROWN ST.
(ROW VARIES)

BENCHMARKBENCHMARK

CATALYST DEVELOPMENT

CO. & LLC
#34977  WOODWARD

CAROL LEWIS DAY
SPA#386 E. MAPLE

PEABODY OWNER, LLC
3496 S. WOODWARD AVE. WOODWARD BROWN

ASSOCIATES, LLC
#34901  WOODWARD

BI
R

M
IN

G
H

AM
 8

#2
11

 S
. O

LD
 W

O
O

D
W

AR
D

BI
R

M
IN

G
H

AM
 8

#2
11

 S
. O

LD
 W

O
O

D
W

AR
D

FULLER CENTRAL PARK PROPERTIES
#136 PEABODY ST.

(#177 S. OLD WOODWARD)

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
PEABODY PARKING STRUCTURE

#222 PEABODY ST.

#120/#124
PEABODY ST.

#124 PEABODY ST.

Paving & Utility Plan
Peabody Street
P.O.B. to P.O.E.

C3

SCALE:

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

SEAL

1-4-2019

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE            ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

NF
civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

ENGINEERS

sheet no.

K720-02
NFE JOB NO.

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

04-29-2021  Issued survey

Engineering Department
151 Martin Street
Birmingham, MI 48012

A Walkable Community

Townsend St. & Peabody St.
Paving Project
Contract #6-21(P)

Part of the Northeast 14 of
Section 36, Town 2 North,
Range 10 East, City of
Birmingham, Oakland
County, Michigan

07-22-2021  bids

1" = 20'
01020 10 20 30

B. Buchholz

G. Viju

N
F

NSEWER STRUCTURE SCHEDULE WATER MAIN SCHEDULE

LEGEND

 UTILITY NOTE  
THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF SOME OF THE
EXISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THE
SURVEY DRAWING WERE OBTAINED FROM MUNICIPAL
AND UTILITY COMPANY RECORDS AND MAPS.
THEREFORE, NO GUARANTEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR
IMPLIED AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY
THEREOF.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE
FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND
ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

P. Tulikangas



148Aa

148Ab

STORM SEWER   (CB 148- MH 148A - CB148Ab) 

148Bb

148Ba

148B148A

STORM SEWER   (CB 148Ba - MH 148B - CB148Bb) 

33Da

33D

33Db

STORM SEWER   (CB 33Ca - MH 33C - CB33Cb) 

STORM SEWER   (CB 33Ba - MH 33B - CB33Bb) 

33Ca

33C

33Cb

STORM SEWER   (MH 33B - MH 33A - MH33) 

33B

33A

33

LOWERING WATER MAIN AT CROSSING - PROFILE 

Storm Sewer & Water
Main Profiles

C4

SCALE:

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

Townsend St. & Peabody St.
Paving Project
Contract #6-21(P)

SEAL

April 23, 2021

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE    ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

sheet no.

M271
NFE JOB NO.

NF
civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

ENGINEERS

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

WWW.NOWAKFRAUS.COM

Engineering Department
151 Martin Street
Birmingham, MI 48012

A Walkable Community

Part of the Northwest 14 of
Section 36, Town 2 North,
Range 10 East, City of
Birmingham, Oakland
County, Michigan

04-23-21  issued survey

06-30-21 city review

07-22-21 BIDS

1" = 20'
01020 10 20 30

G. Viju

B. Buchholz

P. Tulikangas



BENCHMARK

TOWNSEND ST. CONDOMINIUM

PIETY HILL PLACE
#600 BROWN STREET

TOWNSEND HOUSE
#555 TOWNSEND STREET

 HOUSE
#525 TOWNSEND STREET

CAUTION!!

CAUTION!!

#550 TOWNSEND STREET

#570 TOWNSEND STREET

#574 TOWNSEND STREET

#582 TOWNSEND STREET

#590 TOWNSEND STREET

BIRMINGHAM PLACE CONDOMINIUM

THE TERRACE ON TOWNSEND

#542 TOWNSEND ST.

#530 TOWNSEND ST.
#522 TOWNSEND ST.

#518 TOWNSEND ST.

#604TOWNSEND STREET

#602TOWNSEND STREET

#600 TOWNSEND STREET

CAUTION!!

CAUTION!!

M
AT

CH
LI

N
E 

5+
00

0.50%

0.543%

0.563%

0.563% 0.882%

0.882% 0.50%

0.50%

PV
I

0.581%

0.581%

H.
P.

H.
P.BV
C

BV
C

EV
C

EV
C

EV
C

BV
C

////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////

TOWNSEND ST. PROFILE
SCALE:  H 1" = 20'   V 1"=2'

SOUTHFIELD RD.
(ROW VARIES)

M
AT

CH
LI

N
E 

5+
00

Grading Plan
Townsend Street
Sta. P.O.B. to 5+00

C5

SCALE:

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

Townsend St. & Peabody St.
Paving Project
Contract #6-21(P)

SEAL

April 23, 2021

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE    ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

sheet no.

M271
NFE JOB NO.

NF
civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

ENGINEERS

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

WWW.NOWAKFRAUS.COM

Engineering Department
151 Martin Street
Birmingham, MI 48012

A Walkable Community

Part of the Northwest 14 of
Section 36, Town 2 North,
Range 10 East, City of
Birmingham, Oakland
County, Michigan

04-23-21  issued survey

06-30-21 city review

07-22-21 BIDS

1" = 20'
01020 10 20 30

NF

N

G. Viju

B. Buchholz

 UTILITY NOTE  
THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF SOME OF THE
EXISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THE
SURVEY DRAWING WERE OBTAINED FROM MUNICIPAL
AND UTILITY COMPANY RECORDS AND MAPS.
THEREFORE, NO GUARANTEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR
IMPLIED AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY
THEREOF.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE
FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND
ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

LEGEND

P. Tulikangas

ADDRESS WIDTH @ WALK LENGTH OF APRONWIDTH @ CURB AREA (SY)
DRIVEWAY SCHEDULE

CURB DROP

555 8.5' 16.520.4'14.4'

24.5' 30.5' 8.2' 24.9

525 10.2' 16.2' 7.9' 11.5 1.5"

574-590 8.2' 15.520.0'14.0'
600 8.1' 24.330.1'24.1'

1.5"

1.5"
1.5"
1.5"

518-542,
550-570

WATER / SEWER SERVICE NOTE  
ALL WATER AND SEWER SERVICE LATERAL
INFORMATION IS SHOWN PER RECORD, TO REFLECT
EXISTING PIPE SIZE AND MATERIAL  WITHIN THE PUBLIC
RIGHT OF WAY. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE
WITH CITY FOR ALL PRIVATE-SIDE WATER AND SEWER
LATERAL INFORMATION, AS REQUIRED, AND SHALL
RE-CONNECT NEW LATERALS WITHIN THE
RIGHT-OF-WAY TO EXISTING LATERALS ON PRIVATE
PROPERTY (INC.).



BENCHMARKBENCHMARK

HOUSE
#504 TOWNSEND STREET

HOUSE
#494 TOWNSEND STREET

HOUSE
#464 TOWNSEND STREET

TOWNSEND AT CHESTER TOWNHOMES

 HOUSE
#525 TOWNSEND STREET

 HOUSE
#505 TOWNSEND STREET

 HOUSE
#491 TOWNSEND STREET TOWNSEND PLACE PROPERTIES

#444 CHESTER STREET

CAUTION!!

THE TERRACE ON TOWNSEND

#522 TOWNSEND ST.
#518 TOWNSEND ST.

#430 TOWNSEND STREET

#420 TOWNSEND STREET

#410TOWNSEND STREET

CAUTION!!

////////////
////////////////////////////////

M
AT

CH
LI

N
E 

5+
00

PV
I

0.581%

0.581%

H.
P.

0.50%

0.50%

0.50%

0.50%

1.067%

0.935%

BV
C

EV
C

RV
C

RV
C

//////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////

// // // //

CHESTER AVE.
(ROW VARIES)

TOWNSEND ST. PROFILE
SCALE:  H 1" = 20'   V 1"=2'

M
AT

CH
LI

N
E 

5+
00

Grading Plan
Townsend Street
Sta. 5+00 to P.O.E.

C6

SCALE:

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

Townsend St. & Peabody St.
Paving Project
Contract #6-21(P)

SEAL

April 23, 2021

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE    ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

sheet no.

M271
NFE JOB NO.

NF
civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

ENGINEERS

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

WWW.NOWAKFRAUS.COM

Engineering Department
151 Martin Street
Birmingham, MI 48012

A Walkable Community

Part of the Northwest 14 of
Section 36, Town 2 North,
Range 10 East, City of
Birmingham, Oakland
County, Michigan

04-23-21  issued survey

06-30-21 city review

07-22-21 BIDS

1" = 20'
01020 10 20 30

NF

N

G. Viju

B. Buchholz

 UTILITY NOTE  
THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF SOME OF THE
EXISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THE
SURVEY DRAWING WERE OBTAINED FROM MUNICIPAL
AND UTILITY COMPANY RECORDS AND MAPS.
THEREFORE, NO GUARANTEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR
IMPLIED AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY
THEREOF.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE
FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND
ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

P. Tulikangas

ADDRESS WIDTH @ WALK LENGTH OF APRONWIDTH @ CURB AREA (SY)
DRIVEWAY SCHEDULE

CURB DROP

491, 505 7.7' 13.018.2'12.2'

410-430, 464 16.5' 22.5' 8.7' 18.6 1.5

494,504 8.4' 18.222.0'17.0'
1.5
1.5

444 18.5' 24.5' 7.9' 18.7 1.5
444 18.5' 24.5' 7.8' 18.5 1.5

WATER / SEWER SERVICE NOTE  
ALL WATER AND SEWER SERVICE LATERAL
INFORMATION IS SHOWN PER RECORD, TO REFLECT
EXISTING PIPE SIZE AND MATERIAL  WITHIN THE PUBLIC
RIGHT OF WAY. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE
WITH CITY FOR ALL PRIVATE-SIDE WATER AND SEWER
LATERAL INFORMATION, AS REQUIRED, AND SHALL
RE-CONNECT NEW LATERALS WITHIN THE
RIGHT-OF-WAY TO EXISTING LATERALS ON PRIVATE
PROPERTY (INC.).

LEGEND



E. MAPLE RD.
(ROW VARIES)

E. BROWN RD.
(ROW VARIES)

BENCHMARKBENCHMARK

CATALYST DEVELOPMENT

CO. & LLC
#34977  WOODWARD

CAROL LEWIS DAY
SPA#386 E. MAPLE

PEABODY OWNER, LLC
3496 S. WOODWARD AVE. WOODWARD BROWN

ASSOCIATES, LLC
#34901  WOODWARD

BI
R

M
IN

G
H

AM
 8

#2
11

 S
. O

LD
 W

O
O

D
W

AR
D

BI
R

M
IN

G
H

AM
 8

#2
11

 S
. O

LD
 W

O
O

D
W

AR
D

FULLER CENTRAL PARK PROPERTIES
#136 PEABODY ST.

(#177 S. OLD WOODWARD)

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
PEABODY PARKING STRUCTURE

#222 PEABODY ST.

#120/#124
PEABODY ST.

#124 PEABODY ST.

Grading Plan - Peabody
Street
P.O.B. to P.O.E.

C7

SCALE:

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

SEAL

1-4-2019

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE            ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

NF
civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

ENGINEERS

sheet no.

K720-02
NFE JOB NO.

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

04-29-2021  Issued survey

Engineering Department
151 Martin Street
Birmingham, MI 48012

A Walkable Community

Townsend St. & Peabody St.
Paving Project
Contract #6-21(P)

Part of the Northeast 14 of
Section 36, Town 2 North,
Range 10 East, City of
Birmingham, Oakland
County, Michigan

07-22-2021  bids

1" = 20'
01020 10 20 30

B. Buchholz

LEGEND

 UTILITY NOTE  
THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF SOME OF THE
EXISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THE
SURVEY DRAWING WERE OBTAINED FROM MUNICIPAL
AND UTILITY COMPANY RECORDS AND MAPS.
THEREFORE, NO GUARANTEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR
IMPLIED AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY
THEREOF.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE
FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND
ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

G. Viju

N
F

N

P. Tulikangas

Ex. Tree Information
Tree # Botanical Name Common Name Dia. Condition Comments

17 Gleditisia triacanthos Honeylocust 21 Good

18 Gleditisia triacanthos Honeylocust 12 Good

19 Gleditisia triacanthos Honeylocust 11 Good

20 Gleditisia triacanthos Honeylocust 8 Good

21 Gleditisia triacanthos Honeylocust 6 Good

22 Gleditisia triacanthos Honeylocust 6 Good

23 Gleditisia triacanthos Honeylocust 6 Good

24 Gleditisia triacanthos Honeylocust 7 Good

Ginkgo biloba Ginko 2 Good

Ginkgo biloba Ginko 2 Good

47

48



BENCHMARK

CAUTION!!
#604TOWNSEND STREET

////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////

BV
C

Intersection Grading
Details - Townsend St. &
Southfield Rd.

C8

SCALE:

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

Townsend St. & Peabody St.
Paving Project
Contract #6-21(P)

SEAL

April 23, 2021

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE    ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

sheet no.

M271
NFE JOB NO.

NF
civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

ENGINEERS

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

WWW.NOWAKFRAUS.COM

Engineering Department
151 Martin Street
Birmingham, MI 48012

A Walkable Community

Part of the Northwest 14 of
Section 36, Town 2 North,
Range 10 East, City of
Birmingham, Oakland
County, Michigan

04-23-21  issued survey

06-30-21 city review

07-22-21 BIDS

1" = 10'
0510 5 10 5

NF

N
G. Viju

B. Buchholz

 UTILITY NOTE  
THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF SOME OF THE
EXISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THE
SURVEY DRAWING WERE OBTAINED FROM MUNICIPAL
AND UTILITY COMPANY RECORDS AND MAPS.
THEREFORE, NO GUARANTEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR
IMPLIED AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY
THEREOF.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE
FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND
ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

TOWNSEND STREET  &  SOUTHFIELD RD.
INTERSECTION GRADING DETAIL

SCALE: 1" = 10'

WATER / SEWER SERVICE NOTE  
ALL WATER AND SEWER SERVICE LATERAL
INFORMATION IS SHOWN PER RECORD, TO REFLECT
EXISTING PIPE SIZE AND MATERIAL  WITHIN THE PUBLIC
RIGHT OF WAY. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE
WITH CITY FOR ALL PRIVATE-SIDE WATER AND SEWER
LATERAL INFORMATION, AS REQUIRED, AND SHALL
RE-CONNECT NEW LATERALS WITHIN THE
RIGHT-OF-WAY TO EXISTING LATERALS ON PRIVATE
PROPERTY (INC.).

P. Tulikangas

LEGEND



WOODWARD BROWNASSOCIATES, LLC#34901  WOODWARD

E.
 B

R
O

W
N

 S
T.

(P
U

BL
IC

 R
.O

.W
. V

AR
IE

S)

CITY OF BIRMINGHAMPEABODY PARKING STRUCTURE#222 PEABODY ST.

BENCHMARK

Intersection Grading
Details - Peabody St. &
Brown Street

C9

SCALE:

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

SEAL

1-4-2019

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE            ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

NF
civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

ENGINEERS

sheet no.

K720-02
NFE JOB NO.

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

04-29-2021  Issued survey

Engineering Department
151 Martin Street
Birmingham, MI 48012

A Walkable Community

Townsend St. & Peabody St.
Paving Project
Contract #6-21(P)

Part of the Northeast 14 of
Section 36, Town 2 North,
Range 10 East, City of
Birmingham, Oakland
County, Michigan

07-22-2021  bids

1" = 10'
0510 5 10 5

B. Buchholz

G. Viju

N
F

N

P. Tulikangas

 UTILITY NOTE  
THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF SOME OF THE
EXISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THE
SURVEY DRAWING WERE OBTAINED FROM MUNICIPAL
AND UTILITY COMPANY RECORDS AND MAPS.
THEREFORE, NO GUARANTEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR
IMPLIED AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY
THEREOF.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE
FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND
ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

LEGEND

PEABODY ST.(PUBLIC R.O.W. VARIES)



BENCHMARKBENCHMARK

TOWNSEND ST. CONDOMINIUM

HOUSE
#504 TOWNSEND STREET

HOUSE
#494 TOWNSEND STREET

HOUSE
#464 TOWNSEND STREET

TOWNSEND AT CHESTER TOWNHOMES

PIETY HILL PLACE
#600 BROWN STREET

TOWNSEND HOUSE
#555 TOWNSEND STREET

 HOUSE
#525 TOWNSEND STREET

 HOUSE
#505 TOWNSEND STREET

 HOUSE
#491 TOWNSEND STREET TOWNSEND PLACE PROPERTIES

#444 CHESTER STREET

#550 TOWNSEND STREET

#570 TOWNSEND STREET

#574 TOWNSEND STREET

#582 TOWNSEND STREET

#590 TOWNSEND STREET

BIRMINGHAM PLACE CONDOMINIUM

THE TERRACE ON TOWNSEND

#542 TOWNSEND ST.

#530 TOWNSEND ST.
#522 TOWNSEND ST.

#518 TOWNSEND ST.

#604TOWNSEND STREET

#602TOWNSEND STREET

#600 TOWNSEND STREET

#430 TOWNSEND STREET

#420 TOWNSEND STREET

#410TOWNSEND STREET

PH
AS

E 
#2

CO
N

ST
. L

IM
IT

S

BENCHMARKBENCHMARK

TOWNSEND ST. CONDOMINIUM

HOUSE
#504 TOWNSEND STREET

HOUSE
#494 TOWNSEND STREET

HOUSE
#464 TOWNSEND STREET

TOWNSEND AT CHESTER TOWNHOMES

PIETY HILL PLACE
#600 BROWN STREET

TOWNSEND HOUSE
#555 TOWNSEND STREET

 HOUSE
#525 TOWNSEND STREET

 HOUSE
#505 TOWNSEND STREET

 HOUSE
#491 TOWNSEND STREET TOWNSEND PLACE PROPERTIES

#444 CHESTER STREET

#550 TOWNSEND STREET

#570 TOWNSEND STREET

#574 TOWNSEND STREET

#582 TOWNSEND STREET

#590 TOWNSEND STREET

BIRMINGHAM PLACE CONDOMINIUM

THE TERRACE ON TOWNSEND

#542 TOWNSEND ST.

#530 TOWNSEND ST.
#522 TOWNSEND ST.

#518 TOWNSEND ST.

#604TOWNSEND STREET

#602TOWNSEND STREET

#600 TOWNSEND STREET

#430 TOWNSEND STREET

#420 TOWNSEND STREET

#410TOWNSEND STREET

PH
AS

E 
#1

CO
N

ST
. L

IM
IT

S

Townsend St. Utility
Phasing and Traffic
Maintenance Plan

C10

SCALE:

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

Townsend St. & Peabody St.
Paving Project
Contract #6-21(P)

SEAL

April 23, 2021

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE    ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

sheet no.

M271
NFE JOB NO.

NF
civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

ENGINEERS

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

WWW.NOWAKFRAUS.COM

Engineering Department
151 Martin Street
Birmingham, MI 48012

A Walkable Community

Part of the Northwest 14 of
Section 36, Town 2 North,
Range 10 East, City of
Birmingham, Oakland
County, Michigan

04-23-21  issued survey

06-30-21 city review

07-22-21 BIDS

1" = 30'
01530 15 30 45

NF

N

G. Viju

B. Buchholz

P. Tulikangas

TOWNSEND ST. UNDER
CONSTRUCTION

SEEK ALT  ROUTE

SPECIAL ADVANCED WARNING SIGN QUANTITIES

TYPE III BARRICADES

LEGEND

TRAFFIC FLOW ROUTE
DURING CONST.

AREAS UNDER CONST.

·

·
·

·

·

·
·

·

PHASE #1 CONSTRUCTION NOTES (P.O.B. - 5+82):

·

·

·

·
·

·

·

·
·

OTHER ADVANCED WARNING SIGN QUANTITIES AS SHOWN

PHASE #2 CONSTRUCTION NOTES (5+82- 8+31):



BENCHMARKBENCHMARK

TOWNSEND ST. CONDOMINIUM

HOUSE
#504 TOWNSEND STREET

HOUSE
#494 TOWNSEND STREET

HOUSE
#464 TOWNSEND STREET

TOWNSEND AT CHESTER TOWNHOMES

PIETY HILL PLACE
#600 BROWN STREET

TOWNSEND HOUSE
#555 TOWNSEND STREET

 HOUSE
#525 TOWNSEND STREET

 HOUSE
#505 TOWNSEND STREET

 HOUSE
#491 TOWNSEND STREET TOWNSEND PLACE PROPERTIES

#444 CHESTER STREET

#550 TOWNSEND STREET

#570 TOWNSEND STREET

#574 TOWNSEND STREET

#582 TOWNSEND STREET

#590 TOWNSEND STREET

BIRMINGHAM PLACE CONDOMINIUM

THE TERRACE ON TOWNSEND

#542 TOWNSEND ST.

#530 TOWNSEND ST.
#522 TOWNSEND ST.

#518 TOWNSEND ST.

#604TOWNSEND STREET

#602TOWNSEND STREET

#600 TOWNSEND STREET

#430 TOWNSEND STREET

#420 TOWNSEND STREET

#410TOWNSEND STREET

BENCHMARKBENCHMARK

TOWNSEND ST. CONDOMINIUM

HOUSE
#504 TOWNSEND STREET

HOUSE
#494 TOWNSEND STREET

HOUSE
#464 TOWNSEND STREET

TOWNSEND AT CHESTER TOWNHOMES

PIETY HILL PLACE
#600 BROWN STREET

TOWNSEND HOUSE
#555 TOWNSEND STREET

 HOUSE
#525 TOWNSEND STREET

 HOUSE
#505 TOWNSEND STREET

 HOUSE
#491 TOWNSEND STREET TOWNSEND PLACE PROPERTIES

#444 CHESTER STREET

#550 TOWNSEND STREET

#570 TOWNSEND STREET

#574 TOWNSEND STREET

#582 TOWNSEND STREET

#590 TOWNSEND STREET

BIRMINGHAM PLACE CONDOMINIUM

THE TERRACE ON TOWNSEND

#542 TOWNSEND ST.

#530 TOWNSEND ST.
#522 TOWNSEND ST.

#518 TOWNSEND ST.

#604TOWNSEND STREET

#602TOWNSEND STREET

#600 TOWNSEND STREET

#430 TOWNSEND STREET

#420 TOWNSEND STREET

#410TOWNSEND STREET

Townsend St. Paving
Phasing and Traffic
Maintenance Plan

C11

SCALE:

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

Townsend St. & Peabody St.
Paving Project
Contract #6-21(P)

SEAL

April 23, 2021

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE    ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

sheet no.

M271
NFE JOB NO.

NF
civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

ENGINEERS

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

WWW.NOWAKFRAUS.COM

Engineering Department
151 Martin Street
Birmingham, MI 48012

A Walkable Community

Part of the Northwest 14 of
Section 36, Town 2 North,
Range 10 East, City of
Birmingham, Oakland
County, Michigan

04-23-21  issued survey

06-30-21 city review

07-22-21 BIDS

1" = 30'
01530 15 30 45

NF

N

G. Viju

B. Buchholz

P. Tulikangas

TOWNSEND ST. UNDER
CONSTRUCTION

SEEK ALT  ROUTE

SPECIAL ADVANCED WARNING SIGN QUANTITIES

TYPE III BARRICADES

LEGEND

TRAFFIC FLOW ROUTE
DURING CONST.

AREAS UNDER CONST.

·

·
·

·

·
·

PHASE #3 CONSTRUCTION NOTES (N. OF TOWNSEND)

OTHER ADVANCED WARNING SIGN QUANTITIES AS SHOWN

PHASE #4 CONSTRUCTION NOTES (S. OF TOWNSEND)

·

·

PHASE #5 CONSTRUCTION NOTES

·

·
·

·

·
·

TRAFFIC FLOW ROUTE
TRAFFIC CONTROL DRUMS

MAINTENANCE AGG.



CATALYST DEVELOPMENT

CO. & LLC
#34977  WOODWARD

CAROL LEWIS DAY
SPA#386 E. MAPLE

PEABODY OWNER, LLC
3496 S. WOODWARD AVE. WOODWARD BROWN

ASSOCIATES, LLC
#34901  WOODWARD

BI
R

M
IN

G
H

AM
 8

#2
11

 S
. O

LD
 W

O
O

D
W

AR
D

FULLER CENTRAL PARK PROPERTIES
#136 PEABODY ST.

(#177 S. OLD WOODWARD)

BI
R

M
IN

G
H

AM
 8

#2
11

 S
. O

LD
 W

O
O

D
W

AR
D

FULLER CENTRAL PARK PROPERTIES
#136 PEABODY ST.

(#177 S. OLD WOODWARD)

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
PEABODY PARKING STRUCTURE

#222 PEABODY ST.

BIRMINGHAM 8
#211 S. OLD WOODWARD

#120/#124
PEABODY ST.

#124 PEABODY ST.

PEABODY ST.
(PUBLIC R.O.W. VARIES)

E.
 M

AP
LE

 R
D.

(P
UB

LI
C 

R.
O

.W
. V

AR
IE

S)

E. BR
O

W
N

 R
D

.
(PU

BLIC
 R

.O
.W

. VAR
IES)

CATALYST DEVELOPMENT

CO. & LLC
#34977  WOODWARD

CAROL LEWIS DAY
SPA#386 E. MAPLE

PEABODY OWNER, LLC
3496 S. WOODWARD AVE. WOODWARD BROWN

ASSOCIATES, LLC
#34901  WOODWARD

BI
R

M
IN

G
H

AM
 8

#2
11

 S
. O

LD
 W

O
O

D
W

AR
D

FULLER CENTRAL PARK PROPERTIES
#136 PEABODY ST.

(#177 S. OLD WOODWARD)

BI
R

M
IN

G
H

AM
 8

#2
11

 S
. O

LD
 W

O
O

D
W

AR
D

FULLER CENTRAL PARK PROPERTIES
#136 PEABODY ST.

(#177 S. OLD WOODWARD)

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
PEABODY PARKING STRUCTURE

#222 PEABODY ST.

BIRMINGHAM 8
#211 S. OLD WOODWARD

#120/#124
PEABODY ST.

#124 PEABODY ST.

PEABODY ST.
(PUBLIC R.O.W. VARIES)

E.
 M

AP
LE

 R
D.

(P
UB

LI
C 

R.
O

.W
. V

AR
IE

S)

E. BR
O

W
N

 R
D

.
(PU

BLIC
 R

.O
.W

. VAR
IES)

Peabody Street
Utility Phasing and
Traffic Maintenance Plan

C12

SCALE:

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

SEAL

1-4-2019

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE            ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

NF
civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

ENGINEERS

sheet no.

K720-02
NFE JOB NO.

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

04-29-2021  Issued survey

Engineering Department
151 Martin Street
Birmingham, MI 48012

A Walkable Community

Townsend St. & Peabody St.
Paving Project
Contract #6-21(P)

Part of the Northeast 14 of
Section 36, Town 2 North,
Range 10 East, City of
Birmingham, Oakland
County, Michigan

07-22-2021  bids

1" = 30'
01530 15 30 45

B. Buchholz

N
F

N

P. Tulikangas

G. Viju

ADVANCED WARNING SIGN
TYPE III BARRICADES

SYMBOL KEY

TEMP. TRAFFIC ROUTE
CHANNELIZING DRUMS

MAINTAINENCE AGG.
FOR VEHICLE ACCESS

·

·

·
·
·

·

·

·

·
·
·

·

PHASED
CONSTRUCTION AREA

N.B. PEABODY CLOSED
PRKG. STRUC. ACCESS
FROM S.B. PEABODY

VIA MAPLE



CATALYST DEVELOPMENT

CO. & LLC
#34977  WOODWARD

CAROL LEWIS DAY
SPA#386 E. MAPLE

PEABODY OWNER, LLC
3496 S. WOODWARD AVE. WOODWARD BROWN

ASSOCIATES, LLC
#34901  WOODWARD

BI
R

M
IN

G
H

AM
 8

#2
11

 S
. O

LD
 W

O
O

D
W

AR
D

FULLER CENTRAL PARK PROPERTIES
#136 PEABODY ST.

(#177 S. OLD WOODWARD)

BI
R

M
IN

G
H

AM
 8

#2
11

 S
. O

LD
 W

O
O

D
W

AR
D

FULLER CENTRAL PARK PROPERTIES
#136 PEABODY ST.

(#177 S. OLD WOODWARD)

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
PEABODY PARKING STRUCTURE

#222 PEABODY ST.

BIRMINGHAM 8
#211 S. OLD WOODWARD

#120/#124
PEABODY ST.

#124 PEABODY ST.

PEABODY ST.
(PUBLIC R.O.W. VARIES)

E.
 M

AP
LE

 R
D.

(P
UB

LI
C 

R.
O

.W
. V

AR
IE

S)

E. BR
O

W
N

 R
D

.
(PU

BLIC
 R

.O
.W

. VAR
IES)

CATALYST DEVELOPMENT

CO. & LLC
#34977  WOODWARD

CAROL LEWIS DAY
SPA#386 E. MAPLE

PEABODY OWNER, LLC
3496 S. WOODWARD AVE. WOODWARD BROWN

ASSOCIATES, LLC
#34901  WOODWARD

BI
R

M
IN

G
H

AM
 8

#2
11

 S
. O

LD
 W

O
O

D
W

AR
D

FULLER CENTRAL PARK PROPERTIES
#136 PEABODY ST.

(#177 S. OLD WOODWARD)

BI
R

M
IN

G
H

AM
 8

#2
11

 S
. O

LD
 W

O
O

D
W

AR
D

FULLER CENTRAL PARK PROPERTIES
#136 PEABODY ST.

(#177 S. OLD WOODWARD)

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
PEABODY PARKING STRUCTURE

#222 PEABODY ST.

BIRMINGHAM 8
#211 S. OLD WOODWARD

#120/#124
PEABODY ST.

#124 PEABODY ST.

PEABODY ST.
(PUBLIC R.O.W. VARIES)

E.
 M

AP
LE

 R
D.

(P
UB

LI
C 

R.
O

.W
. V

AR
IE

S)

E. BR
O

W
N

 R
D

.
(PU

BLIC
 R

.O
.W

. VAR
IES)

CATALYST DEVELOPMENT

CO. & LLC
#34977  WOODWARD

CAROL LEWIS DAY
SPA#386 E. MAPLE

PEABODY OWNER, LLC
3496 S. WOODWARD AVE. WOODWARD BROWN

ASSOCIATES, LLC
#34901  WOODWARD

BI
R

M
IN

G
H

AM
 8

#2
11

 S
. O

LD
 W

O
O

D
W

AR
D

FULLER CENTRAL PARK PROPERTIES
#136 PEABODY ST.

(#177 S. OLD WOODWARD)

BI
R

M
IN

G
H

AM
 8

#2
11

 S
. O

LD
 W

O
O

D
W

AR
D

FULLER CENTRAL PARK PROPERTIES
#136 PEABODY ST.

(#177 S. OLD WOODWARD)

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
PEABODY PARKING STRUCTURE

#222 PEABODY ST.

BIRMINGHAM 8
#211 S. OLD WOODWARD

#120/#124
PEABODY ST.

#124 PEABODY ST.

PEABODY ST.
(PUBLIC R.O.W. VARIES)

E.
 M

AP
LE

 R
D.

(P
UB

LI
C 

R.
O

.W
. V

AR
IE

S)

E. BR
O

W
N

 R
D

.
(PU

BLIC
 R

.O
.W

. VAR
IES)

Peabody Street
Paving Phasing and
Traffic Maintenance Plan

C13

SCALE:

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

SEAL

1-4-2019

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE            ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

NF
civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

ENGINEERS

sheet no.

K720-02
NFE JOB NO.

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

04-29-2021  Issued survey

Engineering Department
151 Martin Street
Birmingham, MI 48012

A Walkable Community

Townsend St. & Peabody St.
Paving Project
Contract #6-21(P)

Part of the Northeast 14 of
Section 36, Town 2 North,
Range 10 East, City of
Birmingham, Oakland
County, Michigan

07-22-2021  bids

1" = 30'
01530 15 30 45

B. Buchholz

N
F

N

P. Tulikangas

N.B. PEABODY CLOSED
PRKG. STRUC. ACCESS
FROM S.B. PEABODY

VIA MAPLE

G. Viju

ADVANCED WARNING SIGN
TYPE III BARRICADES

SYMBOL KEY

TEMP. TRAFFIC ROUTE
CHANNELIZING DRUMS

MAINTAINENCE AGG.
FOR VEHICLE ACCESS

·

·

·
·

·
·

·

·

·

·
·

·
·

·

·

·

·
·
·
·

S.B. PEABODY OPEN
PRKG. STRUC. ACCESS

S.B. PEABODY OPEN
PRKG. STRUC. ACCESS

PHASED
CONSTRUCTION AREA



DEWEY

BO
NNIE BRIER

EUCLID

PARK

FERNDALE

OLD W
OODW

ARD

WARREN

OAKLAND

GEORGE

PO
PP

  L
ET

O
N

RIDGEDALE

OAKLAND

O
AK

-
D

AL
E

LA
W

N
 D

AL
E

HANNA

FRANK

SO
UT

HF
IE

LD

W
AT

KI
N

S

C
H

ER
R

Y 
C

T.

ST
AN

LE
Y

C
H

ES
TE

R

BA
TE

S

H
EN

R
IE

TT
A

PI
ER

C
E

W
O

O
D

LA
N

D

VI
LL

A 
C

T.

TOWNSEND

     BROWN

MERRILL

MARTIN
W. M

APLE

CT.

PURDY

ANN

FRANK

DAINES
BROWN

HAMILTON

PEABO
DY

EL
M

KNOX

WILLITS

SO
UT

HF
IE

LD

PARK

WILLITS

ALLEY

HAZEL

AL
LE

Y

ALLEY

CHESTNUT

FOREST

HAZEL

PAR
K

W. MAPLE

E. MAPLE

MERRILL

ALLEY

PARK ST.
GARAGE

WORK
AREA

WORK
AREA

NF

N

EW

S

ADVANCED WARNING SIGN

TYPE III BARRICADES

SYMBOL KEY

DETOUR ROUTE

DETOUR DETOUR DETOUR

PEABODY  ST. PEABODY ST.PEABODY ST.

END
DETOUR

OTHER ADVANCED WARNING SIGN QUANTITIES AS SHOWN

SPECIAL ADVANCED WARNING SIGN QUANTITIES

N.B. PEABODY ST. CLOSED
BROWN TO MAPLE
FOLLOW  DETOUR

NOTES

Advanced Warning
Signage & Traffic Detour
Plan -Townsend St. &
Peabody St.

SCALE:

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

SEAL

April 23, 2021

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE            ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

sheet no.

M271
NFE JOB NO.

Engineering Department
151 Martin Street
Birmingham, MI 48012

A Walkable Community

Townsend St. & Peabody St.
Paving Project
Contract #6-21(P)

07-22-21 BIDS

Part of the Northwest 14 of
Section 36, Town 2 North,
Range 10 East, City of
Birmingham, Oakland
County, Michigan

NF
civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

ENGINEERS

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

C14

N.T.S.

B. Buchholz

G. Viju

P. Tulikangas

TOWNSEND ST. UNDER
CONSTRUCITON

SEEK ALT  ROUTE

N.B. PEABODY CLOSED
PRKG. STRUC. ACCESS
FROM S.B. PEABODY

VIA MAPLE

*PHASING NOTES:



Existing & Proposed Road
Cross-Sections - Townsend
& Peabody

C15

SCALE:

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

Townsend St. & Peabody St.
Paving Project
Contract #6-21(P)

SEAL

April 23, 2021

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE    ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

sheet no.

M271
NFE JOB NO.

NF
civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

ENGINEERS

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

WWW.NOWAKFRAUS.COM

Engineering Department
151 Martin Street
Birmingham, MI 48012

A Walkable Community

Part of the Northwest 14 of
Section 36, Town 2 North,
Range 10 East, City of
Birmingham, Oakland
County, Michigan

04-23-21  issued survey

06-30-21 city review

07-22-21 BIDS

1" = 20'
01020 10 20 30

G. Viju

B. Buchholz

P. Tulikangas

TOWNSEND STREET

EXISTING ASPHALT  PAVEMENT SECTION

TOWNSEND STREET

PROPOSED  9" ASPHALT  PAVEMENT SECTION

PEABODY STREET

EXISTING ASPHALT  PAVEMENT SECTION

PEABODY STREET

PROPOSED  9" ASPHALT  PAVEMENT SECTION



CATALYST DEVELOPMENT
CO. & LLC

#34977  WOODWARD

KROGER
#725 E. MAPLE ROAD

19-25-483-032

E. MAPLE RD.
(PUBLIC R.O.W. VARIES)

E. MAPLE RD.
(PUBLIC R.O.W. VARIES)

SO
U

TH
 BO

U
N

D

W
O

O
D

W
AR

D
 AVE.

 (PU
BLIC

 R
.O

.W
. VAR

IES)

N
O

R
TH

 BO
U

N
D

W
O

O
D

W
AR

D
 AVE.

 (PU
BLIC

 R
.O

.W
. VAR

IES)

C16

SCALE:

Part of the S./N. 1/2
of Section 25/36
Town 2 North ,
Range 10 East
City of Birmingham,
Oakland County, Michigan

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

Townsend St. & Peabody St.
Paving Project
Contract #6-21(P)

SEAL

March 24, 2021

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE            ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

sheet no.

K516
NFE JOB NO.

03-24-21  city review

Engineering Department
151 Martin Street
Birmingham, MI 48012

A Walkable Community

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

19 96 - 9120

NF
ENGINEERS

nowak & fraus

engineers

05-10-21  REVISED PER CITY 

06-04-21  M.D.O.T. PERMIT SUBMITTAL

06-16-21  revised per m.d.o.t. review

07-22-21  bids

1" = 20'
01020 10 20 30

B. Buchholz

NF

N

G. Viju

P. Tulikangas

East Maple Road Pavement
Marking & Signage  Plan

EX.  E. MAPLE CROSS SECTION/ PR. SIGN LOCATION
·

·

·

PR. SIGN #1
R3-8 (mod)

·
·
·

 MAPLE RD
WOODWARD

 PARK ST.

 ONLY
PR. SIGN #2

W4-7

EAST MAPLE PAVEMENT MARKING REVISION & SIGNAGE



C17

SCALE:

Part of the S./N. 1/2
of Section 25/36
Town 2 North ,
Range 10 East
City of Birmingham,
Oakland County, Michigan

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

Townsend St. & Peabody St.
Paving Project
Contract #6-21(P)

SEAL

March 24, 2021

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE            ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

sheet no.

K516
NFE JOB NO.

03-24-21  city review

Engineering Department
151 Martin Street
Birmingham, MI 48012

A Walkable Community

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

19 96 - 9120

NF
ENGINEERS

nowak & fraus

engineers

05-10-21  REVISED PER CITY 

06-04-21  M.D.O.T. PERMIT SUBMITTAL

06-16-21  revised per m.d.o.t. review

07-22-21  bids

N.T.S.

B. Buchholz

G. Viju

P. Tulikangas

M.D.O.T. Details



BENCHMARK

E.
 F

R
AN

K 
ST

R
EE

T
(5

0'
 R

.O
.W

.)

#342 E. FRANK STREET

#727 PURDY STREET#705 PURDY STREET

#360 E. FRANK STREET

#630 ANN STREET

E. FRANK ALLEY
(16' R.O.W.) ASPH.

#739 PURDY STREET

CAUTION!!

ANN STREET
(50' R.O.W.)

#749 PURDY STREET #759 PURDY STREET

#650 ANN STREET#610 ANN STREET

PURDY STREET
(R.O.W. VARIES)

P. Tulikangas

B. Buchholz

C18

SCALE:

Part of the Northeast 1 4
of Section 36, Town 2 North ,
Range 10 East,
City of Birmingham,
Oakland County, Michigan

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

E. Frank St. Alley

SEAL

June 15, 2021

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE            ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

sheet no.

M420
NFE JOB NO.

06-15-2021 ISSUED SURVEY

NF
civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

ENGINEERS

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

WWW.NOWAKFRAUS.COM

Engineering Department
151 Martin Street
Birmingham, MI 48012

A Walkable Community

07-22-2021 bids

1" = 20'
01020 10 20 30

G. Viju

TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY NOTES

MISS DIG / UTILITY DISCLAIMER NOTE

N
F

N

SEWER STRUCTURE SCHEDULE

Frank Street Alley
Drainage Improvement
Plan

LEGEND



Notes & Details (1 of 2)

C19

SCALE:

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

Townsend St. & Peabody St.
Paving Project
Contract #6-21(P)

SEAL

April 23, 2021

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE    ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

sheet no.

M271
NFE JOB NO.

NF
civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

ENGINEERS

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

WWW.NOWAKFRAUS.COM

Engineering Department
151 Martin Street
Birmingham, MI 48012

A Walkable Community

Part of the Northwest 14 of
Section 36, Town 2 North,
Range 10 East, City of
Birmingham, Oakland
County, Michigan

04-23-21  issued survey

06-30-21 city review

07-22-21 BIDS

1" = 20'
01020 10 20 30

G. Viju

B. Buchholz

-

GENERAL NOTES

PAVING NOTES

WATER MAIN NOTES

STORM SEWER NOTES (where applicable)

UNDERDRAIN DETAIL

9.0" ASPHALT PAVEMENT SECTION



SECTION A-A SECTION DETAIL

EX  4' DIAMETER MANHOLE33C

Notes & Details (2 of 2)

C20

SCALE:

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

Townsend St. & Peabody St.
Paving Project
Contract #6-21(P)

SEAL

April 23, 2021

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE    ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

sheet no.

M271
NFE JOB NO.

NF
civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

ENGINEERS

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

WWW.NOWAKFRAUS.COM

Engineering Department
151 Martin Street
Birmingham, MI 48012

A Walkable Community

Part of the Northwest 14 of
Section 36, Town 2 North,
Range 10 East, City of
Birmingham, Oakland
County, Michigan

04-23-21  issued survey

06-30-21 city review

07-22-21 BIDS

1" = 20'
01020 10 20 30

G. Viju

B. Buchholz

-

SECTION A-A SECTION DETAIL

EX  4' DIAMETER MANHOLE148A

CONCRETE SADDLE OVER EXISTING UTILITIES 



Quantities

Q1

SCALE:

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

Townsend St. & Peabody St.
Paving Project
Contract #6-21(P)

SEAL

April 23, 2021

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE    ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

sheet no.

M271
NFE JOB NO.

NF
civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

ENGINEERS

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

WWW.NOWAKFRAUS.COM

Engineering Department
151 Martin Street
Birmingham, MI 48012

A Walkable Community

Part of the Northwest 14 of
Section 36, Town 2 North,
Range 10 East, City of
Birmingham, Oakland
County, Michigan

04-23-21  issued survey

06-30-21 city review

07-22-21 BIDS

1" = 20'
01020 10 20 30

G. Viju

B. Buchholz

-







 
 
 

 NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS  
46777 WOODWARD AVENUE 
PONTIAC, MI 48342-5032 

WWW.NOWAKFRAUS.COM VOICE: 248.332.7931 
FAX: 248.332.8257 

 

 

 

 

 

Civil engineers 

 

Land surveyors 

 

Land planners 

 
August 13, 2021   
 
 
City of Birmingham 
151 Martin Street 
Birmingham, MI 48012 
 
 
Attn:   Mr. James Surhigh, P.E. 
  Consulting City Engineer  
 
Re:  Recommendation for Bid Award 

Townsend Street and Peabody Street Paving Project – Contract #6‐21P 
  NFE Job #M271 
   
Dear Mr. Surhigh, 
 
Bids for the subject project were received, opened, and read on Thursday, August 12, 2021, at 2:00 p.m. at City Hall. A total of 
four (4) bids were received and read. The bids have been tabulated, checked, and are in order. The low bidder for the project 
is DiPonio Contracting,  Inc. of Shelby Township, Michigan, with a  total bid amount of $1,154,870.95. We note  that  the bid 
amount is greater than the Engineer’s Opinion of Probable Cost, which was $1,133,540.40, by an amount of $21,330.55 which 
represents less than a 2% increase over the estimated cost for the project. 
 
Our  office  has  experience  working  with  DiPonio  Contracting  on  previous  successful  projects  in  Birmingham  and  other 
surrounding communities. DiPonio Contracting  is nearing completion on the 2021 Grant Street Paving Project  (Contract #1‐
21P)  and  recently  completed  the  2020  Lakeview  Avenue  Paving  Project  (Contract  #2‐20P).  We  have  also  reviewed  the 
references  included  with  the  bid  and  find  them  to  be  reputable  and  acceptable.  Based  on  previous  experience  we  are 
confident in DiPonio Contracting’s ability to perform the scope of work for this project.  
 
In our capacity as Design and Consulting Engineers for the City of Birmingham, we recommend that Contract #6‐21P for the 
Townsend Street and Peabody Street Paving Project be awarded to DiPonio Contracting, Inc. in the amount of $1,154,870.95. 
 
Please do not hesitate to contact our office if you have any questions or comments.  
 
Sincerely,  

 
 
 

Paul Tulikangas, P.E.                Brett Buchholz, P.E., 
Associate / Engineering Manager              Principal        
                 

 
 



7B



months overstepped the boundaries of the municipalities and would step into the shoes 
of the S0l(c) organization. 

• After much discussion with the Director of NEXT and our neighboring communities, we
have identified this Interlocal Agreement to be appropriate. This Agreement allows NEXT
to be able to rely upon stabilization and predictability for its finances in order to continue
to serve the seniors in all four ( 4) governmental units. This Interlocal Agreement simply
states that NEXT can rely upon the ongoing financial participation of the four ( 4) units in
the same manner they have for past years participation.

LEGAL REVIEW: 

• The City Attorney drafted the Agreement and believes this Interlocal Agreement is the
appropriate agreement to assist NEXT in being able to rely upon the four ( 4) governmental
units in continuing its endeavors. At any time in the future if the role of the municipalities
change, new agreements can be drafted. As of today, the City of Birmingham, nor its
three (3) neighboring communities, are in positions of or have the desire to purchase large
assets like buildings, etc. on behalf of the non-profit. If times change, or if new endeavors
are sought, we can certainly draft new agreements.

FISCAL IMPACT: 

• In the past, the City of Birmingham's contribution to NEXT has been approximately
$122,944.00, which is 67% of the total contribution from the four (4) funding units.

SUMMARY: 

• It is advisable for the City of Birmingham to enter into this Interlocal Agreement which
promises to NEXT its continuing contribution of approximately $123,000.00 each year.

ATTACHMENTS: 

• Interlocal Agreement for Joint Senior Services

SUGGESTED COMMISSION ACTION: 

• To make a motion to adopt a Resolution approving the City of Birmingham's participation
in an Interlocal Agreement for Joint Senior Services, which together with three (3)
neighboring communities, articulates their intention to contribute money so that NEXT
and its Board of Directors may rely upon these monies in order to serve the seniors
residing in the governmental units, and to authorize the City Manager to sign the
Agreement on behalf of the City.

2 









GREENWOOD CEMETERY ADVISORY BOARD 

2020/2021 ANNUAL REPORT 
August 12, 2021 

Linda Buchanan, Chair 
Linda Peterson, Vice Chair 
Pam DeWeese 
Laura Schreiner 
George Stern 
Margaret Suter 
Joseph Vercellone 

10E1



GREENWOOD CEMETERY ADVISORY BOARD       2020/2021 ANNUAL REPORT           1 
 

INTRODUCTION 

 
The Greenwood Cemetery Advisory Board was established by the Birmingham City 
Commission on October 13, 2014. One of its duties is to submit a report to the 
Commission on an annual basis of the general activities, operation, and condition of the 
cemetery for the preceding 12-month period. The Greenwood Cemetery Advisory Board 
Annual Report includes a summary and update of the cemetery’s status, related finances, 
and the GCAB’s planned activities for the next fiscal year. 
 
In alignment with the City’s fiscal year, the current GCAB’s report covers the period from 
July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



GREENWOOD CEMETERY ADVISORY BOARD       2020/2021 ANNUAL REPORT           2 
 

GENERAL ACTIVITIES  

Meetings 
The Greenwood Cemetery Advisory Board is required to meet at least quarterly. During the 
report period, the board met three times in 2020 and six times in 2021. Board activities focused 
primarily on established project priorities for the period. 
 
2020/2021 Accomplishments 

• Continued progress on GIS map in regards to initial setup and data entry  
• Completed an 18-month report to synchronize GCAB’s annual reporting with the 

city’s fiscal year; the report covered January 2019-June 2020.  
• Approved Grave Releases: 

o December 21, 2020 
 Resolution # 12-284-20 - To authorize the 10 plots sold but not 

authorized in Sections B, e.g.: B, Row 9-A, Plots 7, 14, 19 and 20; B, Row 
10-A, Plot 17; B, Row 11-A, Plots 19, 20, and 24; B, Row 13-A, Plot 1; 
and B, Row 15-C, Plot 6.  AND to release 10 plots in Row 19-A for sale. 
AND to authorize the sale of one additional grave in Section B, Lot 12a, 
Space 17 or 18. 

o January 25, 2021 
 Resolution # 01-012-21 - To authorize the release of 14 plots available in 

Section C, Row 18-A for sale in Greenwood Cemetery. Furthermore the 
City Commission directs the Greenwood Cemetery Advisory Board to 
evaluate the grave site pricing and return with recommended changes 
prior to any further release. 

o April 26, 2021 
 Resolution # 04-128-21 - To release 38 graves in Section B, rows 17-C, 

16-C, 15-C, and 14-A to be available for purchase in Greenwood 
Cemetery. 

• Evaluated grave prices and recommended an increase 
o In February of 2021 the GCAB studied current grave prices and made a 

recommendation for the Commission which was discussed and passed on March 
22, 2021.  
 Resolution # 03-098-21 - To increase the price of the plots in Greenwood 

Cemetery that accommodate one full burial or up to 3 cremains from 
$3000 to $4000 effective immediately upon passage by the Commission, 
and for the new rate to be applicable to all currently released graves and 
future grave releases. 

• Updated the cemetery fee schedule 
• Completed initial planning and proposed language updates to the Greenwood 

Cemetery Operational Procedures, Conditions, and Regulations 
• Aligned expectations and considerations regarding planting and maintenance of trees 

in the cemetery 
• Set goals for 2021-2022 
• Renewed the Cemetery Service Provider Contract 
• Confirmed location of unmarked burials (also known as Potter’s Field) research and 

report completed by Museum Director Leslie Pielack 
• Completed initial preparation and planning for a volunteer monument/marker 

inventory survey of Greenwood Cemetery  



GREENWOOD CEMETERY ADVISORY BOARD       2020/2021 ANNUAL REPORT           3 
 

OPERATION  

Sales and Financial Information 
 
On December 1, 2019, Creative Collaborations, LLC became the provider for cemetery 
services, with the exception of grounds maintenance, which was provided by the City’s 
Department of Public Services. On May 1, 2020, Creative Collaborations entered into a 
one-year renewable contract with the City to provide cemetery services on an ongoing 
basis. The contract was renewed again on April 26, 2021 for the 2021-2022 fiscal year. 
Grounds maintenance continues to be provided by DPS with ongoing communication and 
collaboration between the Creative Collaborations, DPS, and the City Clerk’s office.     
 
On January 14, 2019, the City Commission approved a payment plan policy for cemetery 
plots that requires full payment within 24 months. During the 2020-2021 fiscal year, one 
new payment plan has been initiated. The Clerk’s Office and Treasurer’s Office monitors 
active payment plans. Plots under a payment plan are considered sold for purposes of 
availability unless the plot becomes available again in the event of a purchaser default.   

 
Grave Sales Detail, July 2020 - June 2021 
 
 3Q – 2020 

July, Aug, Sept 
4Q – 2020 
Oct, Nov, Dec 

1Q – 2021 
Jan, Feb, Mar 

2Q = 2021 
April, May, June 

Sec B C B+C Oth B C B+C Oth B C B+C Oth B C B+C Oth 
# sold 3 - 3 - 5 - 5 2 2 9 11 - - 1 1 - 
Resident 1 - - - 2 - 2 - 1 1 2 - - - - - 
Non-Res 2 - - - 3 - 3 2 1 8 9 - - 1 1 - 
Pmt Pln - - - - - - - - - 1 1 - - - - - 
Total 3 7 11 1 
*On March 22, 2021 the City Commission approved the grave price increase for plots that can 
accommodate one full burial from $3,000 to $4,000 per plot.  
 

FY 20-21 Grand Totals 
Sales in B 10 
Sales in C 10 
Sales in Other 2 
Resident Purchases 5 
Non-Resident Purchases 17 
Payment Plans Initiated 1 
Total Graves Sold 22 
Private Transfer of Ownership  7 

 

   *Plots in Sections B and C sold under a payment plan are included in the number of sales made for 
the quarter in which the payment plan was instituted. The remittance to the Perpetual Care Fund of 
payment for the plots is recorded in total in the quarter in which the final payment is made.  

 
 
 



GREENWOOD CEMETERY ADVISORY BOARD       2020/2021 ANNUAL REPORT           4 
 

Beginning December 1, 2019, Creative Collaborations, LLC, remits 100% of revenue to the 
City, which then makes payments to the contractors for services performed. 
 

Burials and Inurnments, July 2020 - June 2021 
 
Burials and inurnment activity during the period can be used to understand utilization of 
graves and assist in planning for future sales. 
 
 1Q 

20 
2Q 
20 

3Q 
21 

4Q 
21 

TOTAL Sec 
B 

Sec 
C 

B + 
C      

Sec 
D  

Sec 
K 

Sec 
L 

Sec 
O 

Other 

Burials 1 4 4 3 12 1 2 3 1 1 1 1 5 
Inurnments 7 5 - 4 16 4 1 5 - - 3 1 7 
Total 8 9 4 7 28 5 3 8 1 1 4 2 12 

 
Perpetual Care Fund 
 
Revenues from grave sales are used to increase the Perpetual Care Fund for Greenwood 
Cemetery, with investment earnings remaining with the PCF. This has contributed to 
substantial growth of the fund. Often there is a delay from when the payment is posted for a 
plot in respect to the date of the sale.  

 
Detail for July 2020 through June 2021: 
 
2020 Q Ending September 30 

Proceeds from cemetery plot sales       18,104.00  
Investment income             5,238.46 

Revenue for Perpetual Care Fund      23,342.46 
 
2020 Q Ending December 31 

Proceeds from cemetery plot sales       13,512.00  
Investment income             6,270.68 
Realized investment gains          6,106.80 

Revenue for Perpetual Care Fund      25,889.48 
 
2021 Q Ending March 31 

Proceeds from cemetery plot sales         6,000.00  
Investment income             5,106.83 

Revenue for Perpetual Care Fund      11,106.83 
 
2021 Q Ending June 30 

Proceeds from cemetery plot sales        33,600.00 
Investment income              5,139.40 
 Revenue for Perpetual Care Fund       38,739.40 
 

Market gain (loss)                   181,241.44   
 
Increase (decrease) in fund balance       280,319.61 
Beginning fund balance, July 1, 2020                          866,438.45  
Ending fund balance, June 30, 2021 (preliminary)            1,146,758.06   
     
  



GREENWOOD CEMETERY ADVISORY BOARD       2020/2021 ANNUAL REPORT           5 
 

CONDITION  

 
During the 2020-2021 fiscal year, the City’s Department of Public Services has overseen 
cemetery landscape maintenance, which has included:  
 

• Oversight of Lawn Mowing Contractor including weekly cuts and spring and fall 
cleanup 

• Oversight of Forestry Contractor for Tree Maintenance as directed by DPS 
• Maintenance of the Tree Inventory Program 
• Lawn fertilization twice a year 
• Burial topsoil and seeding: spring and fall 
• As-needed general clean up: grave blankets, old flowers, fallen branches 
• Trash removal: 2 to 3 times per week 
• Maintenance of water system: start up, winterizing, and repair as needed 
• Repair of turf as needed 
• Removal of snow stakes 
• Snow removal 
• Raising and leveling of markers/monuments or approval of arrangements with vendor 

for same 
• Building/fencing/road maintenance as needed 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



GREENWOOD CEMETERY ADVISORY BOARD       2020/2021 ANNUAL REPORT           6 
 

PLAN FOR 2020/2021 

The Greenwood Cemetery Advisory Board has prioritized the following action items for 
2021/2022: 
 
CRITICAL GOALS 
Short Term 
• Review  and update Greenwood Cemetery Operational Procedures, Conditions and 

Regulations 
- Discussion and planning to review and update the Greenwood Cemetery Operational 

Procedures, Conditions, and Regulations began at the February 5, 2021 meeting. 
The board decided to update language and definitions for consistency and clarity; 
then strategically move through the document section by section to ensure that all 
of the current and future needs of the cemetery and persons using the cemetery are 
met and protected. GCAB plans to address one or two sections of the document at 
each GCAB meeting in the coming year until a fully revised document is ready for the 
City Commission to consider.   

• Review  the Cemetery Management Agreement 
- Creative Collaborations, LLC. has been the contracted cemetery service provider 

since December 1, 2019. Since then the contract has been renewed in one-year 
increments on May 18, 2020 and again on April 26, 2021.  

- GCAB wishes to reevaluate the contract, to ensure that all Greenwood Cemetery 
needs are being met, along with the needs of the city and persons using the 
cemetery. GCAB is interested in going through the RFP process and assessing the 
current market for providers of these services to make sure that the City of 
Birmingham is able to retain the best cemetery service provider available.   

 
Long Term 
• Develop a long range plan for the cemetery 

- Over the past year, the GCAB has had numerous discussions about the need to 
develop a more detailed long range strategic plan to address current and future 
needs in the cemetery. GCAB will start drafting and revising a plan in the 2021-2022 
fiscal year.    

• Confirm the baseline amount of known available plots in the cemetery 
- Record reconciliation is an ongoing process in the Clerk’s Office. While GCAB closely 

monitors sales activity in the cemetery, they also monitor interments and inurnments 
throughout the cemetery. Transfers of ownership, interments, and inurnments are 
the most common activities taking place in in the cemetery’s sections other than B 
and C. This goal partners with the planned monument/marker inventory survey and 
the GIS mapping initiative to reconfirm how all space in Greenwood Cemetery is 
being used whether that be designated green space, sold space, or unsold space.   

• Monitor the continued grow th of the perpetual care fund 
- The GCAB monitors the growth of the perpetual care fund and can propose 

strategies for increasing the funds growth in order for the fund to reach a point 
where the interest accrued can cover most or all of the general maintenance 
requirements of the cemetery.  

 
 
 



GREENWOOD CEMETERY ADVISORY BOARD       2020/2021 ANNUAL REPORT           7 
 

• Monitor the demand for cemetery services 
- GCAB members review cemetery data in regards to sales, internments and 

inurnments and consider trends in order to suggest ways Greenwood Cemetery may 
need to adapt in order to meet future demands.  

• Continue historic preservation efforts 
- The GCAB works collaboratively with the Museum Board and Friends of the 

Birmingham Museum (a.k.a, the Birmingham Historical society.) GCAB develops 
projects such as the monument/marker inventory survey, and the Friends of the 
Birmingham Museum regularly conducts tours in the cemetery to continue to 
educate and engage citizens while preserving history in the cemetery.  

 
DESIRED GOALS 
Short Term 
• Replace pole & chain in section F 

- The pole and chain in section F remains in place for the safety of cemetery users 
and to allow access as needed for cemetery operations. The current pole and chain 
functions as a safety measure, GCAB wishes to find an alternative safety barrier that 
meets the aesthetics of the cemetery. DPS and the cemetery contractor will provide 
input to make sure any proposed changes meet safety and operational 
requirements.  

• Reevaluate the effectiveness and possible need for GPR in the cemetery 
- GCAB wishes to reevaluate the potential benefits of GPR and take into consideration 

any change in cost of this type of survey as well as improvements in technology 
since the item was last reviewed.  

• Evaluate fencing maintenance needs for Greenwood Cemetery 
- GCAB wishes to examine the current state of the fencing and determine if any or all 

areas are due to be repainted.   
 
Long Term 
• Monument/ marker inventory survey 

- On June 4, 2021, GCAB began working towards a plan to conduct a survey on all the 
monuments and markers in the cemetery. This survey will help with determining 
inventory, current conditions, and historic preservation needs with the guidance of 
Museum Director Pielack and City Clerk Bingham. The GCAB wishes to conduct this 
survey with volunteers and the support of city staff in order to cross-reference 
general information and collect baseline condition data and photos that could 
potentially be linked with the GIS data project. Monuments or markers that may 
need maintenance may also be identified through this survey. 

• GIS Mapping – Launching a digital map for public reference 
- City Staff in the planning department with GIS expertise created a GIS map of the 

cemetery. Data points from DPS on tree locations within the cemetery were added 
as a layer to the map in the spring of 2021. This goal ties in with the 
monument/marker inventory survey and confirming the baseline information of 
known available plots in the cemetery. Ongoing efforts are being made as time 
allows, the Clerk’s Office provides progress updates to GCAB as needed.  

• Determine Capital Outlay Projects 
- GCAB may discuss and study the potential benefits of a capital outlay project. The 

GCAB will provide a recommendation and report to the City Commission if a capital 
outlay project is identified.   

 
 



GREENWOOD CEMETERY ADVISORY BOARD       2020/2021 ANNUAL REPORT           8 
 

 

SUMMARY AND RECOMMENDATIONS  

Grave sale activity primarily occurs in sections B and C and is closely monitored by the City 
Clerk’s office.  
 
The City Commission releases graves upon recommendation from staff and the Greenwood 
Cemetery Advisory Board.  
 
On December 21, 2020, the City Commission approved the release of remaining graves in 
section C, row 19-A. There are 24 graves mapped out in this row. As of July 1, 2021, 14 graves 
are owned, 5 graves are unowned but obstructed, and there are 5 graves ready for purchase 
and use at this time.  
 
On January 25, 2021, the City Commission approved the release of remaining graves in section 
C, row 18-A. There are 24 graves mapped out in this row. As of July 1, 2021, 22 graves are 
owned, 2 graves are unowned but obstructed and not able to be used at this time.  
 
On April 25, 2021, the City Commission approved the release of remaining graves in section B, 
rows; 17-C, 16-C, 15-C, and 14-A. There are 24 graves mapped out in each row. As of July 1, 
2021, there are 29 graves available for purchase and use, 9 graves are unowned and 
obstructed, 57 of these graves are owned.  
 
 Section C (released) 

Rows: 18-A, 19-A, 20-A 
Section B (released) 
Rows: 14-A, 15-C, 16-C, 17-C  

Section B (reserved) 
Rows: A-1 through A-13 

Obstructed 31 9 *Currently being reviewed 
Owned 36 58 187 
Available 5 29 *125 

 
The GCAB, Clerks Office, DPS, Museum, and contracted cemetery service provider continue to 
work collaboratively to preserve the historic charm and ambiance of Greenwood Cemetery while 
ensuring the highest standards of maintenance and service are being provided. The GCAB will 
continue to monitor data as provided by the City Clerk, work on their goals as laid out in this 
document, and make recommendations for future grave releases and/or improvements for the 
preservation and operation of the Historic Greenwood Cemetery.    
 



1 

MEMORANDUM 
Engineering Department 

DATE: August 19, 2021  

TO: Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 

FROM: James J. Surhigh, Consulting City Engineer 

SUBJECT: Interim Report on Preliminary Infrastructure Ratings 

INTRODUCTION: 
This memorandum serves as the interim report to present the initial findings from the 
infrastructure ratings for the public water distribution system, City sewer system, and City 
road surface conditions on both “improved” and “unimproved” streets.  The attached maps 
show the “block” ratings for each of the public infrastructure components.  These ratings 
would be compiled together to assist in setting priorities for future capital improvement 
planning efforts.  Note that the prioritization effort is ongoing, and the ratings presented 
with this report are to be considered preliminary and subject to change, as conditions are 
looked at more closely and overall priorities are being developed. 

BACKGROUND: 
Maps are attached to this report that show the “block” ratings for the water distribution 
system, sewer system and road network.  A “block” is defined as a street segment, from 
one street intersection to another.  For the water and sewer system, each “block” usually 
contains multiple segments of the utility system.  Generally, the “block” rating represents 
the highest scoring individual segment on the “block”.  For example; on a typical street 
“block” that contains 3 sewer segments (defined as the pipes between the manhole 
structures, and assuming one at each of the intersections, and two intermediate locations 
along the street), each of the sewer segments is individually rated, and the highest scoring 
segment is assigned to be the value for that “block” for the sewer system rating. 

Condition ratings for most of the sewer system were updated in 2019 as part of the SAW 
Grant effort, the water distribution system in 2020 as part of the Water Asset Management 
Plan, and road surfaces in 2021.  The past practice of combining the ratings for each of 
these three components to develop priorities that guide the development of the 5-year 
Capital Improvement Plan will continue, and the new ratings take into account current 
conditions and recent improvements that have been completed. 

The condition ratings for the individual segments of the water distribution system and 
sewer system are based on a number of factors.  For water mains, major factors include 
age, pipe material, number of breaks over time (indicator of structural condition), if 
undersized with respect to current standard minimum 8” diameter, presence of known or 
suspected lead water services (new requirement from the State of Michigan), and ability 
to provide required fire flows from hydrants connected to that segment.  For sewer mains, 
major factors include age, structural conditions (cracks, holes, fractures), operation & 
maintenance conditions (roots, mineral deposits, dips/sags), and pipe capacity with 

10E2



2 
 
 

respect to the 10-year design storm.  Road surface conditions are based on visual 
inspection and use of a standardized rating system called PASER (Pavement Surface 
Evaluation and Rating), which is used throughout Michigan by municipalities, counties and 
the State highway department.  PASER rating systems have been developed for asphalt, 
concrete and seal-coated gravel (called “unimproved” in Birmingham) types of pavement 
surfaces, and take into account the type of distress or deterioration, and the amount of 
distress or deterioration. 
 
The purpose of issuing this interim report is to provide information related to the current 
ratings that will be important when having future discussion about capital improvement 
planning.  The next opportunity to discuss these infrastructure ratings, and how they 
factor into prioritization for capital planning will be at the next Commission Workshop on 
September 13, 2021, when this will be a topic as it applies to “unimproved” roads.  Later 
in the year, a separate report will be prepared related to overall infrastructure prioritization 
and planning.   
 

LEGAL REVIEW:  
Legal review not applicable at this time. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:  

Fiscal impact not applicable at this time. 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 

Discussion of updating the infrastructure priorities was publically discussed at the Long 
Range Planning Meeting in January 2021, and again at the Unimproved Road Workshop 
held on April 12, 2021. 

 
SUMMARY 

Preliminary maps are attached for informational purposes showing the current 
infrastructure ratings for the water distribution system, sewer system, and road networks. 
These ratings would be compiled together to assist in setting priorities for future capital 
improvement planning efforts.  Note that the prioritization effort is ongoing, and the 
ratings presented with this report are to be considered preliminary and subject to change, 
as conditions are looked at more closely and overall priorities are being developed. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:   

The following attachments accompany this report:  
• Map of Block Ratings for Water Distribution System 
• Map of Block Ratings for Sewer System 
• 2021 PASER Ratings for Road Surface Conditions 

 
SUGGESTED COMMISSION ACTION: 

No action suggested at this time – report provided for informational purposes. 



MAPLE

OAK

W
O

ODW
ARD

AD
AM

S

ET
O

N

BA
TE

S

DERBY

PI
E

R
C

E

BIRD

COLE

LINCOLN

FA
IR

FA
X

PI
LG

R
IM

REDDING

H
EN

R
IE

TT
A

PU
R

IT
AN

SU
FF

IE
LD

TO
R

R
Y

VILLA

OLDW
OODW

ARD

FAIRWAY

SO
U

TH
FI

EL
D

ANN

SMITH

LA
K

EP
A

R
K

RAYNALE

PARK

LA
K

ES
ID

E
BROWN

EL
M

G
R

A
N

T

PEMBROKE

ABBEY

HOLLAND

C
H

ES
TE

R
FI

EL
D

C
H

ES
TE

R

WEBSTER

MIDVALE

M
ELTO

N

DAVIS

HAZEL

NORTHLAWN

C
R

AN
B

R
O

O
K

ST
AN

LE
Y

WILLITS

SH
IP

M
AN

LAR
C

H
LEA

HARMON

PURDY

YOSEMITE

AR
LI

N
G

TO
N

HENLEY

HAYNES

HANNA

G
LE

N
H

U
R

S
T

WIMBLETON

M
AR

YL
AN

D

PLE
AS

AN
T

MERRILL

O
X

FO
R

D

TA
U

N
TO

N

FRANK

BOWERS

HUMPHREY

SHEFFIELD

W
ES

TW
O

O
D

ED
G

EW
O

O
D

WINDEMERE

LIN
D

EN

LA
TH

AM

MADISON

BI
R

M
IN

G
H

A
M CHAPIN

AR
G

YL
E

YORKSHIRE

W
ES

TC
H

ES
TER

W
AT

K
IN

S

ASPEN

BUCKINGHAM

W
AS

H
IN

G
TO

N

EMMONS

MANCHESTER

MARTIN

SHIRLEY

OAKLAND

AVON

C
ED

A
R

KNOX

BIGBEAVER

BA
LD

W
IN

GEORGE

ST
AN

D
R

E
W

S

W
IL

LO
W

PO
PP

LE
TO

N

C
O

LU
M

BI
A

W
O

R
TH

G
R

E
EN

W
O

O
D

ED
EN

BO
R

O
U

G
H

QUARTON

W
AR

W
IC

K

C
U

M
M

IN
G

S

FOREST

BRADFORD

BE
RW

YN

VINEWOOD

C
R

O
FT

MOHEGAN

RIVENOAK
PEN

ISTO
N

E

TOWNSEND

DORCHESTER

PINE

FOURTEENMILE

WALLACE

KENNESAW

RUFFNER

SAXON

BANBURY

RIDGEDALE

G
R

AE
FI

EL
D

LA
K

EV
IE

W

SH
EP

AR
D

B
U

SH

HAWTHORNE

M
ANSFIELD

FERNDALE

BENNAVILLE

WAKEFIELD

CHESTNUT

RADNOR

W
EL

LE
SL

EY

BR
O

O
K

W
O

O
D

BR
YN

M
AW

R

W
O

O
D

LEA

HILLSIDE

TOTTENHAM

W
O

O
D

LA
N

D

NORFOLK

C
AM

B
R

ID
G

E

WESTBORO

EUCLID

DEWEY

HAMILTON

DAINES

KI
M

B
ER

LE
Y

G
O

LF
VI

EW

FAIRVIEW

LANDON

PUTNEY

BR
O

O
KSID

E

LY
O

N
H

U
R

ST

FL
O

Y
D

O
A

KD
A

LE

CATALPA

RANDALL

SOUTHLAWN

MID
LA

ND

AR
D

E
N

COLONIAL

GORDON

ATEN

PEABO
DY

H
AN

LE
Y

CANTERBURY

KENWOOD

WORTHINGTON

C
H

ER
R

Y

PO
LO

RIVEROAK

D
O

N
M

AR

DUNSTABLE

M
AP

LEH
ILL

BLOOMFIELD

M
IL

LR
A

C
E

O
LD

S
ALEM

C
O

M
M

ER
C

E

ASHFORD

H
AZ

EL
W

O
O

D

HI
DD

EN
RA

VI
NE

S

LAW
NDALE

M
ER

R
IT

T

BO
N

N
IEBR

IER

VALLEY
VIE

W

NORWICH

WARREN

FOURTEENMILE

NORTHLAWN

PINE

OAKLAND

HUMPHREY

W
OODW

ARD

G
O

LFVIE
W

SOUTHLAWN

W
OODW

ARD

LA
K

ES
ID

E

CHAPIN

HAZEL

SOUTHLAWN

HAYNES

BUCKINGHAM

FRANK

G
LE

N
H

U
R

S
T

QUARTON

DORCHESTER

ST
AN

LE
Y

BOWERS

NORTHLAWN

YORKSHIRE

SH
IR

LE
Y

BENNAVILLE

ET
O

N

BOWERS

W
O

R
TH

LATHAM

EMMONS

NORTHLAWN

RUFFNER

CATALPA

.

City Blocks
Water Points (0-100)

> 75

50 - 75

< 50

None

PRELIMINARY
Block Ratings for

Water Distribution System

D
oc

um
en

t P
at

h:
 Y

:\2
02

10
0\

20
21

00
98

\0
3_

St
ud

ie
s\

W
or

ki
ng

\G
IS

\2
02

10
81

9_
W

at
er

_P
rio

rit
iz

at
io

n_
Sc

or
es

.m
xd

0 500 1,000 Feet



MAPLE

OAK

W
O

ODW
ARD

AD
AM

S

ET
O

N

BA
TE

S

DERBY

PI
E

R
C

E

BIRD

COLE

LINCOLN

FA
IR

FA
X

PI
LG

R
IM

REDDING

H
EN

R
IE

TT
A

PU
R

IT
AN

SU
FF

IE
LD

TO
R

R
Y

VILLA

OLDW
OODW

ARD

FAIRWAY

SO
U

TH
FI

EL
D

ANN

SMITH

LA
K

EP
A

R
K

RAYNALE

PARK

LA
K

ES
ID

E
BROWN

EL
M

G
R

A
N

T

PEMBROKE

ABBEY

HOLLAND

C
H

ES
TE

R
FI

EL
D

C
H

ES
TE

R

WEBSTER

MIDVALE

M
ELTO

N

DAVIS

HAZEL

NORTHLAWN

C
R

AN
B

R
O

O
K

ST
AN

LE
Y

WILLITS

SH
IP

M
AN

LAR
C

H
LEA

HARMON

PURDY

YOSEMITE

AR
LI

N
G

TO
N

HENLEY

HAYNES

HANNA

G
LE

N
H

U
R

S
T

WIMBLETON

M
AR

YL
AN

D

PLE
AS

AN
T

MERRILL

O
X

FO
R

D

TA
U

N
TO

N

FRANK

BOWERS

HUMPHREY

SHEFFIELD

W
ES

TW
O

O
D

ED
G

EW
O

O
D

WINDEMERE

LIN
D

EN

LA
TH

AM

MADISON

BI
R

M
IN

G
H

A
M CHAPIN

AR
G

YL
E

YORKSHIRE

W
ES

TC
H

ES
TER

W
AT

K
IN

S

ASPEN

BUCKINGHAM

W
AS

H
IN

G
TO

N

EMMONS

MANCHESTER

MARTIN

SHIRLEY

OAKLAND

AVON

C
ED

A
R

KNOX

BIGBEAVER

BA
LD

W
IN

GEORGE

ST
AN

D
R

E
W

S

W
IL

LO
W

PO
PP

LE
TO

N

C
O

LU
M

BI
A

W
O

R
TH

G
R

E
EN

W
O

O
D

ED
EN

BO
R

O
U

G
H

QUARTON

W
AR

W
IC

K

C
U

M
M

IN
G

S

FOREST

BRADFORD

BE
RW

YN

VINEWOOD

C
R

O
FT

MOHEGAN

RIVENOAK
PEN

ISTO
N

E

TOWNSEND

DORCHESTER

PINE

FOURTEENMILE

WALLACE

KENNESAW

RUFFNER

SAXON

BANBURY

RIDGEDALE

G
R

AE
FI

EL
D

LA
K

EV
IE

W

SH
EP

AR
D

B
U

SH

HAWTHORNE

M
ANSFIELD

FERNDALE

BENNAVILLE

WAKEFIELD

CHESTNUT

RADNOR

W
EL

LE
SL

EY

BR
O

O
K

W
O

O
D

BR
YN

M
AW

R

W
O

O
D

LEA

HILLSIDE

TOTTENHAM

W
O

O
D

LA
N

D

NORFOLK

C
AM

B
R

ID
G

E

WESTBORO

EUCLID

DEWEY

HAMILTON

DAINES

KI
M

B
ER

LE
Y

G
O

LF
VI

EW

FAIRVIEW

LANDON

PUTNEY

BR
O

O
KSID

E

LY
O

N
H

U
R

ST

FL
O

Y
D

O
A

KD
A

LE

CATALPA

RANDALL

SOUTHLAWN

MID
LA

ND

AR
D

E
N

COLONIAL

GORDON

ATEN

PEABO
DY

H
AN

LE
Y

CANTERBURY

KENWOOD

WORTHINGTON

C
H

ER
R

Y

PO
LO

RIVEROAK

D
O

N
M

AR

DUNSTABLE

M
AP

LEH
ILL

BLOOMFIELD

M
IL

LR
A

C
E

O
LD

S
ALEM

C
O

M
M

ER
C

E

ASHFORD

H
AZ

EL
W

O
O

D

HI
DD

EN
RA

VI
NE

S

LAW
NDALE

M
ER

R
IT

T

BO
N

N
IEBR

IER

VALLEY
VIE

W

NORWICH

WARREN

FOURTEENMILE

NORTHLAWN

PINE

OAKLAND

HUMPHREY

W
OODW

ARD

G
O

LFVIE
W

SOUTHLAWN

W
OODW

ARD

LA
K

ES
ID

E

CHAPIN

HAZEL

SOUTHLAWN

HAYNES

BUCKINGHAM

FRANK

G
LE

N
H

U
R

S
T

QUARTON

DORCHESTER

ST
AN

LE
Y

BOWERS

NORTHLAWN

YORKSHIRE

SH
IR

LE
Y

BENNAVILLE

ET
O

N

BOWERS

W
O

R
TH

LATHAM

EMMONS

NORTHLAWN

RUFFNER

CATALPA

.

City Blocks
Sewer Points (0-100)

> 45

30 - 45

< 30

None

PRELIMINARY
Block Ratings for

Sewer System

D
oc

um
en

t P
at

h:
 Y

:\2
02

10
0\

20
21

00
98

\0
3_

St
ud

ie
s\

W
or

ki
ng

\G
IS

\2
02

10
81

9_
Se

w
er

_P
rio

rit
iz

at
io

n_
Sc

or
es

.m
xd

0 500 1,000 Feet



W Lincoln

Pl
ea

sa
nt

W
oo

dl
ea

La
rc

hl
ea

 D
r

W
es

tc
he

st
er

 W
ay

S 
G

le
nh

ur
st

 D
r

G
ol

fv
ie

w

W Maple Rd

C
oo

lid
ge

 R
d

To
rry

Willits

Harmon

So
ut

hf
ie

ld
 R

d

G
ra

nt
Haynes

Villa Ave

N
Ad

am
s

R
d

Ferndale

Bowers

Midvale

Cole

Oakland

HaynesLi
nd

en

W
oodward

Ave

C
he

st
er

fie
ld

Madison

Bennaville

O
xf

or
d

Radnor Dr Avon Ln

W
el

le
sl

ey

Wimbleton Dr

Pine St
S 

C
he

st
er

Abbey Rd

N
Old

W
oodward

Ave

Brown St
Po

pp
le

to
n

Redding Rd

S 
Et

on
 R

d

Sheffie
ld

N
 E

to
n 

R
d

Raynale

Yosemite

W
ar

w
ic

k 
D

r

George

G
rae fiel d

Rd

H
id

de
n 

R
av

in
e 

Tr
l

Oak

Purdy

Atta
rd 

St

Pi
er

ce

Redding Rd

Ridgedale

Henley

S 
Ba

te
s

Bradford

H
en

rie
tta

Martin St

Hazel

La
ke

Pa
rk

D
r

Hanna Webster
W Frank

Ann

Dorchester

C
um

m
in

gs
 A

ve

Ar
gy

le
Bl

vd El
m

Rivenoak

Su
ffi

el
d

Ed
ge

w
oo

d
Townsend

N
 W

or
th

W Southlawn

Dewey

Northlawn

Derby Rd

W Merrill

M
er

rit
tL

n

Kennesaw

E Frank

E Merrill

Br
yn

 M
aw

r

La
th

am

Haze
l

Ba
ld

w
in

W akefield

N
G

le
nh

u r
st

D
r

Manchester Rd

C
ol

um
bi

a

G
re

en
la

w
n

St
an

le
y

Lawnd ale
St

La
ke

si
de

Ta
un

to
n

Shepardbush

Sa
in

tA
nd

re
w

s
St

Catalpa
Penistone

C
ro

ft

Ed
en

bo
ro

ug
h

Park
Fairway Dr

M
ans fi el d

Pine

C
am

br
id

ge

Quarton Rd

W 14 Mile Rd

Chestnut

H
aw

th
or

ne

Knox

Ar
lin

gt
on

 R
d

Tottenham

W
illo

w
 L

n

Be
rw

yn

H ills
i d

e
D

r

W Lincoln St

G
re

en
w

oo
d

W
oo

dl
an

d

Forest

M
elton

Cheltenham

Latha
m

Dun
sta

ble

Pembroke

Devon Ln

Fa
irf

ax

Chapin

Smith

S
W

ort h

Putney

Bird

Yorkshire
Winthrop

Shirley
Dr

Banbury

Daines

Gordon Ln

E Southlawn

Melbourne

Mohegan

W Lincoln

Hazel
Villa

Bowers

Holland

No
rfolk

Colonial Ct

Humphrey

Emmons

A s hford Ln

Canterbury

Emmons

Pi
lg

rim

Fairview

W
es

tw
oo

d
D

r

M
ar

yl
an

d 
Bl

vd

St
an

le
y

W
as

hi
ng

to
n

Bi
rm

in
gh

am
 B

lv
d

Sh
ip

m
an

La
ke

vi
ew

Ly
on

hu
rs

t R
d

Southlawn

Manchester

Chapin

Worthington

Windemere

Br
oo

kw
oo

d

Buckingham
Buckingham

Dorchester

Yorkshire

G
ol

fv i
ew

Pu
rit

an

Davis

S 
C

ra
nb

ro
ok

 R
d

Wallace

Ruffner

Westboro

Bennaville

Shir
le

y
Dr

Humphrey

C
ed

ar
 D

r

Ruffner

As
pe

n

0 0.4 0.8 1.20.2
Miles

±

Date: 8/15/2021

Legend
City of Birmingham

Private or Federal-Aid Roads
2021 PASER Rating

1 - Failed

2 - Very Poor

3 - Poor

4 - Fair

5 - Fair

6 - Good

7 - Good

8 - Very Good

9 - Excellent

10 - Excellent



CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

August 2021 

Baldwin Public Library 

At a special meeting on August 9, the Library Board interviewed the three architectural firms that 
submitted bids to design the front entrance and circulation area of the Library. The Library 
Board selected Merritt Cieslak Designs as the winning bidder at their regular Board meeting on 
August 16. The Children's Garden on the north side of the building will be expanded later this 
fall to include more outdoor programming space. This project is being funded by a donation from 
the Jane M. Van Dragt Trust. Starting at the beginning of September, the second floor will be 
carpeted and refurnished, also using a donation from the Jane M. Van Dragt Trust. 

The Birmingham Museum 

When school starts this fall, students going to Seaholm High School’s College and Career Center 

will be met with captioned wall-sized graphics drawn from the Birmingham Museum’s collection 

of historic Seaholm images. The project not only helped the school realize its vision, but also 

creates a permanent exhibit that provides historic context to help students connect to the past 

while they plan their future. 

Birmingham Shopping District 

Welcome, Sushi Japan 
The Birmingham Shopping District is pleased to welcome Sushi Japan as the newest 
downtown business, located at 176 South Old Woodward. 

Birmingham Movie Night 
In accordance with the spirit of the Dream Cruise season, Birmingham Movie Night 
featured the movie Cars on Friday, August 13th in Booth Park. The event was well-
attended, attracting the largest number of guests of the entire 2021 Movie Night series. 

Birmingham Cruise Event 
The Birmingham Cruise event will occur on Saturday, August 21st, from 9:00 a.m. to 
5:00 p.m. on South Old Woodward between Bowers and Landon Streets. The BSD plans 
to take every potential measure of precaution concerning safeguarding public health 
amid the rise in Covid-19 Delta variant cases. BSD staff will wear masks at the event. 
The general public will be urged to wear masks and socially distance as much as 
possible. Further, signs will be placed throughout the event footprint, encouraging the 

10E3



use of masks to protect public health. A total of seventy-four cars will be featured in the 
car show, which were selected by lottery in order to fairly accommodate the demand for 
participation due to the reduced footprint this year.  

Promotional Videos 
The BSD has hired SEEN Media to produce promotional videos of downtown 
Birmingham. The videos will feature downtown businesses, merchandise found in retail 
stores, and promote the overall experience of downtown Birmingham to audiences 
across multiple media platforms. This is part of a greater comprehensive strategy to 
market the downtown district as a regional shopping and dining destination.  

 

Building Department 

 

Monthly Report 

The Building Department’s monthly report provides an update on the following 

construction activity: building permits issued, building inspections conducted, trades 

permits issued and trades inspections conducted. 

Enforcing Vegetation Overhanging Sidewalks 

The Building Department has implemented a new program for proactively enforcing 

vegetation overhanging City sidewalks.  This was due to an increased number of 

complaints regarding these violations to our City Code.  Our inspectors and Code 

Assistance Officers are working in conjunction with the DPS and Engineering staff to 

keep an eye out for overgrown vegetation during inspections and throughout their daily 

routine.  Our software has been updated concerning this complaint tracking to make 

reporting these violations easier.  We have made the identification and abatement of 

these violations proactive rather than reactive with all field staff on the lookout. 

  

Welcome, Suzanne Pedigro 

The Building Department would like to welcome Suzanne Pedigro! She comes to us from 

McKenna and Associates and brings 31 years of experience from West Bloomfield 

Township where she was the Building Department Permit Coordinator. 

 

Online Permit Applications 

In July we processed 411 online permit applications, bringing our total to 2,399 online 

permits for 2021. 

 

 

City Clerk’s Office 

Elections 

Important Dates for the November 2, 2021 Election 

 Week of Aug. 23 – Applications for absentee ballots mailed to voters on the 

permanent absent voter list  

 End of September – Absentee ballots will start to be mailed to requesting voters  

https://www.bhamgov.org/document_center/City%20Manager%20Office/Manager%20Reports/August%202021/CONSTRUCTION%20ACTIVITY%20July%20Update.pdf


 Oct. 18 – Last day to register to vote by mail or at mi.gov/vote 

 Oct. 19 – Nov. 2 – Unregistered voters must schedule an appointment to register 

in person with the clerk’s office. 

 Oct. 29 by 5:00 pm – Last day to request an absentee ballot by mail or at 

mi.gov/vote 

 Nov. 1 at 4:00 pm  – Deadline for obtaining an absentee ballot in person at the 

clerk’s office 

 Nov. 2 – Election day. Polls are open 7:00 am – 8:00 pm 

 Nov. 2 by 8:00 pm – Deadline for all absentee ballots to be received and 

processed at the clerk’s office. Any absentee ballots received after 8:00 pm on 

Election Day will not be counted. 

For more updates and information on the November 2, 2021 election visit 

bhamgov.org/voting.  

Additional considerations: 

Are you registered to vote in Birmingham? If you’re not certain, need to register or 

change your address, visit mi.gov/vote. This website is a great tool for these tasks and 

more, including finding the location of your polling place and tracking your absentee 

ballot mailing and received dates. 

If you wish to vote absentee, you must complete an application for an 

absentee ballot. If your name is on Michigan’s permanent absent voter list, this 

application was mailed to your address on file in late August. If you didn’t receive an 

application, the fastest way to get one is via MI.gov/vote. On the left sidebar, select 

“Absentee voting.” Next, under absentee voter ballot applications, click on the first bullet 

labeled “Apply Online.” This takes you to the online application; please complete it and 

click submit.  

Does the clerk’s office have your current address, phone number and email?  

We need a method to contact you with questions about your absentee ballot or 

application, or if you forget to sign. If you will not be at your residential address in 

October and are voting absentee, please inform the clerk’s office of your temporary 

address to ensure you receive your absentee ballot. By law, official election mail cannot 

be forwarded by the post office. 

Birmingham’s ballot drop boxes are a secure 24-hour option for returning 

ballots, and – keeping in mind the deadlines above – voter registrations and absentee 

ballot applications. Drive-up and walk-up ballot boxes are located behind city hall. 

Interested in becoming an election inspector? Please contact the clerk’s office at 

248-530-1880.  A downloadable inspector application and additional details are available 

at www.bhamgov.org/electioninspectors.  

Greenwood Cemetery  

Future Agenda Topics for Greenwood Cemetery Advisory Board (GCAB) 

http://www.bhamgov.org/electioninspectors


September 3 - Meeting in-person at City Hall 

 2022 GCAB Meeting Schedule 

 Continued discussion on updating the rules and regulations for Greenwood 

Cemetery 

 Continued discussion on a policy for installing monuments in recognition of a 

person of historical significance 

 Update on the gravestone survey and inventory project 

October 1 - Meeting in-person at City Hall 

Topics to be determined 

Upcoming Board Appointments  

As terms expire, notice will be given for existing members to reapply or for new 

applicants to apply to the following boards in September and October: 

 Board of Zoning Appeals 

 Planning Board Alternates 

 Multi-Modal Transportation Board 

 Birmingham Shopping District 

Board Vacancies 

The following boards have open positions that were noticed and have not yet been 

filled: 

 Advisory Parking Committee 

 Alternate Hearing Officer 

 Martha Baldwin Park Board 

 Storm Water Utility Appeals Board 

 Triangle District Corridor Improvement Authority 

For more information visit bhamgov.org/boardopportunities.   

City Manager’s Office 

Communications 

Monthly Manager Reports 
To increase awareness about this report and further educate the community about city 
happenings, monthly manager reports will now be included in the Around Town e-
Newsletter in addition to their current placement at www.bhamgov.org/citymanager. 
 
Citizen Request App 
The IT and Communications teams are researching citizen request apps to supplement 
the website submission form. It is our hope that offering an app in addition to the 
website form will make it easier than ever for residents to submit comments and/or 
concerns to the city. 
 

http://www.bhamgov.org/boardopportunities
http://www.bhamgov.org/citymanager


Printing Company 
The city’s long-time printing company, Dearborn Lithograph, has closed. We will issue a 
Request for Proposal for printing services this fall. 
 
New Projects on Engage Birmingham Coming Soon 
More than 300 people completed a survey about year-round outdoor dining on Engage 
Birmingham. In the coming weeks, residents will have an opportunity to share feedback 
with new projects about Food Trucks, the South Eton Street bikeway design, a “Name 
the Street Sweeper” contest and more. 

 
Human Resources 

 
Congratulations to Jana Ecker and Melissa Fairbairn 
We are pleased to announce that Jana Ecker has been promoted to Assistant City 
Manager, and Melissa Fairbairn will be taking on advanced responsibilities in her role of 
Assistant to the City Manager. Their unique skill sets and wealth of knowledge make 
them excellent candidates for these positions. The City Manager is hopeful and excited 
that this mentorship and succession based office structure will foster leadership that 
generates consistency and stability for years to come.  
 

Miscellaneous 
 
Request for Qualifications for Legal Services 
Eight firms submitted proposals for legal services and were included in the initial round 
of interviews during the week of August 16. The City Manager will conduct a second 
round of interviews with the top firms later this month. The City Manager will share 
videos with the City Commission of interviews with law firms that reach the second 
round, and invite the Commissioners to share their views with the manager. Following 
the interview process, the City Manager's appointment will go before the City 
Commission for confirmation in September.  
 
Americans with Disabilities Act Obligations for Outdoor Dining Areas 
City Manager Tom Markus received a letter from the United States Attorney’s Office 
which reminds municipalities and restaurants that the Americans with Disabilities Act 
(ADA) applies to all restaurant dining spaces, including outdoor dining areas. The letter 
addresses accessibility requirements for ADA compatibility, and states these 
requirements are to be considered and discussed when restaurants seek to create or 
expand an outdoor dining area. The letter has been shared with Birmingham restaurants 
and is available for download here. 
 
MDOT Intelligent Transportation System (ITS) Proposal for Woodward 
The Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT) held a meeting on Tuesday, July 
20, 2021 to discuss the M-1 Intelligent Transportation System (ITS) project with 
Birmingham and other local communities. Download the meeting minutes here.  
 
The following correspondence serves as a brief update on the continuing concerns with 
the MDOT ITS proposal for Woodward. Follow this link to view a letter to MDOT from 

http://engage.bhamgov.org/
http://engage.bhamgov.org/
https://www.bhamgov.org/document_center/City%20Manager%20Office/Manager%20Reports/August%202021/Restaurant%20Outdoor%20Dining%20ADA%20Letter.pdf
https://www.bhamgov.org/document_center/City%20Manager%20Office/Manager%20Reports/August%202021/MDOT-JN207466PE-Oakland%20County%20Stakeholder%20Minutes%20(07-20-21).pdf
https://www.bhamgov.org/document_center/City%20Manager%20Office/Manager%20Reports/August%202021/Ltr%20to%20Raymond%20Klucens%20re%20JN%20207466%20%20MDOT%20%20M-1%20ITS%20project%208-12-21.pdf


Bloomfield Township Supervisor, Dani Walsh, and MDOT’s response correspondence 
here. 
 
 

Department of Public Services 

 

2021 DTE Energy Foundation Grant Award 
Birmingham received a $4,000 grant to help supplement our tree planting program!  This 
annual grant program is sponsored by DTE Energy Foundation and administered by 
Michigan's Department of Natural Resources and ReLeaf Michigan, a nonprofit 
organization.  Birmingham's urban forest, consisting of trees along street right-of-ways, 
public parks and golf courses, is estimated to provide more than $20 million worth of 
benefits to our community, and grants like this help us maintain our trees and replace the 
trees lost throughout the year. 
 
Tree Manual and Standards of Practice 
Birmingham is thankful for the grant funding they received from the Michigan Department 
of Natural Resources in cooperation with the U.S. Department of Agriculture Forest Service 
through its Urban and Community Forestry Program, the goal of which is to preserve, 
protect, expand, and improve Michigan’s urban and community forestry resources. 
 
In 2020, Birmingham received a grant from the Michigan Department of Natural Resources 
and worked with Davey Resource Group, Inc., “DRG”, to develop this Tree Manual and 
Standards of Practice. The purpose of this tree manual is to provide information to the 
public and City staff that clarifies specific technical regulations, standards, and 
specifications necessary to implement the City ordinances related to trees. It also provides 
information about industry best practices and how they apply to Birmingham’s urban 
forest, so the community can achieve its management and preservation goals. Specifically, 
this manual addresses the following goals: • Align City tree maintenance guidelines with 
community goals and priorities. • Provide the City with valuable tools to help enforce City 
tree policies. • Establish clear guidance in the requirements, practices, and enforcement 
of tree maintenance. • Promote the valuable role trees play in your community. • Ensure 
compliance with current industry-accepted best practices and standards. To write this 
Public Tree Manual and Standards of Practice, DRG reviewed pertinent documents, 
conducted interviews with City staff and the Contracted Arborist, and collected information 
about industry best practices and solutions to municipal forestry problems. 
 
We would like to thank and recognize the City Manager, all City Departments and Boards 
involved with the development of this new tool for the City of Birmingham.  It will soon 
be available on the Forestry & Environment City webpage. 
 
Adams Park Concept Plan Update 
Currently, the concept plan is under review by Roeper School after recent modifications 
were made with the input and review from the Neighborhood Associations related to this 
park location.  Afterwards the revised concept plan is going to be launched on Engage 
Birmingham for Citywide public input.  Watch for further updates.  We expect an updated 
cost estimate in the near future from Michael J. Dul & Associates. 
 

https://www.bhamgov.org/document_center/City%20Manager%20Office/Manager%20Reports/August%202021/MDOT%20Response%20Email%20081321.pdf
https://www.bhamgov.org/document_center/City%20Manager%20Office/Manager%20Reports/August%202021/MDOT%20Response%20Email%20081321.pdf


 
 
 
 
 
Ice Arena Project Schedule Status for August and September 
 
AUGUST 
• August Parks & Recreation Board meeting update 
• Main ice arena concrete pour 
• Locker room concrete pours 
• Install underground plumbing 
• Addition block wall install 
• Addition brick veneer install 
• Install addition roofing 
• Install addition brick veneer 
• Finish interior painting 
• Elect./Plumbing/HVAC/Fire Suppression installations 
• Ceramic tile showers 
• Acoustical tile ceiling grid and pads 
• Refrigeration equipment installations 
 
SEPTEMBER 
• September Parks & Recreation Board Meeting update 
• Bench installations 
• Elect./Mechanical/Plumbing installations 
• Aluminum storefront glass installations 
• Bleacher installation 
• Dehumidification unit installation 
• Rubber flooring installations 
• Team locker room installations 
• AV/PA/Tech/Security installations 
• Dasher board installation 
• Ice installation – Main and Studio Rinks 
• Commissioning 
• Final inspections 
 

 
Engineering Department 

Sewer System Investigation 

Efforts are continuing from Engineering and DPS to investigate recent flooding reports, 

including checking "dry weather" sewer flows at manholes on segments that experienced 

multiple reports of basement flooding.  The Sewer Rehabilitation Program has been advertised 

for bidding, with a scheduled bid opening date of 9/2.  The Sewer Rehabilitation Program 

includes inspecting the City sewers in areas with reported basement flooding, and has 

provisions for the contractor to complete limited repairs, such as removal of roots, mineral 



deposits and protruding taps, that will improve the flow capability of these sewers.  We are 

planning to bring the contract to the City Commission on 9/13 for award, and the contractor's 

work would be expected to start mid-October. In the meantime, we encourage all homeowners, 

especially those that appeared to be isolated cases on their blocks, to hire a plumber to check 

their private sewer lines for roots, deposits or other potential blockages that could affect 

performance of the system during rain events. The City received the attached letter from the 

Department of Environment, Great Lakes and Energy (EGLE) regarding Southeast Michigan 

Flooding. 

Finance Department 

The audit contract with Plante & Moran, PLLC will expire with the audit of the City's June 30, 
2021 fiscal year end. The City plans to post an RFP for these services in late August or early 
September with responses due in September and an agreement presented to the City 
Commission in October for approval. 

 

Fire Department 

The City recently installed a mini weather station on the roof of 

Birmingham Fire Station 1 (Adams). The KestrelMet weather 

station monitors wind, temperature, and rainfall. This device has 

its own cellular device and updates an app every 15 minutes with 

the data collected. This data will allow the City to monitor 

damaging winds and rain so that we can alert the residents and 

track severe weather events.  Residents can access the Ambient 

Weather app at https://apps.apple.com/us/app/ambient-

weather/id1426025887. An additional weather station will be 

installed at Station 2 (Chesterfield) in the near future. 

 

Police Department 

2021 Parking Structure Repair Projects 

Based on the Structural Assessment Reports provided by Wiss, Janney, Eltner 
Associates, Inc (WJE), which included repair recommendations, an RFP for structural 
repairs for the N. Old Woodward structure was issued on August 5, 2021.  A mandatory 
pre-bid meeting was held on August 12, 2021 which was attended by eight 
different contractors.  Bids are due on August 20, 2021 and a bid award will go before 
the City Commission at the next meeting. 

An RFP is currently being prepared for preventative maintenance work at the Park, 
Peabody and Chester structures.  The police department anticipates that this RFP will be 
posted the week of August 23rd.  The work contained in this RFP is anticipated to be 
completed this construction season.  

 

https://www.bhamgov.org/document_center/City%20Manager%20Office/Manager%20Reports/August%202021/SE%20MI%20Flooding%20Letter.pdf
https://apps.apple.com/us/app/ambient-weather/id1426025887
https://apps.apple.com/us/app/ambient-weather/id1426025887


Special Investigations Unit (SIU) Arrest Larceny from Auto Suspect 

On 7/7/21, the police department took a Larceny From Auto report in the 1300 block of 
Birmingham Blvd. The victim left his vehicle unlocked and his wallet was stolen. The 
victim's credit card was used at a CVS in Southfield. Detectives put out an intelligence 
bulletin with the suspect's picture from the CVS store surveillance footage. The 
suspect was identified by Southfield PD. The suspect was then placed under surveillance 
by the department’s Special Investigations Unit (SIU). The very first night under 
surveillance, the suspect and another accomplice were observed breaking into over a 
dozen vehicles in Rochester Hills. The suspect(s) were arrested by the SIU. The case 
was presented to the Oakland County Prosecutor's Office who issued three felony 
warrants on the Birmingham case.  The arrest(s) solved numerous larceny cases in 
Oakland County.    

Ms. Hillary Nusbaum Named Mental Health Co-Response Program Clinician 

The Oakland County Health Network (OCHN) clinician who will be serving on the 
department's new CoRe (Mental Health Co-Response Program) program is Ms. Hillary 
Nusbaum.  Chief Clemence will introduce Ms. Nusbaum at a later commission meeting 
once her onboarding process has been completed.   

Article about Dispatcher Terez Willis 

Hometownlife.com recently published an article about dispatcher Terez Willis, who is 
preparing to retire after 31 years with the city. Read the article here. 

 
Future Agenda Items 
Download a summary of future agenda items. 
  
Future Workshop Items 
Download a summary of future workshop items. 

https://www.hometownlife.com/story/news/local/birmingham/2021/08/17/birmingham-dispatcher-preaches-patience-while-taking-911-calls/8046822002/
https://www.bhamgov.org/document_center/City%20Manager%20Office/Manager%20Reports/August%202021/Future%20Agenda%20Items%20August%202021.pdf
https://www.bhamgov.org/document_center/City%20Manager%20Office/Manager%20Reports/August%202021/Future%20Workshop%20Items%20August%202021.pdf


INFORMATION ONLY





INFORMATION ONLY



INFORMATION ONLY





INFORMATION ONLY





INFORMATION ONLY




	3A 20210823 APC PACKET
	5A 8_9_21 Minutes
	5B 20210811 Warrant list & ACH
	5C 20210818 Warrant list & ACH
	5D 20210823 SET PH - 260 N. Old Woodward - The Morrie  FULL - 8-17-21 - FINAL
	20210823 SET PH - 260 N. Old Woodward - The Morrie - MEMO - 8-17-21
	20210823 SET PH - 260 N. Old Woodward - The Morrie  FULL - 8-17-21
	20210823 SET PH - 260 N. Old Woodward - The Morrie  FULL - 8-17-21
	20210823 SET PH - 260 N. Old Woodward - The Morrie  FULL - 8-17-21
	4A - 260 N. Old Woodward - The Morrie - SLUP & FSP REPORT - 8-6-21
	4B - 260 N. Old Woodward - The Morrie - ZONING SUMMARY - 8-6-21
	4C - Updated Patio Plan  Bham 2010-sp101 enlarged patio plan-Model
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	4D1 - Site Plan
	4D2 - Planters and Railing Specs
	planters for Bham14.5x32
	Railing cut sheet

	4E - Bham Railing Specs
	4F - Aviator Collection Outdoor Aluminum Chair in Black
	The Morrie - Building Comments
	The Morrie - Fire Comments
	The Morrie - Police Comments
	4G - Eng Comments
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	4H - PB SLUP Application Signed Complete (1)
	4I - 260 N. Old Woodward - The Morrie - SITE PLANS 2018
	4J - 2014 SitePlanApproval_Ramp Revision
	4K -
	A4.1 Exterior Elevations
	A4.2 Exterior Elevations





	5E 20210823 SET PH - Public Notice FULL - 8-17-21 - FINAL2
	20210823 SET PH - Public Notice MEMO - 8-17-21
	20210823 SET PH - Public Notice FULL - 8-17-21
	20210823 SET PH - Public Notice FULL - 8-17-21.pdf
	20210823 SET PH - Public Notice FULL - 8-17-21
	3 - Public Notice Signs - Public Hearing FULL - 8-11-21.pdf
	Public Notice Sign Ordinance - Public Hearing - 8-11-21
	ORDINANCE NO. _________
	THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM ORDAINS:
	AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM:




	20210823 SET PH - Public Notice FULL - 8-17-21.pdf
	20210823 SET PH - Public Notice FULL - 8-17-21
	3 - Public Notice Signs - Public Hearing FULL - 8-11-21.pdf
	Public Notice Sign Ordinance - Public Hearing - 8-11-21
	ORDINANCE NO. _________
	THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM ORDAINS:
	AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM:


	3 - Public Notice Signs - Public Hearing FULL - 8-11-21


	20210823 SET PH - Public Notice FULL - 8-17-21
	20210823 SET PH - Public Notice FULL - 8-17-21
	3 - Public Notice Signs - Public Hearing FULL - 8-11-21.pdf
	Public Notice Sign Ordinance - Public Hearing - 8-11-21
	SUBJECT: Public Notice Signs – Public Hearing


	3 - Public Notice Signs - Public Hearing FULL - 8-11-21
	Public Notice Signs - Engage Birmingham





	5F 20210823 MDIC 48th interlocal
	5G 20210823 Memo Re  MACC with Agreement attached
	5H 20210823 GIS Support Renewal
	GISinc 2021 Support Renewal.pdf
	2021-22 GISinc Support Block .pdf

	5I 20210818_memo_emer_sewer_repair_Maple
	5J 20210817_memo_emer_dam_repair
	5K 20210823 Chester Elevator Repairs
	5L 20210823 SP+ Updated Contract
	5M 20210823 Ravine Stop Sign Request
	Intersection Control Analysis
	Crash History
	Sight Distance

	Recommendations

	5N 20210823 SE Santa House
	City Commission MEMO
	Application -Santa House
	Notification Letter-Santa House
	Insurance-Santa House
	Approval Page-Santa House

	5O 20210823 SE Winter Markt
	City Commission MEMO
	Application-Winter Markt
	Notification-Winter Markt
	Insurance-Winter Markt
	Approval Page-Winter Markt

	5P 20210823 LL Renewal Brooklyn Pizza 2021
	20210823 Brooklyn LL 2021
	0 Birmingham, MI Code of Ordinances - Liquor License Violations
	1 Building - City of Birmingham MI Mail - Brooklyn Pizza - Liquor License Renewal
	2 Brooklyn Pizza - Planning
	SUBJECT: 111 Henrietta – Brooklyn Pizza

	3 PD - Brooklyn
	4 Fire - Brookly Pizza BFD Letter
	5 Treasury - Brooklyn Pizza Liquor License Renewal

	5Q 20210823 PCT 6 Polling Location Permanent Change Memo
	7A 202100823_TownsendandPeabody_Paving_Award.Memo_6-21
	1-Award.Memo.6-21DRAFT
	ProjectArea
	Bidsummary
	M271-210722-DRAWINGS
	00-M271-ENG-Cover Sheet
	01-M271-TOWNSEND-ENG-C1
	02-M271-TOWNSEND-ENG-C2
	03-K720-PEABODY-ENG-C3
	Sheets and Views
	C3


	04-M271-TOWNSEND-ENG-C4
	05-M271-TOWNSEND-ENG-C5
	06-M271-TOWNSEND-ENG-C6
	07-K720-PEABODY-ENG-C7
	Sheets and Views
	C7


	08-M271-TOWNSEND-ENG-C8
	09-K720-PEABODY-ENG-C9
	Sheets and Views
	C9


	10-M271-TOWNSEND-ENG-C10
	11-M271-TOWNSEND-ENG-C11
	12-K720-PEABODY-ENG-C12
	Sheets and Views
	C12


	13-K720-PEABODY-ENG-C13
	Sheets and Views
	C13


	14-M271-TOWNSEND-ENG-C14
	15-M271-TOWNSEND-ENG-C15
	16-K516-ENG-StripingRevisions-C16
	Sheets and Views
	C16


	17-K516-ENG -Striping Revisions-C17
	Sheets and Views
	C17


	18-M420-ENG-C18
	Sheets and Views
	C18


	19-M271-TOWNSEND-ENG-C19
	Sheets and Views
	C19


	20-M271-TOWNSEND-ENG-C20
	21-M271-ENG-Q1
	22-3254_bham_sew_det
	23-3253_birm_water

	M271-BidRecommendationLetter-210813

	7B 20210823 NEXT Memo and Joint Senior Services Interlocal Agmnt



